AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424
Meeting Room and Office — 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach
Telephone (805) 595-2664 FAX (805) 595-7623
E-mail: avilacsd@gmail.com

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
1:00 P.M. (Pacific Time) Tuesday, November 10th, 2020

PURSUANT TO THE GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20, MEMBERS OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, STAFF AND PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE IN THIS
MEETING VIA TELECONTERENCE AND/OR ELECTRONICALLY.

THE DISTRICT OFFICE WILL NOT BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.
PUBLIC SHOULD ACCESS VIA ZOOM MEETING OR PHONE.

Z0OOM MEETING: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4111787571
Meeting ID: 411 178 7571 Password: No Password Required.
BY PHONE: 1-669-900-9128

1. CALL TO ORDER: 1:00 P.M.

ROLL CALL: Board Members:

Pete Kelley, President

Lynn Helenius, Vice President

Ara Najarian, Director

Kristin Berry, Director

Howie Kennett, Director
PUBLIC COMMENT
Members of the public wishing to comment or bring forward any items concerning
District operations which do not appear on today's agenda may address the Board
now. Please state name and address before addressing the Board and limit presentations
to 3 minutes. State law does not allow Board action on items not appearing on the
agenda.

INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
Items of District interest which may be placed on later agendas, or where staff needs to
inform Board.

A. County Reports
1. SLO County Sheriff Department
2. CalFire/County Fire Department



5.

9.

B. Reports on Attended Conferences, Meetings, and General Communications of
District Interest

CONSENT ITEMS:
These items are approved with one motion. Directors may briefly discuss any item, or
may pull any item, which is then added to the business agenda.

October Board Meeting Minutes

Monthly Financial Reviews for October

General Manager and District Engineer Report

Water and Wastewater Superintendent Reports for October

Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan — Adoption of Avila Beach Community
Services District Resolution No. 2020-09

mouow»

DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS
At this time, items pulled for discussion from the Consent Agenda, if any, will be heard.

BUSINESS ITEMS: Items where Board action is called for.

District Financial Audit for Fiscal Year 2019-20
(Action Required: Receive draft report and presentation by Fedak and Brown, the
District’s independent Auditor; Adopt Audit Report or provide other direction to staff)

Certification of Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for Wastewater System

Improvements, Resolution No. 2020-08
(Action Required: Consider Adoption of Resolution No. 2020-08 Providing Certification of

the MND for the Wastewater System Improvements Project.)

Award Contract for Final Design and Bid Services for the Wastewater Treatment Plant

Redundancy Project
(Action Required: Consider Awarding a Contract for Professional Services or Provide Other

Direction to staff)

Consider Retaining New General Counsel
(Action Required: Information Item, update from Personnel Committee)

COMMUNICATIONS/ COORESPONDENCE
At this time, any Director or Staff, may ask questions for clarification, make any
announcements, or report briefly on any activities or suggest items for future agendas.

Adjourn to next regularly scheduled meeting on December 14, 2020.

Any writing or document pertaining to an open session item on this agenda which is distributed to a majority of the Board after
the posting of this agenda will be available for public inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed. The
writing or document will be available for public review in the District Administration Office, 100 San Luis Street, Avila Beach,
CA during normal business hours. Consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act and California Government Code Section
54954.2 requests for disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services may be made by a
person with a disability who requires the modification or accommodation in order to participate at the above referenced public
meeting by contacting the District at 805-595-2664.



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
Avila Beach Community Services District
Tuesday, October 13, 2020
1:00 P.M.

PURSUANT TO THE GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20, MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, STAFF AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATED IN THIS MEETING VIA TELECONTERENCE
AND/OR ELECTRONICALLY.

BOARD MEETING
1:00 P.M. (Pacific Time) Tuesday, October 13th, 2020

ZOOM MEETING: 411 178 7571

Meeting ID: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4111787571

BY PHONE: 1-669-900-9128

1. CALL TO ORDER

President Kelley called the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community Services District,
to order at 1:00 P.M. on the above date, in the Avila Beach Community Services District Building, 100 San

Luis Street, Avila Beach, California.
2. ROLL CALL

Board Members Present via Zoom: Lynn Helenius

Pete Kelley

Board Members Present: Howie Kennett

Board Members Absent: Ara Najarian
Kristin Berry

Staff Present: Brad Hagemann, General Manager and District Engineer
Kristi Dibbern, Accounting

Staff Present via Zoom: Mike Seitz, Legal Counsel

Cara Aguiar, FRM

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS - No Public Comments.

4. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. County Reports

Cal Fire: CAL Fire - Battalion Chief Paul Lee stated that there were 62 calls for service of which 32 were medically
related. Over 4 million acres have burned in California. We have the support of the National Guard who are receiving
training from Cal Fire as hand crews. Chief Lee suggested with the high winds be sure to clear 5 feet away from your
home and out-buildings. Chief Lee pointed out that Cal Fire’s website has a number of applications available to assist
with CPR and First Aid Procedures. There is also an app “Pulse Point” for your smart devices with emergency
information and live coverage for incidents in SLO County.



Sheriff’s Report: Lt. Stuart MacDonald introduced himself as he is newly assigned to our local station. Seventy nine
calls for service this month. There were: two batteries and assaults, 22 disturbances, 4 vehicle burglaries, 10 thefis, 3
vehicles vandalized, 3 mailbox thefts and five suspicious circumstances reported. The Sheriff’s proactive efforts include
34 enforcements including 30 stops, 3 bicycles and one pedestrian. One nuisance package delivery was brought to the

officer’s attention.

B. Conferences, Meetings and General Communications. General Manager Brad Hagemann announced there will
be a CSDA Virtual meeting on October 29, at 11:00 via Zoom. Directors are welcome to join.

Director Berry joined the meeting in person at the District office at 1:19 P.M.

5. CONSENT ITEMS

Legal Counsel Seitz commented that since Director Berry was not present at the September meeting, she should
not participate in the vote to approve the September meeting minutes. President Kelley made a motion to
approve the Consent Items except Item 5.A. September meeting minutes. The motion was seconded by Director

Kennett and it passed with a roll call vote 3-0.

AYES: Pete Kelley
Howie Kennett
Lynn Helenius
NOES: None

ABSENT: Ara Najarian

Director Berry made a motion to approve Consent Items Item 5.A. September meeting minutes. The motion was
seconded by Director Kennett and it passed with a roll call vote 4-0.

AYES: Kristin Berry
Howie Kennett
Pete Kelley
Lynn Helenius
NOES: None

ABSENT: Ara Najarian

6. DISCUSSION OF PULLED CONSENT ITEMS: None




7. BUSINESS ITEMS:

A. Award Notice of Intent to Purchase Membrane Bioreactor Unit to Cloacina, LLC.

GM Hageman summarized the staff report noting that staff and consultant (MKN) have gone through a thorough process
to prepare a Request for Proposals (RFP), review and rank proposals to provide a recommendation on which firm to select
to manufacture the Membrane Bioreactor Unit. Staff concluded that Cloacina LLP was clearly the best fit for the CSD for
a number of reasons: Price, local vendor that will save on shipping costs, familiarity with operations and maintenance of
the ABCSD WWTP and the best methods for integrating the MBR in to the CSD WWTP. Staff recommended the Board
issue a Notice of Intent to Purchase to Cloacina, LLC as the best vendor for the MBR.

Director Helenius made a motion directing staff to prepare and issue a Notice of Intent to Purchase MBR unit. It was

seconded by Director Berry and it passed with a roll call vote 4-0.

AYES: Lynn Helenius
Kristin Berry
Howie Kennett
Pete Kelley
NOES: None

ABSENT: Ara Najarian

B. Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for Wastewater System Improvements.
This was an information only item for the Board.

COMMUNICATIONS/CORRESPONDENCE.

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 2:15 P.M.

The next regular meeting of the Avila Beach Community Services District is scheduled for Tuesday,
November 10th, 2020 at 1:00 PM at 100 San Luis Street. Avila Beach.

These minutes are not official nor a permanent part of the records until approved by the Board of Directors at
their next meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Brad Hagemann, PE
General Manager






AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA 93424

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors e
7
: )
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager ;" V)
DATE: November 10%, 2020

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Review for October 2020

Recommendation:
Receive and file report.

Overall Monthly Summary

During the month of October, the District deposited $160,268.67 and incurred $97,364.83 in
expenses (cash basis). Income included $65,904.98 in County tax income and $89,095.71 in
monthly water and sewer fees. Detailed financial reports including a Balance Sheets, Deposits
by Fund, Checks by Fund and Profit and Loss Sheets are provided for your information for the
month of October.

Utility Service Billing

The District billed approximately $87,609.55 in water and sewer service charges in October.
Customer Rate Assistance reduced billing charges to the District in the amount of $1,486.16.

Operation and Maintenance

The Fluid Resource Management (FRM) Statement for October is attached to this report.



2:06 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

11/04/20 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis October 2020

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 - Income Summary
4010 - Operating Revenue
4012 - Solid Waste Franchise Fee
4030 - County Taxes

Total 4000 - Income Summary
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees
5110 - Amex
5120 - Chase Paymentech
5140 * Invoice Cloud

Total 5100 - Merchant Credit Card Fees

5200 - Payroll Expenses
5210 - Gross Wages
5211 - Regular Pay
5012 - Holiday Pay
5014 - Sick Pay
5016 - Vacation Pay

Total 5210 - Gross Wages
5230 - Payroll Taxes

5240 - Health & Medical Exp.
5242 - Health Ins / Other

Total 5240 - Health & Medical Exp.

5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5256 - PERS Co Pd Kiristi

Total 5250 - PERS Company Pd Expense
5280 - Payroll Administration & Misc.
Total 5200 - Payroll Expenses

6000 - Administrative Overheads
6102 - Accounting

Oct 20_

89,095.71
2,396.13
65,904.98

167,396.82
157,396.82
167,396.82

14.85
124.26
421.58

560.69

3,1563.22
0.00
0.00
0.00

3,153.22
57.32

800.00
800.00

577.00
577.00
104.12
4,691.66

1,200.00

Page 1



2:06 PM

11/04/20
Accrual Basis

Avila Beach Community Services District

Profit & Loss
October 2020

6103 -
6120 -
6135 -
6140 -

Accounting Audit

Dues & Subscriptions
Legal

Office Supplies & Postage

6142 - Postage & Shipping
6143 - Supplies, Office
6140 - Office Supplies & Postage - Other

Total 6140 - Office Supplies & Postage

6150 -
+ Website

6170

Rate Assistance

Total 6000 - Administrative Overheads

6500 - Operating Expenses

6503 -

6505 -
6506 -
6507 -
6510 -
6518 -
6520 -

Chemicals

Contract Labor O & M
Contract Labor GM

Contract Labor Civil Engineer
Critical Spare Parts
Equipment Expense
Equipment Repair & Maint.

6522 - Equip. Rep. & Maint-Avila & HD
6524 - Eqip. Rep. & Maint. Avila Only
6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint. - Oth...

Total 6520 - Equipment Repair & Maint.

6525 -
6530 -
6535 -
6540 -
6542 -
6550 -
6555 -
6580 -
6585 -
6590 -
6500 -

Fat Oil & Grease (FOG)
Generator Maintenance
Insurance P/L

Lab Tests

Maintenance

Operating Supplies
Permits & Fees

Solids Handling
Telephone / Internet
Utilities

Operating Expenses - Other

Total 6500 - Operating Expenses

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

(_)ct 20

2,600.00
5,492.99
828.00

163.45
82.47
14.73

260.65

1,486.16
200.00

12,067.80

5,086.84
19,591.88
5,147.50
6,090.00
1,304.97
131.99

9,365.97
13,491.63
6,985.03

29,832.63

250.00
2,030.00
1,919.00
3,417.00

615.00

843.39

57.30
2,706.00

541.41

4,404.54
50.28

84,019.73
101,339.88
56,056.94

Page 2



2:06 PM Avila Beach Community Services District
11/04/20 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis October 2020

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
8246 - WW Swr Ln Rpimt San Migl
8246¢ - WW Swr Ln Rpimt Sn Migl Pha...

Total 8246 - WW Swr Ln Rpimt San Migl
Total 8230 - Capital Purchases in Prog Sani
Total 8200 - Non-Operating Expenses
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income

Net Income

Oct 20

57.50
57.50
57.50
57.50
57.50
-57.50
55,999.44

Page 3



2:07 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

11/04/20 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of October 31, 2020
Oc_t _31, 2_0
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1000 - Cash Summary
1005 - Customer Cash 152.40
1008 - Petty Cash 8.02
1010 - Pacific Premier Checking 980,899.24
1050 - LAIF 3,112,997.50
Total 1000 - Cash Summary 4,094,057.16
Total Checking/Savings 4,094,057.16
Accounts Receivable
1200 - *Accounts Receivable 85,534.50
Total Accounts Receivable 85,534.50
Other Current Assets
1250 - Receivables
1255 - Interest Receivable 19,364.33
1270 - Taxes Receivable 9,5630.07
1280 - Water & Sewer Billings 117,927.53
Total 1250 - Receivables 146,821.93
1400 - Prepaid Summary
1410 - Prepaid Insurance 16,606.11
Total 1400 - Prepaid Summary 16,606.11
Total Other Current Assets 163,428.04
Total Current Assets 4,343,019.70
Fixed Assets
1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
1605 - Office Equipment
1606 - Copier Samsung 2012 8,233.58
1609 - Office Equipment Accum Depr -8,233.58
Total 1605 - Office Equipment 0.00
1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin.
1612 - Office Furniture cost 4,526.21
1614 - Office Furniture Accum Dep. -4,526.21
Total 1610 - Fixed Asset -Office & Admin. 0.00
1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary
1622 - Land 60,314.10
1626 - Collection Assets
1627 - Collection Assets Cost 1,318,875.26
1628 - Collect Assets Accum Depr -497,174.62
Total 1626 - Collection Assets 821,700.64

1630 - Disposal Equipment



2:07 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

11/04/20 Balance Sheet
As of October 31, 2020

Accrual Basis

1631 - Disposal Equip Cost
1632 - Disposal Equip Accum Depr

Total 1630 - Disposal Equipment

1635 - Treatment Plant
1636 - Treatment Plant Original
1637 - Treatment Plant Addition
1638 - Treatment Plant Accum Dep

Total 1635 - Treatment Plant

1642 - Treatment Equipment
1643 - Treatment Equip Cost

1644 - Treatment Equip Accum Depr

1642 - Treatment Equipment - Other
Total 1642 - Treatment Equipment
Total 1620 - Fixed Assets - Sanitary

1650 - Fixed Assets - Water
1652 - Equipment
1653 - Equipment Cost
1654 - Equipment Accum Depr
1652 - Equipment - Other

Total 1652 - Equipment

1656 - Distribuation Assets
1657 - Distribuation Assets Cost
1658 - Dist Assets Accum Depr

Total 1656 - Distribuation Assets
Total 1650 - Fixed Assets - Water

1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1681 - Structures GFAAG - Sani & FA
1682 - Gen / Fire Accum Dep

Total 1680 - Structures - Fixed Asset
1690 - Construction in Progress
Total 1600 - Fixed Assets & Acc. Depr.
Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
1800 - Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Oct 31, 20

611,174.66
-264,042.83

347,131.83

105,000.00
2,049,098.30
-1,177,733.59

976,364.71

1,087,410.54
-704,848.55
205,485.61

588,047.60
2,793,558.88

21,136.28
-21,136.28

74.79
74.79

1,263,996.77
-657,239.98

606,756.79
606,831.58

74,061.65
-38,345.77

35,715.88
66,397.23
3,502,503.57
3,602,503.57

27,497.00
27,497.00
7,873,020.27

Page 2



2:07 PM Avila Beach Community Services District

11/04/20 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of October 31, 2020

Accounts Payable
2100 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Payroll Liabilities
2201 - Accrued Payroll
2260 - Vacation Payable
2262 - Sick Pay Accrued
2250 - PERS Liability

Total 2200 - Payroll Liabilities

2300 - Deposits Held
2303 - Water Deposits Held

Total 2300 - Deposits Held
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
2400 - Net Pension Liability
2500 - Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity

3000 - Opening Bal Equity

3900 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Oct 31, 20

55,158.45
55,158.45

1,772.34
944.10
274.60
394.14

3,385.18

4,610.00
4,610.00
7,995.18

63,153.63

126,061.00
9,791.00

135,852.00
199,005.63

177,730.13
7,670,171.36
-173,886.85

7,674,014.64
7,873,020.27

Page 3



| oBeyg

86'8€2'91 00'S91 aduBURUIBN - YS9 (0z0z 1deS) §91¢ "Au| @oueUSUIBK 2210 0D Bujues|p sumpseo) G182 020Z/6Z/0L 3o8YD
8G'€/G'0L 00°0/8 110 JogeT 10enuo) - 2059 logeT 19euo) ND sejeloossy @ uuewabey 18z, 0Z0Z/62Z/0L %o8yD
8G°C04°Sl 00°002 a)ISgsM - 0419 auljweass ASHAY Alyjuow wawAoldaq |enbig 143 0202/8Z/01 398yD
8G°C05'Gl 0L0S1L Buiddiys % obeysod - ZyL9  “0SIed UNY 678 JSqINN JaWwolsSnD ZE8S “Au| "ou| ‘selbojouyos | 8Aneal) 6082  0Z0Z/LZ/0L %8y
8P ESEGL S6PLT JouIelU| / auoydela] - G859 1 ZGEE00860015728 “# 190V wnoadg 143 0202/SZ/0L paklile}
£6'8¢LSlL 98'v¢ so|iddng BupesedQ - 0569  Ggg ‘AU Bulyoep AdoD 109ED BHOUIA BOILOY xain 8082 0202/2Z/0L 39840
29°€04°G1 00°08p Bununoddy - Z0L9 0Z/7L/0L €9SZ "Au| Buideaspioog olbua BN 2082 0202/22/0L %984D
29°€29'v1L 00'8.t'S " nduosgns g senq - 0219 1Z0Z Senq |lenuuy  UOREIOOSSY SpoWISI] jeads JleD  908Z  0202/2Z/0L 3o8yy
LOSPL'6 11°SS1 sennn - 0659 IS SInq ues ool 389d 143 0z0z/zzoL %08yg
06'686'S LESP yosjuswAed aseys - 0ZLG S99} 29 JueyaIaW yosjuawhed 020Z/12/0L %o8YD
65 116'8 198 asuadx3 uawdinby - 8169 lledal 3910} WIBQQIQ 9SINGUIBY 0Z/61/01 slempleH 9oy sIauly 020Z/L2/0L pier1iTe}
86'GE6'S eY'LE Anb3 jeg Buuedo - 000¢ aoueleg yseD Aned 1081109 LININLSNrAY IONYIVE 0202/12/01 %o8y)H
G5706'8 00°'S Ajnb3 jeg BuiuedQ - 000¢ aJou 61/G1/¥ yseD Jawojsny Joj abueyn 020Z/12/01 %o8y)D
GG'668'8 ¥0'8 % seyddng 800 - OVL9 sAey sjeondnp 61/81/2 suonnjog Asy| 020Z/L2/01 piel=lle)
161688 69'9 g sayddng 8210 - OVLO J81eM 02/2/6 SAD 0202/1.Z/01 308y
87888 vioL asuadx3 uswdinbg - g159 SOOJB 8sINquIal [00] ajel) 6L/ L/L aleMpIRH 80y SIBUIN 0202/ 2/01 3¥o8yD
89'898°8 GL'L Buiddiys 3 abejsod - Zv19 61/0€/S 901AISG [8)S0d "S'N 0202Z/L2/0L 398yD
£€6°198'8 0z'L Buddiys g efeysod - zv19 MBS 1M SWIED 0Z/1/0L 821AI8G {B180d 'S'N 0202Z/1.2/0L piecili)
££'998'9 00°52¥ aoueuSjuUIBW - ZPS9 1s8d uspzaig 0Z02/02/0L 3o8yD
e Lr'e 90'LL yosjuswAed aseyy - 0Z1S §88} 20 Jueyosow yosjuswied 020Z/91/01 398YD
12°0ev'8 zZo'clL yosjuswAhed eseys - 0ZLG 509} 99 Jueydiow yosjuswhed 0202/S1L/0L ¥98yD
G9'9LY'8 ¥Z 101 asuadx3 Juswdinb3 - 8169 BLOYLE8-ZLLSLE6-LLL # ¥IAYO uozewy 0Z0Z/¥LI0L piek=1ll)
1'60€'8 00'90¢ [ebe - ¢e1L9 [gsunog efe eseuan  meT je Aouwiony ‘Z)I9S M ISBUDINL - S08Z  020Z/EL/0L %98UD
LF'€00'8 00'22S {ebe - G190  eonoN Bunesyy psjjeoue) pue Uoisseg peso|)  MET IB ASUIONY ‘ZI9S M 1SBYIIN  S08Z  0Z0Z/SL/0L #o8yn
Ly Lev's 00°59¥'2 NS JogeT 10enuod - 9059 0Z0Z ‘0L 190 - Uiz 1des WD JogeT Joenuo) soleloossy ® uuewsbe  zogz  020Z/2L/0L pral:llle}
17'910'S 00°'0¥ “ulely @ "dey "dibg - $259 sJiedal JeIndwod siendwo) 29 D 143 020zZ/0L0L plal:lile}
1°926'Y 98'Ge 8oYO ‘solddng - €719 se|delg 020Z/60/01 pra=llle]
GG 056t 001} Buiddiys @ ebeisod - zir19 s}eyoed pJeog aolMIBS [B1S0d "S™N 020Z/80/01 984D
GG 6E6'Y A sollddng BupesadO - 0669 " AdOD I09ED BHOUIN B1UOY OYEEZE S10AU| Xann 1642  02Z0Z/80/0L 984D
11°206'Y 1821 yosjuswAhed eseys - 0Z1LS $99) 20 JUBYIIOW yosjuswAey 020Z/10/01 %o8yn
vZ'v68't 00'009'2 1pny Buunoooy - €019 02/6102 Ad upny dT7‘umosg g yepe4  G6LZ  0Z0Z/L0/0L o8yn
Y2 v6e'e 00022 Bununoooy - 2019 0Z/0£/6 652 "AU| Buidessyoogd o1bua BIN 2642  0202Z/L0/0L 3o8yo
YT vis'L 19°95 22410 ‘salddng - 19 9668222066 # so|deis 020z/20/01 399u0
€9°/151 8512V pno|g aoloAu| - OFLS PNOJDDI0AU| 020Z/90/0L 398U
50'960°1 S8Vl Xowy - OLLS Xawy unoos|q ssaidxg ueouswy 0Z0Z/S0/0L %o8y9
0Z'180't £9'82 yosjuswAed sseyd - 0215 $98) 29 Jueyolsw yosjuswAed 0Z0z/S0/01 %o8y9
257250') 88'V€ SUY Pd 00 SYH3Ad - 9525 0Z/0€/6 - 9L/6 IsUM  “AS Wewalney seakojdw3 ognd 143 0Z0Z/S0/0) 3o8yg
69°210°) 99cLe Aniger sYad - 0522 0Z/0€/6 - 91/6 NSy *AS Juswauey sashojdwg olqnd 143 0202/S0/0L pat:litg}
£0'v08 6199 nsuy Pd 00 SY3Ad - 9525 0Z/GL/6 - L6 Nsuy  “Ag Juswainay saafoldwg ongngd 143 0202/S0/0L o8y
¥82€L 00°0¥¢ Angery syad - 0622 0Z/SL/6 - L/B suy  *Ag Juawanay seshojdwg ogngd 143 0202Z/S0/0L %98uD
¥8'/6¥ 98'8/2 NsUM Pd 00 SH3d - 9625 0Z/0€/8 - 9L/g nisuy  *Ag Juswamay seakojdwz ongng 143 0202Z/S0/0L %o8y)H
86812 ZT 161 Aunger1 sY3ad - 052z 02/02/8 - 91/g sy “Ag Juswainey sesiojdwg olqnd 143 0202/50/01 o8y
9.2 6671 *duosang g seng - 0ZL9 woo'sqopy 143 0202Z/S0/0L %98UD
LLEL 10°2) yosjuswAed sseyd - 071G $99) 00 JueydIBW yosiuswAed 0202/20/01 Yosy)
uiupy / jelauas)
doueeg junowy JuUNo22dYy JITETTT] awepN wnyN ajeq adA)
0202 19903120
SJUNO22Y/M pun4 Aq s)o9yH 0zZ/vo/LL

1911810 S99IA19G AJUNWWOD Yoeag BlIAY



¢ affey

¥€'G16'8G 00'8.€'L Buipuen spios . 0859 0202/€1/0L 68L¥9 # AU| "ou| ‘'speedg 9182  0Z0Z/6C/0L o8y
vE 216625 05'289'2 WO JOgeT 10BHU0D - 9069 1190 ‘GLLL AUl weisAs Aejues “Bug D sejeinossy R uuewsbeH  y18Z  0Z02Z/6Z/0L ¥o8yD
P8 716'vS LLbhE Jawslu| / suoydaje] - 6859 G 06 91¥6-G6S S08 # 1998 181V 143 020Z/82/0L 3oayD
€1°0/9'%S ¥£820'L s[esway) - €059 18118 149 0Z02/8/01 80VL6LE # AU "ou| ‘oyioed Bejuuslg €182 0202/22/01 398yD
6€'2r9'eS 60°92. selddng BugessdQ - 0559 dLMM 10} S8A0I9) 0Z/6/0) 62158E "AU| joogenig vsSn  2i82  0202/22/0L %98y
0£'998'2S G6°0.E°L sesjway) - €089 0202Z/9L/0} 60FL6LE # AUl *ou) ‘ooed Beuuaig LL8Z  0Z0Z/LZ/0L %08y
GE'G6Y'LS 9z'0S g Jemeg g 1eleM - 0821 T $ S|eluey yoeeg e|iay/AeQ uyor punyay DD yosjuswied 0Z0Z/92/01 plal:lite}
80'SrY' LS 95°601 s8N - 069 Z-9€2ZE Y99 #1008 Uonels Y 399d 143 0z0z/cz/0L %0940
£6°6£€°1LS ¥5658'C sanIlN - 069 dwnd 1S ueiq ueg g pig 399d 143 o0zoz/izziol pratlity}
66'6.1'8¥ G8'8S Jowis)uf / suoydals] - GBSY Jauselu} G8gQ X # 1008 181V 143 020Z/L1i0L ¥o8yp
TATA 05'€Z Jowalu| / duoydela] - 859 02.1-¥£2 S08 1219€} 28191.6222.82 # 100e 131V 143 020Z/v L0l »o8yo
¥9'265'8P 00'82¢‘L BuipueH spios - 0859 0202/2z/6 GLOV9 # AUl ‘ou| ‘speadg  $08Z  0Z0Z/CL/OL plllle}
¥9°690'L¥ 000192 1D JogeT penuod - 2069 wielsAs uonetiues 'Bu3 (1A Joge 10enuo) seleloossy g uuewebeHy  z08z  0Z0Z/ZL/0L pllile}
y9'65t' v oF'a51L L sjeoluay) - €069 0Z-1-01 LOVIBLE "AU| "ou| ‘oyioed Bejuusig L08Z  0Z0Z/30/01 %98y
81'c0e'eP 0525 |dy U IMS MM - 29128 Jer o) sueld 0Z0Z/0€/6 0ZLLL ‘AUl -Ou| ‘sejeossy p JojAe) ‘Bunes 6622 0202/80/01 per-llig)
89'Ghe'ch 0G24 neday wswdinby - 0zG9  ig 190NpUBIL UOHEIS YT 1S I1S| 9986 LM AUl "du| ‘Juswabeuely s2nosay PINld  96/2  0Z0Z/L0/01 398YD
8lL'viv'ey 26'SlY aeday jswdinb3g - 0Zg9  I1SAS uopoalo) dwnd SIS IS £E86LM AUl Cou| ‘uswebeuely 80n0sayY PINl{ 962 0202/20/01 %¥98yD
92'000'2k £¥'L0S aeday wawdinbl - 0zg9  “eidey J0joejuod UOHEIS BITISL 6061 M AUl "Oul ‘uswebeuepy s0nossy P4 96/¢  020Z/L0/0L o8y
£8'86% LY 05'858'Z ey g "dey dinb3 . zzg9 uswode|dey 8joyuep Jusnyul L0L6LM ‘AUl Ou| ‘Juswabeuep 20In0ssy PNl 96/Z  0202/20/01 pel=1Tt)
£€'0¥9'8e 00°0€1 ey g "dey "dinb3 . Zzg9 “"eA woddng o} adid peziwolsnD ZO6LM AUl U ‘Juswabeuepy 921nosay pin|d 96/Z 0202/L0/01 pe- e}
££°015'8¢ 00°0LZ ey g "day ‘dinb3 . Zzg9 $BNSS| UOIOBUUOYD DVYA £6961 M AUl "ou| ‘Juswabeuely sounossy piNl4 9622 0202/20/0L %98y
££'00£8¢ 8y 10Z'L ey g "dey dinb3 - zzg9 1an0Q) Jazhleuy 1D 8996 LM AUl "oup ‘JuswaBeuely sounosay PNl 9642 0202/L0/0L %o8UQ
59'860°/E 0121 ey @ "dey "dinb3 - zgGgo  eusjuiey dwnd 96pnTng "08g GZ96L M AUl "ou| ‘Juswebeuey eounosey pinld 9622 020Z/20/01 30940
S1°616'9¢ Zzoer'el  uiey g tdoy "dibg - pgGgo edey Buidid uonels Ui jusnyul 9L96LAM ‘AUl "oul uswebeuepy sounosey PNl 9622 020Z/L0/01 »o8y9
£5°6V5'ee 82°0S “suadxg Bunesedo - 009 29861V ‘AUl "oul Juswsbeuely aounosay PNl 9642 0202/L0/0L 3o8uD
GZ'66%'C2 92°182 s[edIusyd - €059 19861V ‘AUl "ou) ‘Juswebeuep aounosey pINlY 9622 0Z0Z/L0/0) plal:llle}
66°LLZ'ce $8'G69'7L T O JOQET 19B[UOD - GOSY S¥6614 "Au| Aeyues 'sdp 0z0z 1deS  -ou| ‘Juewsbeuen sanosay piNi4 9622 0202/L0/0L %08y
G1'916'8 XN T A s|eslway) - €089 0Z/v2/6 Lyri8LE ‘AUl "ouf ‘oyioed Beluusilg  $6/Z  0202/20/01 %98UD
AR A XA 00°062 ) 8se8ln) R 10 184 - G259 02-9-01 6981G# "Auj weiboid Ho4 'ou| ‘dnoig) 82ellep €642 0202/20/01 308y
z£'220'L 00°G10'L "BJUBI JOjejaues) - 0EGO L ASUEND) JOJBIBUAL) UONEIS Ui GLG8Y “AU| "0uf ‘9SNOYIBMO SIN ueg 1642  020Z/L0/0L 308y
Z€'/00'9 00°GLO‘'L “aUiBy JOjelauas) - 0EGY  TUHENY) L0)eIBUa) d I MM 0Z02/8/9 ¥LS8Y AUl "Ju| ‘8SNoYIBmMod sin ueg 1642 0Z0Z/L0/0L 3o9yD
78266t R AT “ule g "dey "dib3 - 259 sdeu esnopy Alddng uuey 0612 020T/L0/0} 3}o8yo
16'996'F 9e'veE’L ey g "dey dinb3 . zzg9 0202/2/6 L00'S9¥9Z000LS# AUl  ng g adid NODWVY4 U BlUBS 682  0202/.0/01 3994D
§5'ge9'e £6'867'S “lep g "dey "dinb3 . zzc9 Jajemaisep| 104 JBJeN MOId 6196ZT Au| yoogenig vsn 143 0202/L0/0L %98yo
zZo'velL 20'vEL semn - 06S9  Jesdwng pA Z ZSEP0LE-0Z LY JoquinN 100y ao1ueg Arejues Ajuno)d yinog 143 0202/20/0L o pEThig]

ejlueg

£T'eH6 AN ) sy [eyol
£TEY6 (Keger soN - 0659 2-90959/96.6 09 S|6I7 1S W04 I99d 143 0zozez/olL #o84D
v 165 . S6¥% samN - 0669 €-7869.60690 # 1998 S)ybi] umoL 399d 143 0202/20/01 piet=lie}
89°101 89°10}L 0-Z9£S51 2666 # 1008 sjybi Auojo) I%9d 143 0202/20/01 V_mo;o

sybiI

86°¢9/°91 85°€9/'91 ulpYy / [eseues) |ejo |
86°€9/°0L 00°62 aouBUBUIBY - Z¥GO TlGRJ PUE pues ‘ssaeaT Jo dn ues|D Jousixa ‘0D Buues|p suliseod  GL8Z  020Z/62/01 3o8yD

aouejeg junowy junod9y OWwIdN awieN wnN ayeq adA)

0Z0Z 1290320

SJUNO22y/M pund Aq s)3o9y9H 0Zivo/LL

19U)SIg SO2IAISS AJIUNWWOD yoeag BlIAY



¢ abey

£8'P9E°26  £8'V9E'L6 V1oL
0£°90Z'61 0€°902°61 J8jem [BjoL
0£'90Z'61 6S°9/Y'L | Jamas B J8je M - 0821 800 rav IONVIvd 090 INJWLSNray IONVYIVE ravy  020z/Le/0L 3}98yD
16'62L°LL 00°09L'L 10 JogeT Joejuo) - 2059 wejshg sajep “Bug pay sojeloossy g uuewsbeH 182  0Z0Z/62/0L pak=lie)
16'695'91L L9PSZ'L sped aledg [eonud - QLG9 TTOISND - GLLOER # JOWOISND  GERILEBH AU| sesudiejug uosnbie4  0L8Z  0Z0Z/L2Z/0L ¥o8y9
0£'SLESL Zv'902 SOINN - 0659 'pY Buipueq aned 4141 3%29d 143 0202/22/0) %98y9
88'801L°GlL 9€'05 sued aledg |eonu)d - 0159 €128 "AU| 0Z202/£2/6 ‘ouj ‘Alddng [ewisnpui ung €082 020Z/€L/0L pilez=1Vl)
25'850'S) 00'0S¥'1 19 Jogen Joeiuo) - 2069 welsAg Jsjep “Bu3 IA1D Joge] JoeguoD sojeloossy g uuewsbey  zogz  0Z0Z/2L/0L %o8Uo
Z5°'809'EL 0€'2S §994 B S)IWISd - GGGY 0Z/62/6 1.Z2.92LONI "AU| WesH oD 01S 0082  020Z/80/0L %o8yo
ZT185'EL 00°LIV'E sisa] geT - OvS9 0202/9/01 290G Juswaje)s "ou| ‘[eonAleuy 1seOD suUoledY  86/Z  020Z/80/0L %0940
ZZTYEL'0L 00'8¢6°L Jjeday wewdinb3 - pzg9 (19lepn) yeaug sul JeanS 1S BEB6LM AUl "DU| ‘uswsebeuely sainosey pinjd 9622 0202/.0/01 pakllle}
T961'8 81°00€'€ “Jleday Juswdinb3 - 0Zg9 190118 OIS bZ# JUBIPAH G661 M AUl "Ou| ‘Juswaebeuep 20in0say piNld 9642 0Z20T/L0/0} pral-llie)
¥0'968'y #0'968'v " Q JogeT 19enuo) - G0S9 S¥6614 ‘AUl Jalepn "sdO 0zoz 1des  "ou| juswabeuepy @oinosey pINd 9642 0202/L0/01L pal=lllg)
19)EM
2L LSP'09 ZLISY'09 Kieyueg [e10]
ZLASY'09 BE9LVL Ui Jomag B JSJe M - 0821 $0D rav IONVY1vd 090 AINIWLSNray IONYIVE rav  020Z/LE/0L %o8yD
aouejeg junouwy JuUno2dy owd aweN - wnp ajeq adA)
0202 1890320
SJUNO22Yy/M pund Aq s)2ay) 0Z/vo/LL

19U)SIg $921A19G APUNWWOY) Lorag BjIAY



| efed

92°'050'82- 000 ey J8iwsld oyioed - 010} L 48ul0 2/1 020z/20/01 usodaQg
92'050'8¢- 8¢’ 8y lelweld oyloed - 0101 douejsissy ajey 0202/L0/01 usodsqQ
¥S'250°'8¢- 6€°129- ey Jelwiald oyioed - 0101 08y lueg 020¢/L0/01 usodag
G1'98¢'L¢e- L2'v6- eyQ Islwald dyioed - 0LOL ceyo Z/L 020¢/90/01 usodeQg
¥6° 162 LC- 000 rayD Jalweld ayioed - 0101 L J8Ylo 2/1L 0202/90/01 usodeQ
¥6°162'LC- ¥9'ce ey Jelweld duided - 0101 dduejsIssy 8)ey 0202¢/90/01 ysodag
8Gvie'Le- YA "ayQ Jslwaid oyioed - 010l 98y lueg 0202/90/01 ysode(
5£'89¢'9¢- 00°0 BYD Jolisid Juoed - 0LOL ¢dylo ¢/t 0202/S0/0L usodea(
6e'89¢'ac- 000 '8yD Jolwiald oyloed - 0L0L L BUI0 2/1L 0c¢0¢/S0/0L ysodeQ
§£'89¢'92- 000 eyQ Jelwaid dyided - 0LOL souejsIssy aley 020¢/s0/01L ysode(
§£'892'9¢- Zr'9LL- oy Jolwiald oyioed - 0101 09y lueg 0202/S0/01 ysodag
£6°160'92- 000 BYD Jolwidld dyloed - 0LOL 2 BYo Z/1L 0202/v0/01 usodaq
€6°160'9¢- 000 TreyD Jelald oyioed - 0LOL I 18410 ¢/ 0c0e/vo/0) usodag
£6°160'02- 19°C) oy JoiwLld dyioed - 0L0L 20oUBIS|SsY ajey 020z/70/01 ysods(g
09'v0L'92- z60l6'e- YD Joiwald dyioed - 0101 o8y lueg 0202/v0/01 nsodaqg
89'¢6l'2e- 000 eyQ Jalweld dilded - 0101 ¢JBulo g/l 020¢/e0/01 ysodeQ
89'¢6l'¢e- 000 "eyQ Islwald duloed - L0L L J8ylo 2/1L 020¢/e0/0L usodaQ
89'¢6l'Ce- 06l ey Jelwald oyloed - 0LOL aouejsissy ajey 0202/€0/01 ¥sodag
85°G61°¢¢e- 91'910°LL- ey Jeluiald oyioed - 010l 09y lueg 0202/€0/01 usodeq
TreLL LL- 0v'86.'9- “rayQ J8lweld ouyioed - 0101 XVL A3dNO3S "YdND - 0940V S680:4 0202/20/01 usodag
20'18Ev- 000 ey Jelusld oyioed - 0101 ZRYI0 2/ 020¢/20/01 ysodaqQ
zoieey- 000 “rayD J9iwald oyioed - 0101 L 12410 2/1 020z/zo/0l usodaq
20'18€'v- 19Tl rayD Jsiwald J4ioed - 0101 d0UejSISSY 9By 020¢/c0/01 usode(Q
69°€6E - z6'0L6'e- "9y Jslwald dHIoed - 010l o8y iueg 0c0¢/zo/0l ysode(
12°28Y- 62°9vL ey Jelwald duioed - 0LOL c1BYo Z/1 0c0¢/10/01 usodag
90'6¢29- 000 "'8yQ Jejwsld oyioed - 0101 L BYI0 Z/1L 0c0e/10/0l ysodag
90°6¢9- 18°L1 TrayQ Jelwiaid d4ided - 0L0L B0UEISISSY dley 020¢/10/01 usodag
€6°0v9- €6°0v9- 9y Jelwald oyioed - 0LOL 09y lueg 020z/10/01 ysodag

Aejueg

e€p'esg’l- €P'ee9’L- sjub1 leyoL
EV'ES9'L- v.'19¢- Tey) Jejwald dulded - 0LOL GO SWBIT ‘G2 4o)eM ‘0L " U9D - | # dWI HOVIE VTIAY - 0920:V $680:4 020z/9¢/01 nsodag
69'G8Z' |- v1'€8S- eYD Jslwsdd Juided - 0101 GO SIYBIT ‘G2 Jeje ‘0L " U9D - | # HdWI - N dIS LZAd 401 020¢/61/01 ysodaQ
S6'1eL- 66°68¢€- TeY) Jslwsld dyloed - 0L0L GO SIYOIT ‘Gz  Jeje A ‘0L T U9D - | # NI HOVIE VTIAY - 0920:V S680: 020¢/80/01 Jsodaq
9e'ere- oe'eve- ey Jelwaid ayloed - 0104 GO SIYOIT ‘G2 499B M ‘0L T USD - L # NI HOYIE VTIAY - 0920V $680: 020¢/c0/01 “_m%amn_

syb

g8'8Leve- sggLe've- ulwpy / [eJsusg) [ejo ]
sg'8lLe've- regvl's 9YD Jsiwald dyioed - 0101 SO SIYBIT ‘Gz 491e M ‘0L T USD - | # dWI HOVIE VIAY - 09L0'V $680: 0202/9Z/01 usodeq
15°020'61- 0v'eS.L'L- TaYD Jsiwald Juioed - 0L0L GO" SIYOIT ‘GZ  191.M ‘0L " UBD - | # HdWI - IN d3S LZA4 401 0zoz/6l/ol usodeqQ
LL8LE L)~ 9T ¥SY'G- '8YD Jolwsld oyoed - 0LOL SO" SIYBIT ‘Gz 481 M "0L T UBD - | # dINI HOVIE VTIAY - 0920°V G680:4 020¢/80/01 ysodeQ
68'coR'G- ¥2°0L0'L- "ayD Jolwsid dided - 0LOL uouueH sewer /2°6zZ¢ $ 21BNy 002 $ I19lUeq L0Z $ 997 eINeT ObE $ UseD pd 020¢/90/01 usodsQ
LLE6.L Y- LLEBL'Y- “ayQ Jelwdid d3ided - QLOL GO SIUBIT 'GZ" I8 M ‘0L T U9D - | # dINI HOVAE VTIAY - 0920V S680:4 0c0z/zo/ol usoda(

ulwpy / [elauag)

2ouejeg junowy yds owap ajeq odA)

0202 4390320

pun4 Aq s)isodag 0Z/v0iL1L

J0UISIG S92IAISG AJJUNWIWOY Yyorag elIAY



Z abed

G¢°/£80'GG- 000 ayp Jaiwsid oyoed - 0L0L aoue)sIsSsy ajey 0zoz/6L/0L usodaq
§¢°150'6G- VL ViE TrayQ Jelweld oyoed - 010k 09y lueg 0coz/ei/ol usodaQg
Y9'68.L'vSG- 000 ey Jolweld dyloed - gLOL cioylo g/l 0c0g/8L/0L ¥sodaQg
¥9°68.'vG- 000 YYD Jelwaig dytoed - 0LOL L 18ul0 2/1L 0c0z/81/0l usodeg
Y9 G8L VG- A NAN TreyQ IeiWeid dyioed - 0101 aoue]sissy aley 0c0z/81/01 ysodeq
9Z'818'vG5- €OVLLY- T8y Jalwaid dyided - 0101 09y lueg 0c0¢/81/01 usodaQg
£9°€0L0G- 000 TaYD Jelwsid dyIoed - 0101 ¢ 8Yl0 ¢/1 0c0e/91/01 usodeQ@
£€9'€01°05- 000 TayD Jetwald olided - 0101 L J9Ui0 2/1 0zoz/9L/0L ysodag
£9°€0L°06- 89°G1L YD Jeiwiald duided - 0LOI dJUE]SISSY aley 0202/91/01 usodaq
LE'6LL0G- €¢e6e- rayQ Jelweld oytoed - 0101 08y lueg 0202/91/01 ysodaqQ
80°228'6V- 000 ey Jelwald oyed - 0101 ¢184lo ¢/1 0c0Z/siL/oL usodaqQ
80°.28'61- 000 ey Jelwald oyided - 0101 L 18YI0 2/1 0coe/sL/oL usodaqQ
80'/28'61- 00°0 ey Jelwald oytoed - 0L0L aoue)sissy ajey 0coz/sL/ioL usodagQ
80°.28'6Y- FAS R 45 oy Jelwaid aylded - QLOL 08y lueg 0coz/sLioL ysodeqg
oi°e8p'6y- 9e'¥9.L TrayQ Jelweid oyed - 0104 02/82/6 - 82/8 woossay sued Ajunwwo) Ajpjesedes HOV paxoog 0Z/EL/0L 020e/v1L/0L ysodeq
28l 0G- 000 ey Jelwsid oyloed - 010t Z49Y0 ¢/ 0coe/rL/olL ysodaq
A WA ZA 000 ey Jelwsid dyoed - 0101 L840 ¢/l 0cocivi/olL ysodaq
AR 7V 19°Ch 9y Jelwsid dulded - 0101 SOUEB]SISSY Sjey 0z0¢/¥L/0L ysodag
6%°092'05- 82'6LE'C- ayQ Jelweld dyded - 0101 09y lueg 020z/vL/0L usodaq
LT L6 - 9€¥9.- reyp Jelwelid ouded - 0L0L 02/82/6 - 8¢/8 SWO0ASY Yed Ajunwuwio) 0coz/eL/oL usodaq
G891 L 000 oY) Jelwsld dulded - 0L0L Z¢J/Ylo 2/1L 0c0z/eLioL ysodag
G8'9/1'LY- 000 ey Jalweld dyided - 0LOL L 18YlO ¢/1L 0c0z/eLiolL ysodaq
G8'9LL L~ 816 9y Jelsid d4Ided - 0101 aduelsissy aley 0c0¢e/cL/ol usodeQg
€0'98L Ly 92601~ TeyD Jelwaid diioed - 0LOL 09y lueg 020e/€L/01 usodeQ
L0790y ¥Gccl YD Jelwald dyioed - 0LOI ¢J/4yl0 ¢/t 0c0c/eLiol usodag
LE'66L LY- 00°0 TayD Jelwivid duided - 0101 L 48410 /1 0coe/cLiol usode(
LE'6OL LI~ £8°96¢ ey Jelwald ouloed - 0101 90UElsISsY aley 0202/21/01 usodeq
Y1965 Ly~ L ovL's- ey Jelwsld diioed - 0101 08y lueg 0coercL/oL usodeq
20958 L- 000 Ay Jelwald dued - 0101 219410 2/} 0goc/LL/oL ysodag
20'958 Ly~ 0070 rayD Jelweld duded - 0L0L L 18U30 ¢/1 0coe/LLioL ysoda(
Z0'9G8 L~ 000 oy Jelwsld dylded - 0LOL |souelsIssy ajey 0zoZ/LL/oL ysodeq
20'968" Ly~ 056~ Oy Jolwald dyoed - 0101 09y lueg 0zoz/LL/oL ysodeq
s ove' L ol'6%- Oy Jolwield dyoed - 0LoL ¢48U0 ¢/1 0c0z/0L/0L ysodaq
Ty L6L L Y- 000 TeYD JalLid dyioed - 0LoL L 49Yl10 2/1L 0coz/oL/ol ysodaq
v L6L V- 06°L ey Jalwaid outded - gLOL 9oUelSISSY 8jey 0coz/oL/ok usodaQ
E66L Ly v.892'v- eyQ Jojwisid dyloed - OLOL 09y lueg 0coc/oL/ol usoda(
85°0€5'2¢- 000 "rayQ Jelweid oyioed - 0L0L 248410 ¢/l 0202/60/01 usodeq
8G°0€G'¢€- 000 ayQ elweid d4ided - 0L0L } 18YJ0 2/l 020z/60/01 nsodag
85'0€S'L¢- 000 ey Jelweld oyioed - 0LOL aduelsissy sjey 020¢/60/0} ysodaq
8G'0€5'2€- 9G°ELp- 8y Jelwsid dyioed - 0LOL J9Y lueg 020¢/60/01 ¥sodag
Z0°/G0'L¢- 80°G01 oYY Jsiaid duided - 0101 Zl{ulo ¢/ 0202/80/0L usodaq
0L'eoL'Le- 000 TTeyQ Jslwaid duided - 0101 L 1BYI0 2/1 0202/80/01 usodeq
0L'zoL'Le- (A4 TayQ Jsjwisid duioed - 0101 2JuelsISsy sjey 020¢/80/01 ¥sodag
eveele- 68°L¥G'L- TT9yQ Jslwald duloed - 0LOL 09y lueg 0¢0¢/80/01 usode(
€¥'929'Ge- Gl'9gl'l- reyQ Jelwald diioed - 0101 XYL d34dNo23S ¥HND - 0920V §680:4 0202/80/01 usodag
82°0v6'L2- 86°601 Ay Jelwsld dyided - 0101 248410 2/1L 0202/20/01 usodaqg
aouejeq junowy )idg OWIdN ajeq adA}
0202 1990320
pun4 Aq sjisodag 02Ivo/LL

JouIsIq S991A19G AJunwiwo) yoeag ejIAY



¢ abeq

L2661 12°66.- "'ByQ Jelwald ouloed - 0L0L o8y I8l M 0z0z/1L0/0L usodaQg

J9)BM

£1'96¢'c- €1-96¢e- 91SEM PliOS [ejoL
£1°96¢€'e- €1'96€'C- reyQ Jelwsld ayloed - 0LOL MS 894 881yduel4 SUoONOBUUOD SISeA 020¢/ce/ol ysodeQ

2)SEM PlioS

61°6.9°6L- 61'6.9°64- Aiejueg jejo)
61°629'62- 610 YD Jelwald oyioed - 0LOL 2By 2/ 0c0z/6zg/0L ysodeq
8€'6.9'6/- 000 ey Jelweld oyioed - 0LOL L 1B8Y0 2/1 0z0z/62/01 usodeq
8€°6.9'6.- 81’6 TayQ Jsiwald duloed - 0L0L 2ouelsissy asley 02oc/ez/0L wsodag
95°889°6.- SLLLL- YY) Jviwald dyloed - 0L0L 09y lueg 0coe/6e/0L ysodeq
18°0.5'64- 00°0 "ayQ Jelweid oyloed - 0L0L Z2484l0 ¢/ 0202/L2/01 ysodeqQ
18°0.G6'64- 000 “ayQ Jolwsid dylded - 0LOL L Y10 T/l 020¢/Lc/0) ysodaq
18°0.G'64- Lr'9l 9y JelwLid Jyided - 0L0L aoue)siIssy ajey 0coc/Le/oL usodaq
8C°18G'6.- 06°G89- YD Jolwisld duided - QLOL 09y lueg 020c/L2/0l usodag
8€°100'6.- G2 e0e'L- eYQ Jejwisid duided - 0101 XV1 d3dNd3S Jddno - 0920°v S680:4 020¢2/9¢/01 IisodaQ
€1'669'L4- €6'1LS YD Jelwald duided - 0LOL ¢48Ul0 ¢/1 020¢2/9z2/01 NsodaqQ
90'16L'} .- 000 ey) Jelweld dulded - 0LOL L 18ylo g/l 0202/92/01 usodag
90'LGL L 2- ¥S've ey) JelwLid Jyided - 0101 9ouE)sIsSsy sjey 0c0¢/9¢/01 ysodeg
09'G2.L° 12" [ANAAN 8y J8lweid dyided - 0LOL 09y lueg 0c0z/9¢/0L ysodaq
8826912 000 YD JBlWBid Juioed - 0L0L rAED o XA 020g/5Z/0L usodeq
8825914 000 TeyD Jelwsid ouioed - 0LOL L BYI0 271 0c0Z/sz/oL usodeq
882591 L- L9°¢2L “reyQ Jelweld oyioed - 0L0L aouelsissy ajey 0coe/sz/oL ysodeQ
GG'GO9°LL- ¥e€9- T'eyQ Jslwisld ouloed - 0LOI 08y lueg 0z0z/sz/oL ¥sodag
L2'209'}L- 000 ey Jelwald duioed - 0101 218410 2/1 0202/v2/0lL usodagQ
L2209} .- 00°0 ey Jelwald oyed - 0LoL L 18U10 Z/1 0202/¥2/01 usoda(
12209'LL- 00°0 YD Jelwald dy1oed - 0101 BoUE]sIsSY aley 0coeive/ol ¥sodsg
L2209 .- 000 ayQ Jslwiald dyloed - 0L0L o8y lueg 020c/ve/ol ysodeq
12'209'LL- 000 “8yQ Jelwald Jyloed - QLOL ¢4RUI0 2/1L 0c0¢/ce/oL ysodaq
12720912 000 YD Jelweld duided - 0LOL L IBYI0 ¢/} 0coe/ze/ol usodaq
L2209 .- LS¥L ey Jeiwsld duided - 0L0L SOUE)SISSY ajey 0coe/ez/ol usodag
81°919'LL- L€'20Z 1" ey Jsiweid dyived - 0L0L 09y lueg 0c0z/ee/ob JsodaQ
yyivol- e eyQ Jelwald duloed - 0LOL ¢4PY0 ¢/l 0c0z/ie/ol ysodeq
68°9LY'0L- 000 rayQ Jelweld duided - 0LOL L840 2/l 0c0¢/12/01 nsodaqQ
68'9L¥'0L- ¥9°0€1 TeyQ Jelweld Juloed - QL0L usy yoeaq e|iny / Ae@ uyor punyey DD 020e/1L2/ol ysodag
€5 .v5'0L- 90291~ ey Jolweld aytoed - 0LOL 09y lueg 0c0z/Le/ol ysodaQ
y°08¢'0L- [4A*R4 ey Jelwsid oyioed - 0101 Z48yi0 Z/1L 0202/0zZ/01 usodeg
66'v8E'0.- 000 TeYD JelWaid duioed - 0L0L 1 J8yI0 2/L 0202/02/01 usodaq
6618204 9€°GL “tayD Jelweld auided - 0101 aoue)sIssy ajey 020zZ/02/01 usode(
SE00v'0.- 0L vEE - YD J8luwiald dyioed - gLOI 09y lueg 0202/02/01 ysodeq
5959099~ 91'666'01- TTaYQ Jslwiald dued - 0104 9)SeM - I d3S L ZAd JOL 0202/61/01 usodeq
61'990°65- ¥8'8- TTaYQ Jslwald Juided - 0101 ¢BU0 ¢/l 0coZ/eL/0l usoda(
GE 2G0'GG- 000 ey Jelwald dyioed - 0L0L L 48YjO 2/1 0202/61/01 usodeq

aouejeg unowy nds owap ajeq adA)

0202 4940320

pun4dg >n mu_mon_wn_ 0Z/voiLE

JoLISIg S92IAISS AJlUNWWO) yoeag elIAY



¢ abed

0€'¥69'61- ev'zvl'o- 8y Jalwald oyoed - 01O} o8y JeleM 0z0Z/zL/0L  wsodeq
L8°1S6'CL- 000 '8y Jojwald ooed - 0101 24840 /L 020Z/LL/0L  wsodaQ
L8°1S6'TL- 000 "9y Jelwald oyoed - 010 L JBWO Z/) 020z/LL/0L  wsodeq
18'156'21L- 000 '8yQ Jalwaid oyioed - 0LO} aouelsissy sley 0z0z/LL/0L  wsodeq
L8'156'C)- 88" LY "8y Jalwald dlyloed - 0L0) 09y Jojem 020Z/L1/0L  WsodeQ
66°€06°C}- 00'0 "'8yQ Joleld oyIoed - 0LOL Z10Ul0 Z/1 0z0z/0L/0L  Wsodeq
66°€06'CL- 000 "8y Jalwald olyioed - 010} | J8UI0 Z/1 020Z/0L/0L  wsodeq
66°'€06°CL- 85'6 "9yD JelWdld Ooed - 0LOL 9oUBSISSY Bley 0z0z/0L/0L  wsodeq
LSELBTL- 61°629°L- "ayD Jalwiald oIoed - 01O 09y Jojem 020Z/0L/0y  ¥sodaQ
8L/8T )}~ 00°0 "8yQ Jelwald ooed - 0LOL zPyo z/) 0202/60/01  ¥sodeQ
81182'}1- 00°0 "8y Jelwald oyived - 0104 | oo z/L 020z/60/0L  Wsodeg
8L18Z°})- 000 " 8yQ Jolald Ooed - 0L0L souelsissy ejey 0202/60/01  wsodeQ
8118211~ ¥S 06" "8y Jelwald dyived - 010} ooy JoleM 0202/60/01  ¥sodeQ
¥2'€8201- 000 "ayQ Jejweld oyived - 0104 Z19W0 /L 0202/80/04  ¥sodeq
¥2'€8L°01- 000 "8y Jelweld dYIoed - 0101 L 18UI0 Z/1 0202/80/0L  WsodaQ
¥Z'€8L'01- S.e8 9y Jelweld oYioed - 010} aouejsissy ajey 0202/80/01  wsodeQ
6699801~ 8L V6G'L- aYQ Jolwald oyived - 010} o0y JeleM 0202/80/01  wsodeq
18'2L2'6 G6'LY6'L- "8yQ Jalwald oyioed - 0LOL 0" S)UB ‘GZ" JeleM 0L * UBD - | # dINI HOVIE YTIAY - 0920:V 5680:4 0202/80/0L  ¥sodaq
98'vee L 000 "8y Jelwiald oYloed - 0LOL 24840 /L 020z/20/01L  wsodaQ
98'vee L 000 *"8Yd Jolweld oyioed - 010 L 48O /L 020z/.0/0)  WsodaQ
98'vZe'L- 0T’ L1 9Yd JolWdld dYioed - 0LOL QouejsISsY sjey 0202/20/0L  ¥sodeq
909" 2~ G198 aYd JolWeld oyioed - 0101 29y JsjeM 0202/20/01  WsodsQ
16659 000 "8y Jalald oyioed - 0LOL Z U0 2/1 020Z/90/01  wsode@
166519 000 "8yQ Jalwald oyIoed - 0104 L8y Z/L 0202/90/01  wsodaeQ
16'65Y"9- 6e'9z " ayQ Jelwald ouved - 0101 aoue)sissy ejey 020Z/90/01  usodaQ
92'98%'9- 65°G0L L "8UQ Jalwald dyioed - 0101 29y Jeje M 0202/90/04  ¥sodeQ
L9°08LY- 000 "8y Jelweld olyioed - 01O} ZBYo Z/L 0202/S0/0}  WsodaQ
1908y 000 "8y Jolwald OIoed - 010} L 18U0 2/1 0202/S0/0L  Wsodag
L9°08L't- 000 "9y Jolwald dYioed - 0L0L JoUESISSY djey 0202/50/0L  ¥sodaQ
19°08L't- AN "8y Jejweld oyoed - 010} 00y JoleM 0202/50/01  ¥sodag
66129t 000 “"9yD Jolwald ouived - 0101 Z19W0 Z/1 0202/70/01  wsodaQ
S5 L29't- 00°0 a0 Jelweld SYved - 010} L JBWO Z/L 0202/70/0L  Wsodag
68129y z8'zL 9y Jolwdld SUIdkd - 010 souElsISsY ajey 0202/%0/0L  WsodaQ
LEVED' b~ Ly vee- 9y Jolwald oYioed - 010 00y JoleM 0202/70/0L  ¥sodaQ
06°6€2'- 000 "8y Jalwald oyioed - 010 Z8UI0 Z/1 020Z/€0/0L  wsode@
06'6€2'- 000 ayQ Jalwaid oyoed - 0LO} L 18O 2/} 0202/€0/0)  WsodaQ
06'6€2"v- 85'6 8y Jolwald oyed - 0104 aouejsissy ajey 020Z/€0/0L  WsodeQ
8Y' 6V b 2€'8L€°}- 8y JalWwald OYved - 01Ok 29y Jeje M 020Z/€0/0L  Wsodaq
91118 €8 LLL L 9YQ JalWisld JIded - 01O} 0" SIUOIT ‘GZ" JOIeM ‘0L * UBD - L # dWI HOVIE VTIAY - 0920V $680:4 020z/20/0L  wsodeQ
€E6GLL- 000 “"9UD JalWdId dYived - 0LOL Z4euo 2/1 0202/20/0L  WsodeQ
€€'6G1 L 000 "ayQ Jelwald oioed - 010} L JPUI0 271 020Z/20/0L  wsodeQ
€E6GL L z8'el " 8yQ Jelwald oUioed - 0LOL aouelsIssyY ajey 020Z/20/01L  ¥sodeq
SLZLLL- Ly'v6e- "ayQ Jeilwald olioed - 0LOL 09y JoJe M 0202/20/0L  ¥sodeQ
89101 00°0 “'8yd Jalwald doed - 010L zeUW0o 21 0202/L0/01  wsodeQ
89°LLL- 000 "9y Jolwald oUived - 010} | 18U10 Z/1 0202/L0/0L  ¥sodeQ
89°LLL- 691 "ayQ Jelwald duoed - 01O} B0UElSISSY ajey 0202/10/0L  WsodaQ
aouejeg junowy ydg oway ayeq adAy
0202 4990320
pun4 Aq sjisodaq 02/v0/1L

12131 S82IAI8G AJUNWIWo) Yoeag elIAY



G abeg

+8°085 '8~ 000 *"aUQ Jolwdid OoRd - 0LOL Z8Ul0 Z/L 0202/cz/0L  wsodeq
¥8°085'8h- 000 “eyQ Jelwald ouoed - 0LO} L 180 /) 0z0z/zz/oL  wsodeq
8°085'8%- ov'ze "8yQ Jolald oyved - 0LOL aouejsissy sjey 020Z/z/0L  WsodeQ
¥2'€09'8Y- LL0ZL L ""8YQ Jellaid dyved - 0LOL 29y Jojem 020z/¢z/iob  WsodeQ
€528y Lb- 000 ""8yQ Jalwaid duIved - 0LOL Zu0 Z/L 020Z/1Z/0L  WsodeQ
€528y L 000 "ayQ selaid oyoed - 0L0L Loy Z/L 0202/12/01  wsodeQ
€528V L~ 18yl ey Jalweld ouoed - 010} usy yoeag e|iny / Aeq uyor punjey 00 020z/Le/0L  wsode@
V€ 165 Lt §G'GGL- ey Jelwald ouoed - 010 09y Jaje M 0z0Z/lziol  wsodeq
6L Lyt Ly 000 ey Jelwald ouoed - 0L0b Zewo 2/l 0202/0z/0L  ¥sodeQ
6L Lrv' Ly 00°0 "ayQ Jelwald oioed - 0LOL L W0 Z/L 0z0z/0z/0L  wsodeq
6L LbY Ly €9°€L ""8yQ Jelweld ooed - 0LOL souelsIssy ajey 020¢/0z/0L  ¥sodeQ
V' SSY Lb- 99°0L0'€l-  ""8YD Jelwald dyIoed - 0401 09y Joje 0202/02/01  wsodaQ
9L vhy've- 12892 8D Jelwsid ouoed - 010k SO" SO ‘ST JeleM *0L * UBD - | # MdINI - AN d3S LZAL 401 020e/6L/0L  wsodsg
S0'929'L€- 000 "ayQ Jeiwald ouoed - 0LOL Z18Wo Z/1 020z/6L/0L  usodeg
S0°929')€- 000 “'ayQ Jelwald oyoed - 0LOL L 38U /L 020z/64/0L  ¥sodaQ
S0°9.9'Le- 000 9D Jelwdid duoRd - 0LOL soue)sIssy ajey 020z/64/0L  Wsodeg
S0'9/9'1¢- 02Z'v0¢- 9yQ Jolwdid ouioed - 0L0) o0y Jeje 020z/6L/0L  Wsodag
g8 LLE 1E- 000 "'ayQ Jalald oyioed - 0LO ZI8W0 /b 020Z/8L/0L  wsodeq
G8LLE LE- 000 "'ayQ Jelweld oUioed - 0LOL L1y z/1 0z0z/8L/0L  Wsodeq
g8 LLe LE- ¥8'9¢ "'8yQ Jalwald ouoed - 0LOL aoue)sissy ajey 020z/8L/0L  wsodeg
69'80%'L€- 88°€6L V- '8y Jelweld oyioed - 010 09y Joje 0z0z/gL/0L  WsodeQ
18'v19'02- 000 '8y Jalweld duioed - 0LOL Zeuo z/ 0Z0zZ/9L/0L  Wsode@
18'719'92- 000 "8y Jalwid dWEd - 0101 L Joyo /L 0202/91/0L  wsode@
18'¥19°92- 99yl ey Jslweid ouoed - 0L0L aouEjsISsy djey 0202/9L/0L  ¥sodeQ
L¥'629'9¢- 6¥'962- "'ayQ Jelwald oWoed - 0LOL 08y Je)e 0Z0z/9L/04  ¥sode(
86'2€€'92- 00°0 ""ayQ Jelwald duioed - OLO} zZeyo z/) 0202/5L/0L  wsodeQ
86'2€€°'9Z- 000 "ayQ Jelwald ooed - 0LOL L 180 /L 0202/GL/01  wsodeq
86'2€€'9z 000 "ayQ Jolwaid ouoed - 0LOL aouEjsIssy ajey 0z0z/51/0L  ¥sodeg
86'2€€'9Z- 09°99¢- "8y Jelwald duoed - 0L0L o8 Joje 0202/SHOL  wsodaQ
8€'996'GZ- 09°9¥S "'8yQ Jelwald JUvEd - 0LOL 02/82/6 - 82/8 Wo0As8y Yed Ajunwwod Ajpjesedes HOV paxood 0Z/€L/0) 0Z0Z/vLi0L  wsodeg
86215'92- or'€L0'L ayD Jelweld oyioed - 0101 02/82/6 - 82/8 uonebiu) 15 Juoi4 Ajsjesedes HOY paxoog 0z/EL/0L 0z02Z/7L/0L  wsodaQ
8€'925'L¢- £5°891'1 "'8UD Jelwdid oyioed - 010} 02/82/6 - 8¢/8 uonebul| uenr ueg Ajpjeiedss HOY PaX00g 0Z/EL/0L 0z0z/¥1/0L  wsodaq
1616682 €9°Lze- “'ayQ Jelwaid dyved - 0LO} 2180 /L 020Z/7L/0L  Wsodag
82°€.9'8¢- 000 "'8yQ Jelwald oyved - 0LO} L 18O /i 020Z/7L/0L  Wsodag
82°€L9'8T- z8'C) '8y Jaiwald oYoed - 0LOL aoue)sissy ejey 0Z0Z/vLi0L  wsodeg
01°989'82Z- 11'6.8'G- '8y Jojwald ouoed - 0LOL 29y Jeje 020T/vLi0L  Wsodeg
66°908'2Z- Or'€L0‘L- "8y Jolwaid oyioed - 0LOL 02/82/6 - 82/8 uonebiu| 1S juoi 0coz/eL/oL  wsodaq
65°€6L L2 09°'9%S- ""ayQ Jalald duloed - 0LOL 02/82/6 - 8Z/8 SWOONSAY Yed Aunwiwo) 020Z/€Li0L  WsodeQ
66'9¥Z'L2- €5°89%'L- '8y Jelwaid duoed - 010b 02/82/6 - 82/8 uoneblu| uenr ueg 020zZ/€L/I0L  Wsodeq
v'8LL'6L- 000 "ayQ Jalwaid dioed - 0LOL Z U0 2/L 020z/€L/i0L  wsodeq
9v'8LL61- 000 "'ayQ Jeliaid doed - 0LOL L J8yI0 2/L 020Z/€H/0L  WsodeQ
or'8.L'61- 8.02 ""ayQ JoldId dutoed - 0LOL souEjsISsY djey 0202/€L/0L  ¥sodeQ
¥Z'66L'61- AN AN ""ayQ Jelwiald doed - 0LOL 09y J9lEM 0z0zZ/EL/0L  wsodeq
ZL'159'61- 000 "'ayQ Jelwaid ooed - 0104 Z1800 Z/1 0202/zL/0L  wsodeq
ZL'159'61- 000 "ayQ Jolwald dYed - 0LOL | 100 /L 020z/z1/0L  wsodaQ
ZL'159'6)- 8LeY "'ayQ JolwdId dYoed - 0LOL 8oUB)sISSY ajey 0z0z/zH0L  usodaQ
aouejeg junowy uds oW aeq adA)
0202 42403120
pung Aq syisodaq 0Z/voiLL

10L1SI $991A19S AJIUunwwo) yoseag ejIAy



g abed

19°89Z°091- £9°892°091- V101
10712825 L0°12€'25" 1s)eM e10L
L0'12€°2S- 000 “8yQ Jalwald oyved - 0L0L Z14I0 21 0z0z/62/0L  ¥sodeQ
L0'12E°TS- 00'0 "8y Jelweld oyved - 010} L 18YI0 Z/1 0z0z/6z/0L  ¥sodeg
L0°12€'2S" 81702 "8y Jelwald dyioed - 0L0L souejsIssY aley 0coz/6z/0L  wsode@
G8'LYe TS 20°00z- “'8UQ Jalwaid dYved - 0LOL 09y JSle M 020z/6Z/0L  Wsodeg
€8°LYL e 000 8yd Jelwald oved - 010} Z 4oUl0 Z/1 0z0z/2z/0L  wsodeg
€8Iyl 2s 000 8y Jalwald oYved - 0401 L 18410 2/} 0z0zZ/Lz/oL  wsodeq
€8'LyL'2s 86°L€ 8y Jajwald dyived - 0LOL aouE)SISSY Bjey 020Z/L2/0L  wsodsQ
18'ELL'TS ST 98- "8y Jalwaid duided - 0L0L 00y JOjlEM 020Z/.2/0b  WsodeQ
99°60€' 15" 69'8€8'L- "rayQ Jeilald oyloed - 0101 0" SIBIN ‘Gz J9jeM ‘0L~ U9D - | # dWI HOV3E YAV - 0920V $680:4 020Z/92/0L  WsodaQ
L8'0LY'6Y- 000 ey Jelweld oyved - 0L0L Z4euI0 /1 020z/9z/0L  WsodsQ
18°0L1'6b- 000 "8y Jolwald duIoed - 0L0L L 49410 /1 0202/9z/0L  wsodeq
18°0L1'6b- S¥'.€ “8yQ Jellald Jlioed - 0LOL aoue)sissy ajey 0202/9z/0L  Wsodeq
Z€'805 61 82°0€L- "8y Jalald oded - 0LOL 20y Jeje 020Z/9¢/0L  WsodeQ
v0'8LL'8b- 000 "8y Jellald OUided - OLOL zZ4uo e/ 020z/Se/0L  wsods@
v0'8L.L'8Y- 000 “"8yQ JalRld dUIoed - 0LOL L 49410 2/1 020Z/Sz/0L  wsods@
¥0'8LL'8Y- z8'CL "9UQ JaIWBId JUIoed - 0LOL souelsissy sjey 0z0Z/Sz/0L  wsoded
98'06.'8Y- 80'v6- "8UQ JalWdld dioed - 0L0L o8y Jeje M 020Z/5Z/0L  ¥sodeg
81°969'8b- v6GLL- “ayD Jalwdld doed - 0101 zuo T/ 020Z/vzi0L  WsodeQ
¥8°085'8Y- 000 "9y JoIWBId OO - 0401 L 19430 2/1 020Z/vzioL  ¥sodeQ
8'085'8Y- 000 “"ayQ Jelwald oloed - 0L01 aoUEsISSY sjey 020Z/vzioL  Wsodeq
8'085'8Y- 000 "8y Jelweld oytoed - 010} ooy Jaje 0z0ZiveioL  wWsode(
aouejeg unowy yids LITETT ajeq adAy
0202 4890390
pund Aq syisodaq 0zZ/0/L1

JoUISIg S891AI9G AJlUNWWO) yoeaqg eIy



FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT Statement
www.frm-ops.com CA Lic #937346

OPERATIONS . MAINTENANCE . MECHANICAL Date
2385 Precision Drive
Arroyo Grande, CA 93420 11/2/20

Phone # 805.597.7100 Fax # 805.597.7171
California Certified Small Business #1120142

To:

Avila Beach Community Services District
P.0. Box 309

100 San Luis Street

Avila Beach, CA 93424

Amount Due Amount Enc.

$45,854.37

Transaction Amount Balance

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint-
10/31/20 |INV #F20063. Orig. Amount $19,591.88. 19,591.88 19,591.88

348F11001 Monthly OPS/Maint:348FW11001
Water:348AW17001 Add Services water-

10/23/20 |INV #A19996. Orig. Amount $69.15. 69.15 19,661.03
W19552 First Street Lift Station Pumps, S-

06/24/20 |INV #W19552. Orig. Amount $549.50. 6.50 19,667.53

08/07/20 |PMT #2743. -6.50 19,661.03

W19801 Secondary Clarifier #2-
09/30/20 |INV #W198041. Orig. Amount $15,532.75. 15,632.75 35,193.78

W19902 Upper Eyewash Station Replacement-
10/27/20 |INV #W19902. Orig. Amount $1,182.52, 1,182.52 36,376.30

W19969 Sec #2 diagnosis & fabricate parts-
09/30/20 |INV #W19969. Orig. Amount $9,478.07. 9,478.07 45,854.37

CURRENT 1-30 DAYS PAST 31-60 DAYS PAST  61-90 DAYS PAST OVER 90 DAYS y———

DUE DUE DUE PAST DUE

$45,854.37

20,843.55 25,010.82







AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors .
=)

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager ( rf' 7 Zﬁb )

DATE: November 10, 2020

SUBJECT:  General Manager/District Engineer Report

Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee and Advisory Committee
The Zone 3 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) met on Wednesday November 4th via computer

(“GoToMeeting”) and teleconference. The agenda packet for the meeting is attached to this staff report.
As of this writing Lopez Lake is at an elevation of 482.5 feet, is at 42% of capacity and has
approximately 20,925 acre feet of water in storage (700 AF less than a month ago). The key topics for
the TAC continue to be the proposed changes to the Zone 3 Water Contract; and potential de-
commissioning of the terminal reservoir.

Office of Emergency Services - Community Power Resiliency Allocation to Special Districts Grant
Staff applied for a $245,000 grant from the State Office of Emergency Services to help off-set the costs
of a new back-up generator that is planned to be installed as part of the wastewater treatment plant
improvement project. Notification of the grant availability came in on October 9, 2020 and the grant
applications were due by October 30, 2020. Staff completed the application forms in-house and we have
notification that OES has received the District’s application. Applicants will be advised of their
application status by the middle of 2021. The Grant Program Synopsis and application outline is
provided as an attachment to this report.

Notice of Preparation of an Initial Study for Lopez Water Project Contract Changes (Project)

On October 29, 2020, the San Luis Obispo County Publics Works Department issued a Notice of
Preparation of an Initial Study for the Project. The Initial Study is being prepared to evaluate the
potential for significant impacts from the Project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA). Responses and comments are due back to the County no later than December 4, 2020. The
Notice of Preparation Memo and Project Description are provided as an attachment to this report.




ZONE 3 TECHNICAL ADVISORY
COMMITTEE
Wednesday Nov 4, 2020
9:00 - 11:00 am

Phone line: +1 (5§71) 317-3122
Access Code: 305-539-189
OR
Webinar: https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/305539189

AGENDA

. Announcements All
o Urban Water Management Plan

=S

2. General Operations and Water Report Jill Ogren
e Summary Notes - October
e Monthly Operations Report — October
o Lopez Storage Projections — New Chart

3. FY 21/22 Proposed CIP Budget David Spiegel

4. Capital Improvement Project Update

¢ Cathodic Protection Project Phasing Desiree Bravo
e Terminal Dam
5. Cloudseeding Winter 20/21 Update Jill Ogren
6. Contract Changes Update Jill Ogren

e Stored Lopez Water

7. Future Agenda items? All
¢ AG Creek GSP Grant
¢ HCP/Instream Studies
¢ Stored State Water in Lopez - Evaporation

e Zone 3 Boundary Change

Attachments: Distributed separately

Summary Notes — October

Lopez Monthly Operations Report — October
Lopez Storage Projections Chart

Proposed FY 21/22 CIP Project Budget
Cathodic Protection Repair Phasing Options

moowy»

Next Meeting Date: December 9, 2020



ZONE 3
, TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
'l-l WEDNESDAY October 14, 2020 (9:00-11:00 AM)
Via Goto Meeting due to COVID-19 Protocol
SUMMARY NOTES - DRAFT

Attendees via GoTo Meeting: Shane Taylor (Arroyo Grande), Ben Fine (Pismo), Greg Ray (Grover Beach), Will Clemens (OCSD),
Brad Hagemann (ABCSD), Dan Migliazzo (San Miguelito), Vard Ikeda, John Wallace, Dan Heimel (WSC Inc.), Jill Ogren (PW Dept),
Mark Chiaramonte (Utilities Div. Mgr), Jenny Williamson (LWTP).

1. Announcements —
o Oceano protest hearing for Prop 218 scheduled for tonight, October 14th.
 County Board of Supervisors approved the Tesla Battery for Lopez WTP. Tesla was also approved for
the SGIP money. A meeting will be scheduled within the next week or two between Tesla and Craig
Kesler to discuss how the battery will work during peak hours at the Lopez plant.

2. Advisory Committee — At Large Member
o Discussion took place of the applicants/qualifications for recommendation to fill the Member at
Large Member vacancy created when Jim Garing moved away. TAC recommended Ron
Reilly to fill the Member At Large vacancy with Matthew Scrudato as the Alternate.

3. General Operations and Water Supply Report -

e Craig Kesler reported the Lake Elev. = 483.61 ft, Storage = 21,501 AF @ 44% Capacity. Downstream
releases are at 1.9 MGD (instantaneous reading); WTP at 4.5 MGD; SWP at 0.7 MGD. Rainfall to date
0.06 inches.

e No comment on September Summary Notes.

¢ The October Monthly Operations Report was reviewed.

e The Storage Projections Chart was reviewed. It was noted that the storage is getting close the to
20,000 AF trigger point for the LRRP. A discussion on initiating the LRRP will be scheduled once long-
range projections predict if it will be a dry or wet winter. New chart is in progress that will help to predict
storage levels more accurately.

¢ Mike Boyce, Project Manager for the AG Creek Project, gave clearance for downstream releases to
increase starting today, October 14, as work has completed for the project. Downstream releases will
be increase from 1.9 to 2.5 MGD today, another increase will be made on Friday, October 16", to 3.1
MGD, and once more on Monday, October 19™, to 3.6 MGD.

4. Cloudseeding Winter 20/21 Update

e On November 17t, 2021 cloudseeding program will be presented to the Board of Supervisors for
approval. Per the project agreement, approval by the Board of Supervisors is needed for each year's
program along with the operations plan for the year. A lease agreement between the County and City of
Arroyo Grande for the new ground seeding site in City of Arroyo Grande will also be presented for
approval.

e For the 2021 year there will be ground seeding only, no air-based seeding. The decision was based on
the presentation provided by North American Weather Consulting to TAC showing ground seeding
being more effective and cost efficient than air-based seeding due to the weather patterns for Zone 3.

¢ Two sites will be utilized for ground seeding: Arroyo Grande Tank Site (if lease approved) and Berros
Peak located east of Nipomo (existing Santa Barbara County site) . Cold Canyon Landfill is potentially
being considered for a third potential ground site but not for this year.

¢ Scheduled to start cloudseeding program on December 1t



5. Contract Changes Update —

Updates provided on the status of the Contract Changes and progress on the Notice of
Preparation (NOP) of the CEQA document.

Keith Miller and the Environmental Division will be posting the NOP within a couple of weeks.
Keith reached out to National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) and provided the project
description. There was a positive response and NMFS feels that it will allow for more flexibility
for agencies. Erica Stuckey, County Legal Counsel, is currently reviewing the project
description as well and the County is waiting for her response. Initial review is supportive with
language modifications.

6. Capital Improvement Project Update
e TAC was notified that November's meeting will have an agenda item to discuss FY 21/22

budget for Capital Improvement Projects (CIP).

Updates provided on current projects and discussion on unbudgeted projects concerning the
Sludge Bed Curtain Wall Rehabilitation and the Aqueous Ammonia Room (see October
agenda packet attachment).

Discussion on the Cathodic Protection Project Options. Desiree Bravo presented the overall
scope of the repairs needed and a budgetary estimate of $850,000 (See Oct.Agenda
attachment). Requested input from TAC to determine how much of the repair do they want to
do since this is an expensive project and there is no budget in FY 20/21. More refined
estimates will be obtained after scope identified. TAC recommends phasing the work due to
estimated costs but agreed on the scope of repairs provided. Staff will return with a
phasing options and cost plan in November.

7. Terminal Dam — Update
o County Water Quality Manager, Faith Zenker, discussed the water quality considerations of

de-commissioning the terminal dam and presented a PowerPoint presentation on watershed

vulnerabilities. Next Steps:
» Review with the State, the Recreation Guidelines for consideration of Lopez Lake as

a direct source of water for Lopez WTP as a body contact reservoir.
= Calculate money to bring reservoir into compliance with continued recreation use
and direct use of water from the lake.
— Additional WQ monitoring
Additional Recreation Staff
Additional wastewater plant requirements
— Swim area monitoring
— Additional algae treatment chemicals
= Evaluate direct use of Lopez Lake water for treatability at the plant.
— Low Dissolved Oxygen
— Elevated iron and manganese
— Algae
Other options discussion - Can we lower terminal reservoir operating level to DSOD suggested
level and install a pump to continue to feed water to the plant and possibly not have to retrofit
the terminal reservoir? This option is not feasible according to the WTP operators due to the
plant’s operational requirements to maintain levels higher than what DSOD suggests.

¢ Discussion on the Seismic Remediation Alternatives. Discussed next steps in light of WQL

Managers presentation. Staff is recommending moving forward with getting the necessary
Geotechnical testing information on the Terminal Dam before going to much further on the De-



commissioning of the terminal reservoir. Estimated cost is $300,000 only $30K in this year’s
budget, will need additional money if we want to pursue this year. Staff will be sending a letter
to DSOD outlining the Zone 3 work plan to complete Geotech work. TAC agreed to continue
forward with the Geotech study of the Terminal Dam.

8. Future Agenda Items —
e FY 20/21 Proposed CIP
¢ AG Creek GSP Grant/Groundwater Modeling Updates

¢ Stored State Water in Lopez — Evaporation
e Zone 3 Boundary Change

Next Meeting November 4, 2020

Summary Notes Prepared by Jenny Williamson



[ Jo [ advg

upupy

:Ag parurid jioday

IV 09 01 AV 0§ 1 Woy Yig[ Jequioydag uo jsanbay K1aalja(] 12)epm 218)§ [enuue 1121y pasiaal SO0 (7

“ououI s[y) 2Fesn SPPUEIL) 0L0LY oL PAIOBINS SEM [V (7'7 PUB YJUOLI SLy} 28BS 3]s S,0UED0() 0) PIppE
Sem 18317 UOAUE)) O] PAISANSP JV 0Z'Z JO [BI01 V NG WN) BUPY S2PUeID) 0£0Ly BIA 15310 uoAue)) o} satem panddns ouesaQ (|

PSHUIUIO])

‘[Teyures fof juasard 01 A|nf pue ‘sawvAldp zado] 10 Jussald o) [udy ‘1aem 1e1g Jof uasaid o) Arenuef st 21 01831,

0707 '€ 12quanoy ‘Kvpsanj

oapag [ Aq padaiua by
00°0 0 (1095 2108) ade(dg
[P'BEO( 8E5T {12£/129] 213® (O Z) aSEI[Y WEINSUMO(]|
900 0 fleyuey
%L Ty nd % 88607 (123} 3198 00T6 18 [I1y) SFeacig
L6t (393y) 2ouasayil S9T8Y (193] €276 18 |[n}) uonLAd[T e
Auq 0) Jvay | uopy suyy, suoneladQ me(q zado|

"109] Do

0£L°S 81 PIOIA 9JeS 190F 21QND 09 ‘£ 10 SUO][8S S} ‘STE = 100) 3108 3UC) "193J IO UL DAL SOLIAI[R( :9ION

ZIvEoM g4 as200 8O M BV
Biwurs 0 Z1YSO W 840 @8200) —_—
= L 530 0z, deg oz, By oz e Of, MR o Ao 02, 4y L1 ] 2.9 02, uep
02. %0 0z, deg oz, By oz.tnr 0z, ung oz, Aem 0z, sdy oz, 1=n 0z, 984 0z, uer E - = 0
= - - - = o [
i \—I_u iy |M 0 EI_ EI: mj _ L gl 8 L
S || S— _ o m | oot §
] )| - w® 3 o
.“. = | = = w E ——tom &
= 001 TH.082
(243 (.74
2BUSM 100 SIS SR 03 Apnuer oBrsy) Jmep snjdingHuUsLIeRRIg ZedoT) Jusselg 03 |Udy
€r0sz1 I3]B A JIBIS PAI0IS WU SIL I21B A\ 3)EIS PAICIS YIUO 158
0TLES 00129 |%6°66 18978 %ot | v99e | st lwrzs | soscer [wes | 9v86 [%9e9 | zweisz [luss | o169 |%zs [owice| oveiss | ovesin | vososy | oesy [IEIOL
31°8 %0'56 LEEIL %89 31’8 0z1 OJ[ANAA ues
7’81 %0'+8 8$'€E %L'8 9p'¢ or  Jl%bse | 6L98 %00 000 |%¥sE | 6L98 ||%00 000 |%09 | ¥L'v1 | 00's¥T | 000 00°86 SHT Z1VSD
LI'TST %6 101 LT619 %0P1 | 0068 809 Ml%e8e | £0'Z6S %00 000 |%¥99 | £0'265 §|%0°0 000 %L | L1'99 | 00'LpSE | 00'§S9 | 00'SSE | 268 yoeag owsld
6£'69 %915 | 09't9% |%0°0 000 |%I1'85 | 09v9r %00 000 |%L8 | 6£69 | 00006 | 00001 | 00'81E | 008 Yoeag I2A0I)
91'69 %0°001 | o009 %00 | 000 09 J|%EP9 | 9T 10v  [%90€ 92'86  |%0'001 | 00'€0¢ 1% 1T | 9169 [%0°0 000 | 00FZ9 | 00 1ZE | 0012l | €OF adsD ouea()
['127 %L'6S | OF'EEF] |%0°0 000 |%9'79 | ov'eerl §|%00 000 |%L6  forizcz) 0o'1ovz | 00711l | 00'116 | o6zz fRPUBID OAOLY
WUCA SIUL | soupalaQ Jsanbay a3ri0lg | sauaAla «_muu___,”w jsanbay % a3esy % a8esn) % 3desn % ages() % aBesn) | sorem p Ppatejaq
SaLrRAlRA dMS fenuuy Jo 9% a3es utafueq)|  dMS 109 | 9Besn | [enuny [ew], snjding uswIpnUR snding uewapnuy  [3IqelEAY | aisenbay | alem d0)0E0U07)
IEM 190, Junsatg o) Aienue QIO SIEL 1uesa1g o1 Judy YIUOR S1L, [0, | snpdmg | smiding | pug
SOLIDAI[R(] JIIBAN VIS SALIIAIR(T 131e AL zado| _

070T 1990120
1oday suoneixd( A[YIUON - 193lo1d zadoT - € auozZ

JOLISI(T IS PUEB [O13UOD) POO]] A1uno)) odsiqQ) S| ues




180J0N

o00'sss 4 | 000'siO'h 3 |000'MEZ'L % |000'sSL s| = s LTI $ | oL § $80°008'} $ | viod
000°SS $ | 000'ss $ | 000’562 s $ |(css'8si) L] BBO'SED'L | E28HC % 199'c9L $ | viol-8ns
a8l Taar _nm_. TaaL _ \— _ ._..coo.m— »_ _ w b3 Jof sepuel 4§ a-
” e . o " sansesay fuelly jo aszauawy
il ozg'loL s| Jomopy
(<18 © WEQ UiE 12 SisAiEuY AEqiseas AaeeaipAY weq Zado
aaL = L | = COUBLBIIGI RIS T 7 24 SoRE weg)
000'724 s| s | Apnis 1011d BUCZO
z80'9l & |000'5H s |ooost ¢ 000'1 s [ ] (susiod) ALV
sjepdwos 095'0) $]008'6 $ | 005’8 $ 005'6 s € ] Jaye1] duing
@jaduio 260°05 $ | ooL'gr 5 | ooL'oy $ ooL'sy $ ze Jetey paxiy iojaARIXT LW
- § |ooo'osr 5 |oo0'09L  § 00008} s e walsAg Loyely] apIXai] UoqieD)
s |29l slezos 8 €292} s o« duwnd ©3 epeubdn
3 [COV'ES $ | oor'es s 00L'eg 5 &2 189SEZHESS SINEWIPIGINE HOVH 919(08q0 8oBjdey
- — = - $ - $ ast ¥ Tiefine-UoN} Weralg pesd UogJE] saErny|
IR 000'5E - - $ [000sE s | o0o'se s sz 289907HZ95 TS sSAUBWRNY - 1UOLIIES] RIEM PaAGIi
= — = - - $ = s| - $ [ | uoisIeAI] eDEuIRIQ Peoy WO
0000v2  § - s| - ] s| $ | ooo'ovz s o sam 1l 832y - 6uauRg Aunaas JaleuIpeg 4iM|
000'05 L s = $ $ = $ | ao0'os. $ eg vy poxiy efiiag Jusuneal] JEss MaN]
1 | e (000'05} 5 s | o000 s] - s | oo0'0s $ | 00005 $ £t 899008 1)0650Y UG 1€ $5600Y 180G peac.duwl]
Lt | i (r12'25) s s |oiz'ss s [(soa'0)  § [609'0e $ | 000'09 $ n 69500 (z Aib) siezheuy epuouniny|
0 pawoyR Apnopaid spury ben| - - $ | 6v8'68 $ - $ | 6K8'68 $ | 000'081 [3 oL 919008 ubiseq ebeies) obeiols Juewdinb3|
LY ¢ Y%y s s |sizziL S |coziv  $|126%€5) $ | 000'0vL $ 9 9195624255 TiAING UON38101d IPOYIES
wEe ] 006 RS $ I LKOSETESS | Weq (BUjULSL Joj Aprig s § Gugse
— = = {628'681 s s |6e8 68 s 5 [k < | o006 000071 $ s Irastzuzes | 1L GlUBY D] WUBQ JIOARSaY [BURLIBL JO 1UBWISEASEY (HIMOARS,
— — e [ s| - s s| - s - aaL (3 SMMIN wiaq UIBK - 4OSQ JE g EmEs|
BN 6 SPINI TYL TN R ] E § [e8z06L  § $ latl'e $ | 000002 000002 $ & ShaStRIZSS weq uien - gOSa 4ed uoyeliiseau) EarsAud Aemidg)
V0 VIS Bukea U aeiRad o popsedy sanolloy § |zoe'es s| - s § |esees 000'SL § B sopeIbdn Aejeg|
000'0055 0 J0 %P "TT/12 1 Supury o 0 - g s 0 = 2
Papast Bugums 167G LR S 000'sS $ | o00'ss $ | oo'ss $ s | aoo'ss $ |ooo'ss  sliee $ | o00'ss s | 000'ss $ i 5a5011Nd 1UGWANDI paredioPUEUr)
Joj 90035 GORAID 0 A TR SUOLR pUry.
@ (YISETRSS un SPury Burumum 06} e
avitomg sofumys | SO N | ot gy | VOBBNE | (0TI0L0Z M) | (e 5 ) syt
szvEaz y2£z0z =124 R 19Bpnq Lzjpy | FHPHPLRET | Aueoseprmaun \Z20T | smamppuedi | D peacaddy| RS $2/020Z sawor
3244 Juﬂh_&nzx »i parouddy dopd 00f04d SILION
123ro¥d,
§1390N9 GILVIIDIINY - YVIA FUnind i139ang
Kepno jepdey
o005 $ |oo0'096 & | 000686 § | 000'S9L § [ ceesal $ 169'902'L s [rev'sor  § ¥Zr'9E0'E s | Iv201-8NS
HISKS DY DS EDOL MRS (HOSE-22906%H 000561 $ | 000'v2ZZ s L By L 0 e [} n T (poseud} jo0loid 4Edoy L0910k SIPOHRT)
0Q FRd WOy YOS + SAARUY ERIOURLY WL asL e s s $ ¢ | a00'0s $ " onmeN noa1agey (Bunue) Buncissiuwico-aq 10} Apms Aigieees
12'£5 + 040X WEULINGE Y8 DR LGl 000’0 TS| Tl ] Py
..vzaﬁaﬁn«&g_._ Supuz wio 000'LLE 000008 _$ ooo‘eee—"§ | 000'00E $ | cac'ooe 1 |loat'ori) § (a5t $ | 2L9'06% ¢ |ooo'ose ¢ | 8zeS1 $ | 000’002 $ | o00'0s¢ $ 4 LZ9SETIZES weibald Buipseg proi))
> ussbowr, 05491 §|S82'Stp VZV'0E  $|€959F S| bariEr 000’06 [ 90056224256 8310 DY O SOIpIS WeasU] - JIH
00059z $ [oo0'se ¢ [GO0GaE i - - = sl - 000592 sl SIMMN TIea/ 5508y, Z | SBWOSE|IoY SUENIWR
000'G0Z___§ | 00000 S | 000008 $ | 0un oo - s 000'SE = s | doo'ss 000008 & [ \UeLIEdE Rl N YUB, MOYSILS
Pap 18A0 oY ¥290L - 9ze'y $ 100051 000'SL 8 TEISETHLES Au8) oRsewng o) suiling
(000071} s| s [ooooeL ¢ % | ooo'ost ¢ | o't ) WEQ LB ~2NSSI BLI0Z JNEY/ [UBLINGE B O JUBLISSSSSY YElx|
T $ | 000'sz $ |oo'sz  § % |ooo'se s| - z L699£2uLSS Eu109-UQ - ueid JuewedrideyAPNY Wewdinbs
| — (628 soud
wiay puessor
0Z/08/8 73R whpng | foz/s0z nae)
Bun Aumo soph)
ez varezoz suzzor e 18pnd gz | Fempusd P \aizor | semypusdsg | 03046102 nita) siesol
0z s(qeyeay 108png Jojid peciddy | spewns:
sz0202 parciddy sopd Jewnsy z2/120Z
188png 100f01d S2LON sam/ol 122r08d
12/0202 1304
S1390Ng OILVAISIINY - YVIA RNLNS 139an8
Vz8zeTioy pejsenbes Buipuni meN W20 aupnoy-uoN
139dn4g 2202-120¢ Ad ueid Apno [E3de) 1Eas-
§ euozZ

fyoeloigd zodo]) £ suoZ jonu0d Pool4 | vHa



*2002 W paseyoind jeoq pjo Jesk ¢ | Bunsixa ecejdey g¢
Aoy Juew)eay) sB1em au Aq efiesn ABiaus 0Jez Jau 0] 850 8piAId suoijdo Jamod JBJOS LM PBUIGUIOD puE 193foid

B8] J0j Weyss oL AY & gejsute) o) 6q pinas |} ‘seamnos ABIBUB eAlEWIBIIE LD SND0) L) UEAID {8S)| @INISNS 1SRN0 WEP B} 18 SIqISES) 69 PINoM WAISAS JUBIOWS BIOW Y ‘BAIBA [0J1UCO 18Ul JIOAJBSBY [BUILLIB] B} 18 palesedo Bauo WeysAs oplosieolphy v 48
“sfuneos pue sped uo dn yono} Buluuoped &)iym Ajle|dwos sweisks 2y 19edaul O] PUE 2] PUB SBIN|IB} BININ} JO} BIUEBLI 3L} BINPEJ O} BABA BYRJUI LOEBA 10} Wa)SAS Of pus oy; Jo suedas HBIS 18U} PasIApe S )| ‘MO|j8 $j8Ad] o

e USYM "Z# JOIBMOY BAIEA Jo} Siusuodwios pue sued Jedes Woisio uuyuoes o) wede uexe) Ajuenbesqns Sem Ly JOjeMay eARA 8)eju| "e)E| el BuLBUS wiol piny ANEIPAY usaasd o] pelejos] sem puB gLz Ul Yee) B Burids wejs JineIpAY s,Z# JOIENOY SARA 83EJU|
*APMS YILoW  Jusuneas elozq woy uuoy Asw ey} A 1 Aug lom 58 BUo0ZQ €} 18AI ||IM Jojem 2)e| Zodo Moy PUR $S8204d SIY) JO AIQISES) B} ULYUCS O} papeauU S| APMS Joid B ‘SUoHBpUSLILIDS) ¢

283 19d "We)sAS uONQUISIP Jsjem 2eda B Ul {SINH.L) SSUBOWOEBYNL 0} PES| Yoium jueld sejem ou) Je s10sinoa.d owebio pue swejqoid Jopo pue @jSe) Jo) 188 0] SUBBW BAI288 AIBA & Bq 0} PUNC) SBM BUDZQ "ApNIS AJjIISES) JUaWIESI} J81BM JSEd B} LAIAA

“SBYS UCRBIUNIILIGI SIOWS) 0] SSBATE SB |BM 5B 'SASAINS PBYSIAIem Ul JS|SSE 'SaIIH0e) e
weQ zade pue Juejd 481 BU} PUNOLE LIBLIR} JINJIP UO SO0} PUE (lBULosied LodUBJ) PUB SBEJE UIBLIS) |8 U0 UCHEZIINN 0} PAAU S} Lo SAcdWI MM ALY Uy Jueld Jusuneasy Jejes oy) puncle sofoud (leus/uonerodsuen elsuo Jog e jjof Jepio ue asn yejs ‘Spueund

'SBlIS SNOUEA 0} PALICUSUE) 94 LB JOJEAROXS 8L} .
18 05 'BAOGR PEISENbal SB JOJBABIXS I & AlBd 0) ANqe ) S} Jefes) dWnp By} 0} IOUSY JEYI0 Sy | 'SqUI) DAL PUR [BACLLES B[N} SB YINS UCHBIBBRA SHS SE (1M B8 '95B] PUR PUBS |[Uo) ‘05 PBJBARIXS SB YONS sjepalew Bulney Jo} se|lel} S|BUSIewW § JO paau Ul BIe UBIS

*1-pZ sapusblows
Ile 10} puRY-UO 84 W Juswdinbe ey ] "seese pucd uoliBlosled el e YINS SelllRIR) JO UGHBARDXS [RIBUEE JOJ PUB WED BUY) PUB SSIIIOR) pUnole sanssi eBeUIRIp 'syEs| UOONGUISIP Jejem pue Ajddns Jejem o} dsel aacsdwi o} ) l BJe Jejs T

‘uoisseuddns Hd jo sjnsal Jejwis Yiw wuaped o) 91 WeesAs uok dns Hd spixoig UoGIBY) B ‘sUCSEBI AJBJES JO} PUB BIPUBY 0} {2I[SYD SNOIBBUEP € S| pRY [RISUIN "SWeISAS JOSnyIp e 4yQ v.._w ‘seueiquew ey ¢) buydid ¢
Japray ‘stezAjgue say) se Yans senss| Bujless Jueld Jueunses Jejem Bugeujwie pue Hd Bupnpa: Ul synsas [nYssaaons papiaoid (IDH) PIBY [esauy Buisn 1aefosd uojsseiddns Hd Jopd eyl "8L0Z Ul dn 195 WelsAS (pioe ieujl) JOH Bugsixe ay) eaeided o} s) joefosd syl 4

‘wae)sks 8y) Jo ANpqelie) S85ELIOUI pUB SKBdD) pue 1B SO} aonpey {Im Bupund jles yim dwnd 13 elkls meu e pue siesd me; JsBd BU) Ui SUCISEIIG |BIEABS UC paySiINyes pue peoejda) uaeq sey duind HJ wesAs Jyg ey 0%

uejd 1938M 3U) i0) Inbeu Bupiodes pue Bupoyuow Alep ey; Jo Wed Pur JuBW]BaJ] 19)BM 82RHNS J0) JsWaINka) Buuopucw Lojeinbal 8 61 AUPIGIN L "8[qBIBAR Jou 6.8 adiAes pue sped mau pue palioddns 1aBuo| cu s.e siezAleuy

QL HOVH IV
‘a0sa Ag peanbes pue -8 A4 W Buunoao uopesy 1 [eaisAyd pue oAy 2Y) 10 s)inses uo peseq Aemiids o} sieday 82
*$0AI850S BUISN 6181 Ad U N33O PINO IOM SIYL “BL-BI A< Ul Buyise) eAlensisep-uou ey jo sinses Bulpued Alesseseu eq Aews Aemyids jo uonebnsenur [oisfyg 42
74
*8u0zQ 10} APRIS 10lid B Buijuswadiul 10 We)SAS Dyd a4 10 Juswear|dal JSLRIa 0) PEa] (I APNIS SIU JO SUNSAY “aUoZO BUZIINN $A Weisks Oyd peacidul) ua yim WweysAs eppolp sutioys Bupsixe Bujzipn jo |eusgasos ezirue o} Apnig ST
144
“jueld jusunee ey} je siepno (eydes pue juewd|nbse Jo Jusweseides Buipun) Jo esodind ey 2oy BjenIUNdOR SeABSEY Pepund Auaby ey} plemo) suoinquIueD €2
[24
(¥4

‘Buypuny qe; uedn 180l "loAlesey [Bulle | Zodo" Jo UORBLIIBILGCD Jusaedd 0] JOUNI PEOY NN2IQ HeAlR pus einjdes o) sjuewwaaosdun sbeutelp |EI1SU) 61

*020Z Buuds Ul Mels pnoys "sieed /| | JeAs eoeid oxel O) oM “SOLBUSIS
25E2{o) SNOLEA (0 S100/42 SU PUE WEP JO LWUEANSUMOP Y3210 Y U) JeNgey Anusp (1M selpnis "02/6) Ad ul PejeBpng Ajsnojreld seipnis weensul soj BUIPUNY ‘SBIPMIS WBaNSU} dDH 31) 0} PAJE(B) 3I0M MOIABI PUE JUE|NSUGD 2BEUBW 0} JB1S “JAUT 10} Buipuny [euolippY

kS

184y 5|41 ansind 0} (0202 100} OV Aq Uo paoibe SBM J) 05 S0SB0jRS LWBALISUMOP PUE SWoo|q sebje Jo Jusw)eal 0) psie|al Ssenss| Jofew ewos sByY JIoAISsol [BulLLIB} m
By} BY) Bt i) a ‘Apms saal 104 YOS Pue Buyise) leaisAyd Joj OOES UC PIsey BJBWIST JIOAISSE) [BUIULB) a4 BUIUDISSILILICO-a(] UBY) BAlBWEjE J0j12q € 5| il JNUSIOS Y aun dipy 0} ApMS SoAL orusieg pue Bugse) [eoisAydoesy

“Bujpuny eiqelRAB UOAN JUspUsdep BuisBYd Aledeid JuBK JUSWBE) Jojem PUE JJOAIDSI [BLULIE) JO BPIS }S9M PUNOIE 6oUB) AJndes sov|del pue jlejsu] 91

PBPNRUI PBBYISAO %,p'E "BU) YOBS SX08) Z JiBde “orl Jed Se[npow g slnpow Jed GO0Z$ UO PeSEG SO0 "1 Z/0Z Ul Juelledeldes peeu pines syoe) il "weed 0Z o} oL S1 epl ubisep £00z W pelieisul {lled) Sxoey suBiquB Jo Juewedeidey G|

58588]6. WEBSUMOP BUIpJESe) SBNSs! 0] 8NP JBABMOY I0AISSeY [BUILLIA L B} BULCISSILLICBD JO SIS0D PUB ANIGISES) 4} 5 AI0SIAPY 020 Ul "APNS SBAIRWIG)E D|WISIBY PUE WEP [BuILwe] Jo Bulise) aisiydoas) Bi
‘UOR3NIISUOD 10} PIEMID) fj0I Jim SPUN Juadsur) ‘pepssu Buliused pue SeIPN}s [BJUBWULIIAUS [©
Mojaq qe) 895 £ UondQ 81 umoys s1IBUA "0Z0Z AN Ul uejd Buiseyd e esiopue 0] Oy ‘pepseu siedel AUBW B1B3IPUI ABAING JO SHNSeY "BLOZ Ul SUCP SEM JeY) ABAINS UONIBI0IY JIPOUIED O] JO UOISUSIXS 8L SI SIL ZL

“snopiezey Bujeq sjeoiwsyo Jusbieas o) anp [eacsdde ydno peeu Aep "g1/gt Ul peje|diuon eq ¢ pejediojuy ‘siezd(eue eluounue mau (Z) om} |RISU| L

“1Bek ] aq o) pue ‘sseyd ubisep Gulnp peuluue|sp
3q 0] 1500 Pajoud [ejo) "suredes yue) ex)l Swey 186png ybiy lenuetod Jeipe pue yom Aemyids Jo suus) ul uoud 1Mo JUBWSSBSSE [RINJINI)S JOAIBSa) (U] jo sButpul uc Juapuadep ucljEc| pue 8dods |IN4 '61/810Z A2 Ul paisjdwos useq sey Buidoog 1osloid awog oy
‘moleq qe) uo 38jBwNSe Bag TJabieusyy 1osfoid SINET DU “BUI B 18 YUE] OV 8]EN[EAS PUE SPUN) JUBIOIYNS [Hun Jeek Jed 00z$ Bunebpng
BLiipuelILUCTRl JBIS NO0LS ~ 10} YUB) MOle.l MaU B |(B)SU) 10 HDO9- MooP Bueoo Meu e pue pejejfligey-a1 eg pinad ‘suojdo Z sey juej molyelr] ‘2z/1Z U Buusapmuoedsul 1XeN ‘0Z/Gl Ll 9uop aq o} ‘000’91 $ XoXide ajEwpse Jede) JuB) olseWo UOWIPLOS ool §
Ay u yue ), oysewoq ‘pereidiod sisAleur seajewWws)|e MOl 8114 6L0Z Wi peleldwos seeuibug ali4 Aq juawssesse Anuenb mogsnd |1y Ag 910z “ACN Hodss uoosdsu jue | Jed paygueps SyUR) mopseild pue sysawoq o} stiedes Buguswsidu uiBeq 0) psjsenbel spund
$BAIBSRI IO UBD| JHS € Woyj 8wod 0j 4| 10afoid Jieded B Joj Bupund “Jedey 10} pajaBpnq Aisnojaeld 00008 1S Yim pepuny eq o} Apnjs | ysiy "snedei Ju jdut 0} apew 8l p eJ0jeq pajejdwioo Apnis JUSLWSSSSSE YsU B SluBm Dy, 'neda pajsebbng
JEISUI 0) 1502 YBIY AIBA JUBWINGE BU} 19A0 UMOP BPIS PING [BLISIELI I JUBLLINGE 8| o) aB2WEP oL 8A8s APNIS "eiE) edofs J| 'edois BZIGEIS 0} SIOLALE Y201 JO lUewBoEId PUE (BLBIBL SS0O] JO [BADUIE) SPUBLULLICDR) APnS '(8102)0Z2Ty An pejeiduios Apmis oibopes ©
°L JB9A Joye paseq punosb BWaS apNRUI PINOD ING PISEY A8 UB 10} 87 W SIYL “4/000°'056$ ILN weiboid Jeak ¢ 0} dn 108 DAMYN UM 10BU0D “Weibold Buipaes pnopd & jo uoyejuswaidw) £
‘sujpdes papaau uewa|dw) o) pesn
aq [Iw Bupuny Buueway "6L0Z-1L W paleuy buieq s) podey "walsAs uoyoaloid oipoyled eyl Jo AYNUIUODSIP S| BISY) BiBLM S0 LICISOLIOD JO YSU J8 S] sulledid [eB)s aiy) asaym ‘Aue §i ‘SuoEoo| BUILLSIEP O} WAJSAS UCHNGU)SIP BY] Jo ABAINS LoIDatcsd JIPOYIED € JPNPUeD ?
*559004d Ul JULSd QOSQA "000'06$ 1500 pajeumss "sejdies 6103 LIEIGO 0} oReIo|jdxd piey [EUoHIPPE PL ‘ejep feol poI Yum Ing {0ZZR4) gLOZ Ul paje|diued JIoAleses [BUILLIS) Bi) 4O Juswssasse jleimonas da) ¥sag §
“Apmis 1ueid toid suczZo pesu ejBNfeAs-8Y "GZ ©}0U 865 BANBIIGY JUBWIIEEI | JBIBAA JOJ UBSOYD S1 18YM uo Butpusdsp sfueys pnas edoss 10 sy} pesu 10U ABly "JeBrie-uou s1 18U WeisAS Uogies mel Joj suondo ysieese. o} yels suofessdd ¢
0zi6L Ajejes Buping pue 6L/gL sapt Aeyes Buiping 4vQ "91L0Z AGN AeAIng piezey lled, U pequosep se sapeibdn Aiejeg €
*000'SZ$ 40 Uo|IB20)IB JaBpPNq /L1 A PY) pUB sesusdxe sleok Joud ucdn paseq S| GJEWIISO DY) $1S09 puB 10 edoos aul Q) Upne weysds weid jo uojeidwon 7
“14/000°08% 12 suodai ypny w,
PRIOU SWeY esoy) BpNPUI o) g1 /7 | Buiuels pesesoul junowy “1eeA [eosy auy Buunp s|ie A ey Inba [o0 0 4103 smoffe 19BpNq s} g wey sull SIy) Buipniou| “1eeA [easy eyl Buunp je; jey) Inbe 40 104
9SIMIBI0 PEIOU SSBIUD BlBwNSS [BUIBLIO JeYR JBBk Jad 3, S| UONBYU "0Z0Z Ui %Py 8pNPU| PINOYS SIUNOLIE JOPUBA E_w Ew::m:oo ]



044-103
uo[S0I07] IsaMIE]
ojjose)

*SJUNOUIE PA1EWINSa UBY) SPIq JamO)|
(nsaa Ajqeqoud pinom ‘syun 4o peaysul adAy Aq siom ayy Buiseyd ¢
*SdD Aq papiac.d sajelunss A1e1a8pnqg aaileasssuod sie asayl g

pauniopad si 1583 AjINUUod
|1UN uMoUUN S| paJledal g 0] papaaU SPUAQ JO JIGUINU [EMIY 7
YIBA HSTS - MBS UaMIag AleA pinod S1S0) OLIBUIIS IsEd

1SU0M B UO (S)) SUOIIels 158} Jledds 0} 31eWNSS 1503 € papinosd S43 'T 04d-103
:s3j0N u0IS01I0) 15aMmIe]
ojjoied

005'188 $

V101 ANVES

"SJUNOWE PAleWIISa UBY) SPIg Jamo] U)
3nsal Algeqoud pnoat ‘syun Jo pealsu) adA) Aq yJom ayy Buiseud p
*§d Aq paplaosd se3ewilsa AlejaBpng aAeAIasUOY BJR ASAY] ‘g

000's61 . S (L)

0000ST  $ 000'0T § ST
I_qum.v $ 000'ST § €

I8 .

,SPuog uayoug Jeday
159} Ajnunuo)

pawsopad 513593 Ajnupuol

|3Un uMmouUN SI paJiedal 2 0} PIPaaU SPUO] JO JIQUINU [BNJIY T
‘Y282 HSTS - NBS U2IMIAq AIRA PIN0I S1SOD "OMEUADS ISED JSIOM
B U {51) suoljels 1593 Jiedal 01 BlewW|3Sa 3509 e papiaosd §d3 °T
:SajoN

spuog usyo.g Jleday /1531 .2_::
(€2-Z2 Ad) ¥ ISYHd

5 wiitipiag

000'v2E § LS

000'6 $ 000t

$ € suy Hunejnsuy adue)y| 000567 § oL
000°06 $ 000ST $ 9
$T

*Sd Aq papiaosd sajewnsa Alejadpng aNIEAISUOD le 353y 'E

pawuouad 511591 Aynunuod

|13UN UMOUNUN S) PaJIEdas 3G 0} PaPaauU SPUOq 4O JaquINY (ENDY "2
Y2e8 ¥GTS - NGBS UIaMIBG AIBA PINDI SISO "OLIBUSIS 9SEI 1SIOM
B U0 (S1) SUCIIEIS 3533 JIBda) 0) 3IBWIISA 150D B papiaosd 54D 'T

005'788 $

sajoN

.Scdm $ 00001 S Spuog Uaxaag Jleday
000'sT $ 000'ST T 1531 AynupuoD
000'9 $ 000t z sy Bupejnsu a8uey
00006 $ 000'ST 9 [SUONEIS 153 L

00001 $ 000%0T T 121 PIO 40 asodsig/aroway

00003 5 00009 T pag apouy

$ 0000 T N

I 110) B [0 7 .

o] - L

JaynIey

ono'esz $ [T
00005 $ 0000T $ S spuog uajo.g Jieday
Qo00'stT  $ 000ST ST 1534 Aynujuod
000’6 $ 000'c $ € sy Bunyensu| aduely
000'06 $ 000'sT $ 9 (SuoneIs IsaL
000sT  $ 000'ST S T 1BMOd ||E15Y|
00009 S 00009 S$ T pag apouy
0000 § 0000Z $ T

JSsuones 1591
Q00'0E  § 0000E (w2154s 2uEAED) | 000'0ST $ 000'0T § ST SPuog uayo.g Jieday
juey apsawogq 000k $ 000'ST $ € o 1saL Aynupuod
000'ST  § 000ST $ T 1amod |[elsu| Y 10 10 L g (mo) pon pRAinueny P kg
000'09 $ 00009 S$ T pag apouy spuog uayosg neday /)sa) ANNURUOT ULIOLIG
0000z § 00002 S T 199y {£2-2Z A4} € 3SVHd
4 7

3 PRAanuEng g -
WAsAS 4D MIN
72 Ad) £ 3SYHd

000629 $ [T

(€z-
0007Z  $ 000t $ 8
000'00E § 000'ST $ O
000E $ Q000 $ T

sy Buneynsu) adueyd
(SuonelsisaL
(waisAs auenjen)

000'sT  $ 000°E suy duiejnsu) a8uer3 jueL Jpsawog
0000TZ  $ 000'ST (SUONEISIS3L 000'ST  § 000°ST $ T Jamog |lesul
000'0Z  $ 000°0T 4271 PIO J0 8sodsig/anoway | 00002 $ 0000T S Z 1221 p|O J0 3sedsig/anoway
000'0ZT $ 000°09 — pag apouy | 000'08T S 00009 $ E pag apouy

$ 00002 18yney ..ooo.om $ 0000z $ € Jaynaay

000'viE §

0000s $ 00001 $
000'ST $ 000ST $
0006 $ 000
00001 $ 000'ST

0000€ $ 0000E $ T

e

spuog uolg Jieday
153) Aynuiuo)

sy Bupe|nsu| 3duejy
suones 1saL
{washg djueae)
juey msawoq

000°0T 00a'oT

{21 PIO 40 350ds|(]/oNOWBY

000°C $ $1
00009 $ 00009 $ T
$ $1

pag apouy

SWYSAS 4001 aze(day
(22-1Z Ad) Z 3SWHd

|

e

£ HUN PUB T UM SWaSAS dI7| adejday
{ze-1Z '8 12-0Z Ad) T 3SWHd

Q08'L $ 0052 ST jue) Insawaq | 005'L $ 0oL §$ 1 Juel asawoq
000'ST  $ 000'ST $ T £un Q0T $ 0006T § T cwn
000°02 $ Qoo ST 2un 000°0Z $ o000 $ T Zun
000°ST $ Q00ST S 1 TN QoQ'sT  §

000ST S T Twn

5321A96 udiseq Suasuduy

(T2-02 A4} T 3SWHJ

{12-0Z Ad) T 3SVHd

8 NV1d 03SVHd ¥V3A € - €4 NOILJO NV1d QISVHd 4V3A € - T# NOILdO

0000z 000'0C

005 $

00§'L $ 005t ST jueL ansawoq
000'ST  § 000ST $ T €un
ooo'oz  $ ooo $ T zun
000ST  § 000'ST S T

TN

NV1d GISVHd YV3A ¥ - T# NOILJO

SNOILAO NV1d ONISYHJ - dIVd3yd NOILII1LOUd JIAOHLYD € ANOZ



GAVIN NEWSOM . MARK S. GHILARDUCCI
GOVERNOR [ " c al OES DIRECTOR
GOVERNDR'S OFFICE

& OF EMERGENCY SERVICES

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

The California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES), Grants
Management Section, is soliciting proposals for the following program:

COMMUNITY POWER RESILIENCY ALLOCATION TO SPECIAL DISTRICTS PROGRAM
Release Date: October 9, 2020

This Request for Proposal (RFP) provides detailed information and forms
necessary to prepare a proposal for the Cal OES grant funds.

PROGRAM SYNOPSIS

Program Description
The purpose of the Community Power Resiliency Allocation to Special Districts

Program is to support California special districts with additional preparedness
measures in response to power outage events.

Eligibility:
California special districts that have an identified critical facility or facilities, or

provide critical infrastructure, pursuant to the de-energization guidelines
adopted by the California Public Utilities Commission are the only eligible

Applicants.

Performance Period:
July 1, 2020 — October 31, 2021

Available Funding:
Individual Applicants may request up to $300,000.

Submission Deadline:
Friday, October 30, 2020

i By, 3650 SCHRIEVER AVENUE, MATHER, CA 95655
Q‘ E“Dned Pa)) PSPS@caloes.ca.gov

*
Airravien vaott




COMMUNITY POWER RESILIENCY ALLOCATION TO SPECIAL DISTRICTS PROGRAM

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART | = OVERVIEW ..ttiieeceeeeeeissereresssssssssssesasstsistsesssnassasaessssses isssstnssstasstisssasssssnessnssses 1
A. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT NOTICE ..ot i crritrciiemnir s ssise s 1
B. CONTACT INFORMATION ..uvveeieiciireessnesncsiresissssssssssasssssessansssnssasssssssssassssssesses 1
C. SUBMISSION DEADLINE AND OPTIONS ..ottt inniiriesennns s s 1
D. ELIGIBILITY/PREFERENCE POINTS...ccciviriiseisnersissurrnnsssnsssssssssses s sssnens s 1
E. GRANT SUBAWARD PERFORMANCE PERIOD.....coreiriniirsiinnsess e 2
Fo FUNDS coiooeeieeseeeeeesassssssseeaasssssssesassenaaasses s eossesnstse s aa s e s sas s s aa s s bs s s R a R et e n st se s e e 2
G. PROGRAM INFORMATION. ..coiiitresinieiriies e sss st s s s 3
PART Il = RFP INSTRUGCTIONS ...eveieieieeeeeersiseinasisssnsesns e sess e ssss s snans s s s s sa s s 6
A\ FORMS - oeeeeieeeeeeeesessesesssassassassssssssaaanaasassonbe s s bme e e s s e s e £ e s e a R RO eSS RS S a s R 6
B. PROPOSAL COMPONENTS .....cccviererrremrisrssissnessssssssssssssass st sessas st ssnessnas 6
1. Grant Subaward Face Sheet (Cal OES 2-101) .. 6

2. Project Contact Information (Cal OES 2-102) e 6

3. Signature Authorization {Cal OES 2-103) ... 6

4. Cerfification of Assurance of Compliance (Cal OES 2-104) .......ccounurennns 6

5. Budget Narrative (Cal OES 2-107) — MaXimum 1 PAGE .......counmnrerissenseeene 7

6. Project Narrative (Cal OES 2-108) ......covcciniiininimniinnnesssssseses 7
PART Ill = SELECTION AND FINALIZING THE GRANT SUBAWARD ....cccooiiiiinnisicninnes 9
A. SELECTION OF PROPOSAL FOR FUNDING ....coiomeriiresnee e 9
1. PropoSal ROTNG eveeereeriierieseieininins et e 9

2. FUNCING DECISION cueveereeecriiinsieeresse st s 9

3. NOHIICOTON PrOCESS civuvevreeeeesesiieresieneiisnesssses s ssse s anas s s s 9

B. FINALIZING THE GRANT SUBAWARD.....ccccintimmnicrti st 10
1. Grant Subaward APPICATION ...cciieenir e 10

2. GrANT SUDOWOI. .. eiiiieeiiieresrereesinrserssssnessesssnessssrnassss s s nn s s s asssasatanns senan s 10

3. Standard Project Funding AUThOIIY e 10
PART IV — RATING SHEET ... eeeicerverereieeresenessessessnnsessanssssn e sesntte s s sssnannsasssnsassasssnssnses 11

PART V = CHECKLIST ooeetveiiicteressesssersmrrseesssasaessnsessas s e s s san s s s s s s e st s s sas i s 13



COUNTY COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO

Z SAN LUIS
RS Public Works
John Diodati, /nterim Director MEM ORANDUM
Date: October 29, 2020
Subject: Notice of Preparation - Initial Study
To: Responsible Agencies, Trustee Agencies, and Interested Parties
From: Keith Miller, Environmental Division Manager

San Luis Obispo County Department of Public Works
976 Osos Street, Room 206

San Luis Obispo, CA 93408-2040

Email: kimiller@co.slo.ca.us

Project Title: Lopez Water Project Contract Changes (552R235020/ED#20-210)

Project Applicant: County of San Luis Obispo Zone 3 Flood Control and Water Conservation
District (District)

Responses Due By: December 4, 2020

The County of San Luis Obispo Flood Control and Water Conservation District (District) willbe
the Lead Agency and will prepare an Initial Study (IS) for the above-referenced project. We
need to know the views of your agency as to the scope and content of the environmental
information which is germane to your agency's statutory responsibilities in connection with

the proposed project.

The IS will be prepared to evaluate the potential for significant impacts from the project and
determine the appropriate document to be prepared pursuant to the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Your agency may subsequently need to use the CEQA
document prepared by the District when considering your permit or other approval for the

project.

Please provide us the following information atyour earliest possible date, but not later than
December 4, 2020:

1. NAME OF CONTACT PERSON. Please include address, e-mail and telephone number.

2. PERMIT(S) or APPROVAL(S) AUTHORITY. Please provide a summary description of these and
send a copy of the relevant sections of legislation, regulatory guidance, etc., if applicable.

3. ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION. What environmental information must be addressed in the

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
County Govt Center, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P) 805-781-5252 | (F)805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



Initial Study to enable your agency to use this documentation as a basis for your permit
issuance or approval?

PERMIT STIPULATIONS/CONDITIONS. Please provide a list and description of standard
stipulations (conditions) that your agency will apply to features of this project. Are there other
conditions that have a high likelihood of application to a permit or approval for this project? If so,
please list and describe.

REASONABLY FORESEEABLE PROJECTS, PROGRAMS, or PLANS. Please name any future project,
programs or plans that you think may have an overlapping influence with the project as
proposed.

RELEVANT INFORMATION. Please provide references for any available, appropriate

documentation you believe may be useful to the County in preparing the IS. Reference to
and/or inclusion of such documents in an electronic format would be appreciated.

FURTHER COMMENTS. Please provide anyfurther comments or information thatwill help the
County to scope the document and determine the appropriate level of environmental

assessment.

General information on the Lopez Water Project is available on the County's project website at:
httos://www.slocounty.ca.cov/Departments/Public-Works/Committees-Programs/Flood-

Control-Zones/Zone-3-Lopez-Water-Project.aspx.
A project description and Zone 3 vicinity map is attached.

Please sendyour response to Keith Miller atthe address or email shown above. Asrequested
above, we will need the name for a contact person in your agency.

____——_____’_/
L
Keith Miller, Environmental
Division Manager
kKimiller@co.slo.ca.us

Attachment: Project Description and Location Map

County of San Luis Obispo Department of Public Works
976 0sos Street, Room 206 | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 | (P)805-781-5252 | (F) 805-781-1229
pwd@co.slo.ca.us | slocounty.ca.gov



Lopez Water Project Contract Changes

Project Description

Prepared by
The San Luis Obispo County Flood Control

and Water Conservation District

October 2020



The San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (District) established Zone 3
(Zone 3) on July 26, 1965 for the purpose of financing, construction and maintenance of the Lopez Dam
and facilities (Lopez Project) to provide potable water to the lands within the Zone 3 boundaries (refer to
Figure 1). The District entered into water supply contracts with the Zone 3 Contractors (Contractors),
which include Cities of Arroyo Grande, Grover Beach and Pismo Beach, the Oceano Community Services
District and the County Service Area 12 (Avila Beach) to fund a portion of the Lopez Project and to establish
entitlements for Lopez Water.

The District’s current water supply contracts with the Contractors provide an annual entitlement of water
from the reservoir (entitlement) and the option to purchase surplus water, which consists of unused
annual entitlements and unreleased downstream releases from the previous water year. Contractors have
one year to use the surplus water, any unused surplus water then reverts back to being water available
to the District for annual entitlements and downstream releases in the subsequent year. This contractual
structure creates a “use it or lose it” scenario and does not provide any incentive for the Contractors to
limit their use of Lopez Water and preserve local water supplies.

The District, on behalf of the Contractors, is proposing to restate and amend its existing water supply
contracts to allow the Contractors to store their unused annual water entitlement in Lopez Reservoir for
future use. The purpose of the proposed changes is to provide the District and the five Contractors greater
flexibility to better manage their water supply portfolios, which in addition to Lopez reservoir water, may
include groundwater or allocations from the State Water Project (SWP), and improve water supply
resiliency for the region.

The safe yield of the reservoir is the maximum quantity of water that can be consistently extracted from
the reservoir on an annual basis without the reservoir reaching minimum pool or other limiting constraint
during the worst drought period on record. The safe yield identified in the existing Lopez Reservoir Water
Supply Contracts is 8,730 acre feet per year (AFY). This safe yield has been reaffirmed in multiple reservoir
operations studies in recent years, including the Lopez Spillway Raise Project (Stetson 2013) and the
ECORP HCP Modeling Analysis.

The safe yield is divided between the municipal diversions and downstream releases, with 4,530 AFY
designated for Contractor entitlements, and 4,200 AFY designated for release downstream.

The District’s water supply contracts identify each Contractor’s entitlement to Lopez Project water and is
summarized in Table 1, along with each Contractor’s entitlement percentage.



Attachment 1 Vicinity Map

<
o’o
LA
. °
01 %y Lopez Lak
| "Po opez Lake
|
Avila Bea 7 V
&" Ry
A\ - 00
‘1 . " / /
03 Pismo Beach i ;
o
VICINITY MAP

FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER
CONSERVATION DISTRICT ZONE 3
South County, CA

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

1:150,000 Map by BJclose
0 1 2
) Miles Date: 8/16/2018

10of1



Table 1. Lopez Reservoir Contractor Entitlements and Entitlement Percentages

‘ Entitlement
Contractor Entitlement (AFY) Percentage
!___ ' | (Approximate)
! CSA-12 (Avila Beach) 245 5%
] City of Arroyo Grande _ ] 2290 | 51% o
th of Grover Beach __ 800 18% o
City of Pismo Beach _. a 892 . 20% N
Oceano Community Services District 303 7%
Total 4,530 _ 100% |

The water year for the Lopez Project begins on April 1 and ends on March 31 of every year. Shortly after
the end of the water year the District notifies the Contractors of how much water entitlement and surplus
water is available for each agency for the upcoming water year. The Contractors request a portion or all
of their entitlement and surplus water and the water is diverted throughout the year from the reservoir
to the Lopez terminal reservoir, where it is treated and transmitted via the Lopez Pipeline to the
Contractors. Since 2007, entitlement deliveries to the Contractors have averaged approximately 4,480
AFY. The time period from 2007 to present was selected as the period of reference because it represents
current operations under the 2007 Interim Downstream Release Schedule (IDRS), further described
below, and is most representative of the current operating parameters for the reservoir.

Surpius Water

In addition to the entitlements, the Contractors have access to surplus water under the current contracts.
The amount of surplus water available to the Contractors is calculated at the end of the Lopez water year
and includes unused entitlements and unreleased downstream releases. Each Contractor’s allocation of
surplus water is proportional to each agencies’ entitlement percentage. Surplus water must be taken in
the subsequent water year but can only be taken after the Contractor takes delivery of all its entitlement
water for that year. Any unused surplus water at the end of the water year becomes water available to
the District for annual entittements and downstream releases in the subsequent water year.

Downstream releases are also tracked on the Lopez water year and the parameters for managing
downstream releases are included in IDRS (additional information provided below). Up to 4,200 AFY of
the safe yield is designated for downstream release. Downstream releases are released from the reservoir
at the outlet of the dam directly into Arroyo Grande Creek. The downstream releases are used to maintain
habitat for environmental resources, provide water for downstream agricultural uses, and to recharge the
groundwater basin. The downstream releases vary throughout the year depending on hydrologic
conditions and downstream environmental and agricultural demands. On average, since 2007
downstream releases have averaged approximately 3,640 AFY.



The Lopez Dam received a permit to operate on May 31, 1961. The permit provides for appropriation of
water from Arroyo Grande Creek and the diversion of 50,000 AFY from October 1 to July 1, for beneficial
use. The District is in the process of obtaining a updated Water Rights Permit, which requires the
completion of a Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP). See additional information below regarding the HCP.

The IDRS provides a plan for managing downstream releases from Lopez Dam until such time as the HCP
can be completed and adopted. The goal of the IDRS is to allow the District to maintain a downstream
release schedule that provides water for downstream environmental and agricultural uses and maintains
water for municipal diversions. The IDRS outlines a release method, schedule, and monitoring protocol.
The Zone 3 Board of Supervisors adopted the IDRS in April 2007, and the District has been implementing
it since that time. Under the IDRS, downstream releases range between 3 and 6 cubic feet per second,
depending on hydrologic conditions and downstream demands. Downstream releases have averaged
approximately 5 cubic feet per second since 2007.

The IDRS includes a Low Reservoir Response Plan (LRRP). The LRRP describes a set of actions that the
District would implement when the amount of water in storage within the Lopez Reservoir drops below
20,000 Acre-Feet (AF) and the District’s Board of Supervisors has declared an emergency related to Zone
3. The purpose of the LRRP is to limit municipal and downstream releases from Lopez Reservair during
periods of low reservoir storage to preserve water within the reservoir, above the minimum pool level,
for a minimum of 3 to 4 years under continuing drought conditions.

The primary actions resulting from implementation of the LRRP include:
¢ Reductions in entitlement water deliveries
e Reductions in downstream releases, and
e No new allocations of surplus water from unreleased downstream releases; and
e Extension of time that agencies can take delivery of unused Entitlement water; throughout the
duration that the Drought Emergency is in effect, subject to evaporation losses

The LRRP was implemented from December 2014 through March 2018 in response to the drought. The
proposed contract changes would not modify the LRRP.

The Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) is being prepared to protect and enhance habitat conditions within
Arroyo Grande Creek for south-central California coast steelhead (steelhead) and California red-legged
frogs (CRLF) pursuant to the requirements of the Federal Endangered Species Act. The HCP will address
the operation of Lopez Dam and habitat restoration activities downstream of the dam.. It is expected that
the HCP would be effective for approximately 20 years once approved by all parties. The HCP would
comply with the Federal Endangered Species Act, provide incidental take authorization for steelhead and
CRLF resulting from District operations and maintenance activities affecting Arroyo Grande Creek, and
provide enhanced habitat conditions and protection for both species.

It is anticipated that the HCP will be implemented via an adaptive management strategy that establishes
downstream release patterns that would allow the District to provide the Zone 3 Contractor entitlements,



water for downstream agricultural uses and maximize beneficial effects to steelhead and CRLF — including
improved attraction and passage flows for steelhead, for example. Surveys of the creek habitat suitability
under different downstream release scenarios are scheduled for the winter of 20/21. This survey effort
will subsequently support recommendations in the HCP.

The proposed restating and amending of the contract would modify the current contracts between the
District and Contractors such that the Contractor’s would be allowed to “store” any portion of their annual
requested entitlement or requested surplus water in the reservoir until such time as it was delivered for
use. For example, a Contractor that only needed 20% of their annual entitlement in Year 1, would request
delivery of that amount, but could also choose to store the other 80% of their entitlement and retain it in
the reservoir for future use. Stored water held by any agency would be subject to loss if the reservoir
filled and spilled. Stored Water would also be subject to evaporation losses as well.

It is also proposed to allow storage of “other water” such as water from the State Water Project (SWP).
This would only be available to those Contractors who have a contract for SWP Water as well as Lopez
Project Water, but would not include storing actual water from the SWP Water in Lopez Reservoir. Stored
SWP Water would be achieved through in-lieu exchange of SWP water and requested deliveries of Lopez
Water by other Contractors. Stored SWP Water would be subject to evaporation and spill losses.

The contract changes also include language that clearly indicates that existing annual entitiements and
downstream releases are subject to change in the future due to state or federal mandates that may result
from the HCP and operating permit renewal.

The Contractor’s generally have multiple sources of water (water portfolio), including the Lopez Project,
groundwater, and State Water Project (SWP). The cost and availability of these sources varies from year
to year. Allowing Contractors to store their Lopez and State Water supplies for future use provides them
with additional flexibility to manage their water portfolio as efficiently as possible. More specific
anticipated outcomes are described below.

To determine how the proposed contract changes would potentially impact the operations of the
reservoir, the District evaluated multiple reservoir operations scenarios, with and without the proposed
contract changes, using the existing OASIS Reservoir Operations Model. The Baseline Scenario simulates
the operation of the reservoir under current operating parameters (i.e. IDRS, no storage provisions) over
the entire hydrologic period that the reservoir has been in operation. This was done because operational
parameters prior to adoption of the IDRS in 2007 were much different than current and anticipated future
operations. The Storage Scenario simulates the operation of the reservoir under the proposed contract
changes. The assumptions for each of the modeling scenarios are outlined in the Table 2 below.



Table 2. Zone 3 Contract Change Modeling Scenarios

| Scenario Parameters
Scenario | Hydrology | Downstream Municipal | Supply Priority® | Storage Rights | Low
' ' Releases Demands ' Reservoir
Response
Plan
Baseline | 1969 - IDRS Release | 2018, No Storage No Not
2018 Schedule 2035 (Lopez, SWP, | Included
| Demands | Groundwater) |
Storage | 1969 - IDRS Release | 2018, With Storage Unreleased Not
2018 Schedule 2035 (SWP, Lopez, Downstream Included
Demands | Groundwater) Releases and
Unused
Entitlements

1No Storage — Based on a tiered priority strategy intended to optimize use of NCMA Agencies’ water
supply portfolios.

1. Priority 1 —Lopez Water.

2. Priority 2 — State Water. SWP Water based on available SWP supply and delivery capacity.
Available supply calculated using subcontractor Table A Allocation and Drought Buffer and
estimated Annual Table Allocation from Calsim 3 Table A Allocation Estimates. Available
Capacity accounts for SWP and Lopez pipeline capacity limitations.

3. Priority 3 — Groundwater. Natural Yield groundwater supplies (i.e. 25% of NCMA Allocations).
With Storage — Based on a tiered priority strategy intended to optimize use of NCMA Agencies’ water
supply portfolios.

1. Priority 1 - State Water. SWP Water based on available SWP supply and delivery capacity.
Available supply calculated using subcontractor Table A Allocation and Drought Buffer and
estimated Annual Table Allocation from Calsim 3 Table A Allocation Estimates. Available
Capacity accounts for SWP and Lopez pipeline capacity limitations. Priority 1 switches to
Lopez Water once 3 years of Lopez Water is available in storage for an individual agency.

2. Priority 2 — Lopez Water.

3. Priority 3 - Groundwater. Natural Yield groundwater supplies (i.e. 25% of NCMA Allocations).

The modelling scenario results indicate that the proposed contract amendments would generally result in
the following:

e More water would be stored in Lopez Reservoir due to the incentives provided by the proposed
contract changes to reduce use of Lopez Water, see Figure 1 for comparison of water storage
under current contracts (Baseline 2018) and proposed contract changes (Storage 2018)

e Downstream releases would not be impacted as modeling indicates that there would be sufficient
un-stored water in the reservoir to meet downstream release requirements. Additionally, if there
was not sufficient water available for downstream releases the proposed contract provisions
allow for water to be taken from Contractors’ storage to meeting downstream release
requirements

e Volume of water lost to spills would increase slightly (approximately 21,000 AF over a 50-year
period) due to the additional water in storage



1nsay sol1eudds Suljapo aSuey) JIeiu0) € U0z 'T 34nSi4

VO R = R —

000000000000000000 \(000000
S o O O
FEFFS S TSI TS

3 ©

00001
000°0C
000°0€

000'0Y

0000S

00009

ST07 9FRI0IG mmmmmm QT (7 IH|ISE(] armsmann

1994-210y ‘a8ei01g






FLUID RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT

CONTRACTORS LICENSE #937346

November 4, 2020

Avila Beach Community Services District
100 San Luis Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

SUBJECT: OCTOBER 2020 MONTHLY FACILITY REPORT FOR THE AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT, WATER SYSTEM AND COLLECTION SYSTEM

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT

Areas within the wastewater plant that are known to accumulate solids continue to be manually cleaned on a regular basis. The Chlorine
Contact Chamber floor is vacuumed out on a weekly basis. These solids, if left to decompose, can have a negative effect on the effluent
quality leaving the facility.

The District supplied recirculation pumps were installed by Staff.

The light fixtures in the Clarifier were replaced with new LED units to provide adequate light for Staff working within the building.

WATER SYSTEM

The small water storage tank continues to be used as standby, with FRM staff monitoring the water quality in the tank and flushing as
needed. FRM Staff continues to monitor the chlorine residuals and provide additional chlorine as needed. Staff has been performing
distribution flushing on an as needed basis.

The potable water tank flowmeter failed, was diagnosed, and is needing to be replaced. Staff worked with the District to approve an action
plan for replacement; Staff will proceed with replacing the flowmeter once parts are available.

COMPLIANCE RECORD AND PLANT PERFORMANCE

Staff compiled the data to complete the monthly Self-Monitoring Report and Discharge Monitoring Report in California Integrated Water
Quality System (CIWQS). Once approved, the reports are uploaded into CIWQS and certified by ABCSD Staff.

Plant Design for Influent BOD is 270 mg/L. The permit limit for Effluent TSS and BOD is a Monthly Average of 40 mg/L with a Daily
Maximum of 90 mg/L.

Staff is continuing to work on the Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) updates required by the Regional Water Quality Control
Board (RWQCB) every five years.

Staff met with the Certified Union Program Agency (CUPA) for the routine, annual Hazardous Material Inspection required for permit
renewal.

Sincerely,
FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

@,

Carinna Butler
Operations Manager

ATTACHMENTS

Self-Monitoring Report

ABCSD Average Daily WWTP Effluent Flow (2018-2020)
ABCSD Monthly Total WWTP Effluent Flow (2018-2020)
Port San Luis Monthly Total Flow (2018-2020)

Monthly Average Influent BOD (2018-2020)

Monthly Average Effluent BOD (2018-2020)

Monthly Water Purchased from Lopez (2018-2020)
ABCSD Monthly Water Sold (2018-2020)

FLUIDRESOURCEMANAGEMENT.COM | 805.597.7100
FRMINFO@FRM-OPS.COM | 2385 PRECISION DRIVE, ARROYO GRANDE, CA 93420




California Regional Water

Avila Beach CSD

DISCHARGER SELF-MONITORING

ORDER R3-2017-0025

Quality Control Board,
NPDES CA0047830
Central Coast Region Wastewater Treatment WDID 3 400101001
Monthly report due last day of following month FaCi 'it .
Annual report due January 30 y Month: OCTOBER 2020
Effluent and influent Monitoring
Daily Flow (MGD) Effluent Monitoring Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly | Biweekly Monthly
po— v Biweekly | Biweekly | Daily Date Effluent Effluent Influent Influent _Efﬂuent
Date | Total 9 Total Fecal Chlorine BOD TSS BOD Tss Oil & Grease
(gpm) | (@PM) | cojiform | Coliform | Residual (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (24HC) | (Grab)
1 ]0.043678 69 31 <2 <2 <0.02 10/1/20 17 10 364 300
2 ]0.054051 71 38 <0.02 10/4/20 22 15 424 277
3 |0.062638 74 44 <0.02 10/8/20 18 14 172* 184
4 ]0.063966 98 45 <0.02 10/11/20 26 19 313 247
5 |0.048604 88 34 <0.02 10/15/20 20 10 436 220 <5.0
6 |0.047560 72 33 2 <2 <0.02 10/18/20 28 25 371 264
7 ]0.046156 59 32 <0.02 10/22/20 21 14 348 294
8 0.047119 73 33 2 <2 <0.02 10/25/20 32 6 285 21
9 ]0.055720 7 39 <0.02 10/29/20
10 |0.061739 77 43 <0.02 Min 17 6 172 21 <5.0
11 |0.064462 86 45 <0.02 Mean 23.0 141 3391 225.9 <5.0
12 |0.051278 69 36 <0.02 Max 32 25 436 300 <5.0
13 |0.045837 64 32 <2 <2 <0.02 BOD Removal: 93.2% TSS Removal: 93.7%
*Original results invalidated due to lab error; please see attached letter from Abalone Coast
14 [§0-046535 7 o <0.02 Analytical dated 11/02/2020.
15 |0.050304 72 35 2 <2 <0.02
16 |0.056655 76 40 <0.02 Effluent Monltoring
17 10.064633 77 45 <0.02 Weekly Weekly Weekly Weekly
Date | Set. Solids | Turbidity pH Temp °F
18 |0.066280 83 46 <0.02 (Grab) (Grab) (Grab) (Grab)
19 [0.050769 74 35 <0.02 10/1/20 <0.1 9.57 6.5 73
20 |0.051477 76 36 <2 <2 <0.02 10/8/20 <0.1 10.4 6.6 72
21 ]0.048347 71 37 <0.02 10/15/20 <0.1 14.0 6.8 72
22 |0.051499 68 36 <2 <2 <0.02 10/22/20 <0.1 13.0 6.7 70
23 |0.059276 80 4 <0.02
24 |0.063937 82 45 <0.02 Min <0.1 9.6 6.5 70.0
25 10.062068 80 38 <0.02 Mean <0.1 1.7 6.7 71.8
26 |0.056454 78 39 <0.02 Max <0.1 14.0 6.8 73.0
27 |0.045697 86 32 2 <2 <0.02 Effluent Limits
28 [0.041372 70 29 <0.02 Parameter Units Monthly Avg | Weekly Avg | Daily Max
29 ]0.045845 74 32 BOD mg/L 40 60 20
30 |0.049910 72 35 <0.02 Suspended Solids mg/L 40 60 90
31 ]0.050722 61 35 <0.02 Oil and Grease mg/L 25 40 75
Min |0.041372 59 29 <2 <2 <0.02 Turbidity NTU 75 100 225
Mean |0.053374 75 37 2 <2 <0.02 7 Sample Median: 23
Max |0.066280 98 46 2 <2 <0.02 Total Coliform 1':: :IL More than once in 30 days: 240
Total |1.654588| Effluent dally (dry weather) flow NTE 0.2 MGD (mean). Daily Maximum: 2,400
Chlorine Residual mg/L 6 Month Median: 0.3 1.2
Influent Brine Received Sludge Removal pH pH units Between 6.0 - 9.0
Date Volume (Gallons) Date Gallons Settleable Solids mL/L 1.0 1.5 3.0
N/A 10/13/20 | 4,500 BOD/TSS Removal % 2 75% kxs et
[i certﬁy under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and accurate and
that the sampling procedure and analysis used are as specified in the Waste
Discharge Order for this facility.
SIGNATURE: DATE:
PRINTED NAME: TITLE:




T —— s

~) Abalone
./ Coast
" Analytical

Date: 11/2/2020
RE: Avila Influent BOD Results
To: Cara Aguiar

Dear Ms. Aguiar,

On 10/8/2020 samples were submitted for Avila Beach CSD. They were logged under project
number 20-5484 and analyzed accordingly.

The BOD result for the Influent sample taken 10/8/20 at 0920 was not consistent with normal
Influent results and was likely due to lab analyst error, so Abalone Coast Owner and Lab Director,
Amanda Smith, decided to invalidate the sample results.

Once FRM reviewed these results it was requested that we re-run the analysis out of hold time.
The subsequent results were much more in line with what is expected from an Influent result.

A revised copy of the report has been edited with a brief notation of this occurrence and
uploaded to your online data base. We apologize for this error.

Warmest regards,
Caitlin Galloway

Project Manager




03a AON 100 d3s onv nr NAr AV ddv dvYiN g34 NVI

000°0L

00002

000°0€

000‘0%

000°0S

000'09

00002

00008

| 0zoz= 6i0z= siozs |

(0zoz - 8102)
MOT4 LN3INT443 dIMM ATIVA IOVHIAY asoHgV

AVd ¥3dd SNOT1VO




03d

AON

1200 d3s onv

i
i

HLNOW

anr NAOr AV ddv VN

g34d

Nvr

| 0zoz= 8L0Z= 8LOZ= |

(0zZ0Z - 8102)

MO71d LN3INT443 dLMM TTVLOL ATHLNOIW dso8av

000°00S

000'000°}

000°00S°}

000°000°C

000°'00S'C

HLNOW ¥3d SNOTIVO




HLNOW

03d AON 100 d3s onv anre NN AVIN Hdv HVYIW g34 Nvr

000°0S

000°001

000°0S!

000002

000052

000°00€

000°0S€

| 0z0z= 6L0z= glLOZ™ |

(0zoz - 8102)
MO14 TVLOL ATHLNOW SIN1 NVS Ly0d

SNOT1VO




HLNOW

03a ony anre NOr

ACN 100 d3s AV Hdv

dvYW g34 NVF

| UBISOQ dIMM—— 0Z0Z®==  GLOZwem  GLOZ e |

(0Z0zZ - 8102)
aod LN3IN14NI 39VI3IAVY ATHLNOW asosav

00l

002

00¢

ooy

00s

009

/6w




HLNOW

03ad AON 130 d3s onvy anr NP AVIA ddv dvIN g34 NvT

| Jwr] eBBIONY Ae(] Qf == (g0 ==  GLOZmmm  §)0C mm

(ozoz - 8L02)
aod 1NIN1443 39vI3IAVY ATHLNOW asoav

(118

Sl

(174

14

0t

Ge

ov

14

/6w




o3da

AON

HLNOW

100 d3s onvy anr NN AVIA ddv HVN 934

NVF

| 0zoz= 6L0Z= 8lL0Z= |

(0202 - 8102)
Z3dO1 NO¥d AIASVYHIINC ¥ILVM ATHLNOW asogv

000°00S

000°000°L

000°00S°4

000°000°2

000'005°2

000°000'€

SNOTIVO




o3a

HLNON

AON 100 d3s onv anr NOP AVIA Hdv HVYW d34 NVT

| 0zoz= 6L0z= 8LOZ® |

(0zoz - 8102)
alos ¥3LVM ATHLNOW asogav

000°00S

000'000°L

000°00S'L

000°000°¢

000°005°C

000'000°€

000°00S'¢

SNOTIVO




AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors ® S
(72 ,w‘ )

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager {_’% g

DATE: November 10, 2020

SUBJECT: Adoption of San Luis Obispo County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan
(Plan) 2019 Update, Resolution No. 2020-09

Recommendation:
Staff recommends the Board adopt Resolution No. 2020-09, which adopts the Plan as an official

Plan.

Background

Pursuant to 44 CFR § 201, in order to apply for and receive Hazard Mitigation Assistance
(HMA) funds from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), a local government
must have a FEMA-approved Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. FEMA’s Hazard Mitigation
Assistance (HMA) grant programs require that local jurisdictions adopt a FEMA-approved Local
Hazard Mitigation Plan as a condition of applying for and receiving federal mitigation funding.
In general, FEMA’s HMA funds may be used to cover up to 75% of eligible project costs.

This Plan may also be incorporated into a multi-jurisdictional Plan. As a condition of approval
for multi-jurisdictional Plans, each jurisdiction must formally adopt the Plan. Local jurisdictions
must review, revise, and resubmit Plans for approval within 5 years of the date of the previous
Plan’s approval to maintain eligibility for mitigation project grant funding.

HMA grant programs provide funding for eligible mitigation activities that reduce disaster losses
and protect life and property from future disaster damages. Examples of these programs include
the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM), Flood
Mitigation Assistance (FMA), and Building Resilient Infrastructure and Communities (BRIC).

The full Local Hazard Mitigation Plan can be accessed at the County’s website:
https://www.slocounty.ca.gov/Departments/Planning-Building/Forms-
Documents/Plans/Elements/Local-Hazard-Mitigation-Plan.aspx




Discussion

The District has been a participating member of the County’s Hazard Mitigation Planning
Committee (HMPC) and planning process since its kickoff meeting in September 2017. This is
the first time the District has been invited to participate in the development of a County-wide
Hazard Mitigation Plan, as the previous version of the County’s HMP (2014) did not include
provisions for Special Districts. The HMPC was formed for developing a coordinated Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan Update for 2019. Members of the committee included
representatives from the County, cities, special districts, community service districts, school
districts, and other local stakeholders within San Luis Obispo County. The primary purpose of
the Plan 2019 Update is “to arrive at practical, meaningful, attainable, and cost-effective
mitigation solutions that help reduce vulnerability to the identified hazards while ultimately
reducing human and financial losses from natural disasters and hazard events.” The basic
structure of the Plan is a collection of each jurisdiction’s Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP).

The 2019 Update to the County’s MJHMP will be used as a reference tool for long-range,
coordinated hazard mitigation planning at both the local and regional levels. Natural hazards and
mitigation strategies to minimize risk of these hazards are specifically identified at both the
regional and jurisdictional levels. At the regional level, an overview of hazards and mitigation
strategies throughout the County is discussed in the main document of the 2019 Update. At the
local level, specific natural hazards, risk potentials, projected damages, and proposed mitigation
strategies and projects are detailed within each jurisdiction’s annex. Avila Beach Community
Services District’s Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (2019) is found in Annex H of the Plan.

In addition to being a valuable planning tool, the County’s MJHMP 2019 Update also fulfills
FEMA’s eligibility criteria to apply for and receive future Hazard Mitigation Assistance (HMA)
funding. As a requirement of the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, all local governments
must have a LHMP federally approved, to qualify for federal funding under FEMA’s HMA grant
programs. In order for the MJHMP 2019 Update to be approved by FEMA, all participating
municipalities and local governments must first approve and formally adopt the Plan in its
entirety. Once adopted, the MJHMP 2019 Update and adoption records will be sent to FEMA for
final review and approval.

District staff participated in the development of the MJHMP 2019 Update by providing
information about historical and projected natural hazards that are unique to the District’s
geographic area and responsibilities. District Staff will need to periodically review the plan and
make necessary revisions as additional hazards and mitigation measures are recognized. The plan
must also undergo a comprehensive, countywide update every 5 years to maintain HMA-funding
eligibility.



RESOLUTION No. 2020 - 09

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ADOPTING
THE SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL
HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN UPDATE OF 2019

WHEREAS, the District recognizes the potential risk of harm to life and property from future natural and
artificial hazard occurrences within the District and surrounding community; and

WHEREAS, the District has prepared a 2019 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan to identify goals, objectives, and
mitigation actions to reduce the potential harm these risks pose to life and property within the District and surrounding
community; and

WHEREAS, Hazard Mitigation Grants and disaster relief funds administered by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (“FEMA”) require local jurisdictions to have an adopted and FEMA- approved Local Hazard
Mitigation Plan (“LHMP”") or Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan (“MJHMP”), pursuant to the Federal Disaster
Mitigation Act of 2000 as set forth in Title 44, Section 201.6 of the Code of Federal Regulations; and

WHEREAS, District participated in the FEMA-prescribed mitigation planning process with consultation from
other affected governmental agencies within San Luis Obispo County to prepare the Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard
Mitigation Plan 2019 Update; and

WHEREAS, the California Office of Emergency Services (“Cal OES”) and FEMA, Region IX officials have
reviewed the San Luis Obispo County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan and notified the District that the plan
is eligible for final approval pending adoption by the Avila Beach Community Services District; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the Board of Directors of
the Avila Beach Community Services District that the San Luis Obispo County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation
Plan 2019 Update is hereby adopted as an official plan and incorporated herein by reference.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community Services District this
10th day of November, 2020 on the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT:

Pete Kelley, President
ATTEST:

Brad Hagemann
Secretary to the Board

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Michael Seitz
District Legal Counsel



ag- Annex H: Avila Beach Community Services District

H.1 District Profile

H.1.1 Mitigation Planning History and 2019 Process

This annex was created during the development of the 2019 San Luis Obispo County Hazard Mitigation Plan
Update. The General Manager of the Avila Beach Community Services District was the representative on the
County HMPC and took the lead for developing the plan and this annex. The Avila Beach CSD will be responsible
for implementation and maintenance of the plan.

Table H.1 Avila Beach CSD Hazard Mitigation Plan Planning Team
Department or Stakeholder
District Management General Manager

More details on the planning process followed and how the jurisdictions, service districts and stakeholders
participated can be found in Section 3 of the Base Plan, as well as how the public was involved during the 2019

update.

Figure H.1 below shows the Avila Beach Community Services District boundaries, represented in pink. The dotted
line represents the District’s sphere of influence, which corresponds with the Avila Urban Reserve Line.

San Luis Obispo County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan [Nataee [l

Avila Beach Community Services District | February 2020

® @ @



Annex H: Avila Beach Community Services District

Figure H.1 Avila Beach Community Services District and Sphere of Influence

&
e ® g ﬁ
L ] a s
. OF =
L ]
-2
.
°
* *
. ]
. E L]
[ 2 L]
\ : 2 :
- 2 ;.f‘ . B
.
p d -
.
.ooo:. ..
e e %
Op
. o N
= . Ld .
£ F e
H s :
. .
.* ] . -~
«® oy .
. 4 -
P i
.... g
on®
. yo‘ﬂ
M 3 fa“‘:"
: ¢
® 8
. £
° E 4
L
Ll
.
L]
.
L
. 4
<
b w
S. a0 8 8 ® P2 san e e n 8 ==
Q
-
... ® e g
o

intended for planning purposes only.

Data Source: San Luis Obispo County,

US Census TIGER Database, CA Open

Data Portal, BLM/California State Office, LAFCO

o
&
wn
bl

8 2
13 [}
g 5

g 2 § = § o

€ §8 88 o £ =

- 2 = m @ &

3.«:»052 F3
c.geg-sn

Pl s i ' < w0

O..
s @

San Luis Obispo County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan A IS

Avila Beach Community Services District | February 2020

s 00



ST
s 2
%

& ﬁ A Annex H: Avila Beach Community Services District

H.1.2 District Overview

The Avila Beach Community Services District’s (CSD) mission is to provide quality, innovative and cost-effective
services that include water, sewer, lighting and fire protection. The District was established in February of 1997
after the Avila Beach County Water District, which provided services such as sanitary and fire protection, and the
Avila Lighting District joined together. Today the District encompasses over 150 acres within the County,
including all of the Town of Avila Beach.

The Avila Beach CSD is governed by a five-person elected board, each with a four-year term. The Board of
Directors is responsible for creating policies for the District and receives recommendations from the District’s
General Manager and District Counsel. The District's General Manager carries out the polices developed by the
Board and serves as the Public Information Officer for the District. The District Engineer is responsible for
implementing and developing the engineering plans for all facilities within the District. The Utilities Department
provides support to the District operations including Field Crews that handle all sanitary sewer/water
emergencies and daily operations. The District's part-time billing clerk is the only District employee, all other
management, engineering, operations and maintenance sources are provided through contractors.

In 1976, the Avila Beach County Water District, contracted to purchase water from San Luis Obispo County
Service Area #12, which supplies water from the Lopez Reservoir to the District. Currently the Avila Beach
Community Services District provides water service to approximately 400 business and residential connections
and owns two water storage tanks with the storage capacity of 840,000 gallons and 46 fire hydrants. The Avila
Beach CSD is one of five water purveyors in the Avila community area. In addition to County Service Area #12
entitlement from Lopez Lake (68 acre-feet per year AFY), the District is also as sub-contractor to the San Luis
Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Zone 3 and is entitled to 100 AF of “Table A"
Water. The CSD added a 100 AF Drought Buffer to their 100 AF Table A allocation in 2017. The District's total

water allocation is 168 AF per year.

The Avila Beach CSD provides wastewater collection, treatment and disposal services for the Town of Avila Beach
and wastewater treatment and disposal for the Port San Luis Harbor District. The District's wastewater treatment
plant was originally built in 1969 by the community of Avila. In the early 1990s the District upgraded the
treatment facility to provide secondary treatment and disinfection of wastewater discharged into the Pacific
Ocean. The treated municipal wastewater is discharged to the ocean through a 2,240 ft outfall, approximately
1,200 feet beyond the end of the Avila Pier. The District also maintains approximately 10,000 feet of gravity
sewer, 40 manholes, 1 lift station, approximately 300 residential sewer connections, 53 commercial/industrial
sewer connections, and a wastewater treatment plant serving nearly 1,000 customers and seasonal visitors.

Since 2000, the Avila Beach Community Services District has contracted with Cal Fire/San Luis Obispo County
Fire Department to cooperatively provide fire protection services for the Avila community. The Fire Department
also works on comprehensive vegetation management planning and stays engaged with the Avila community.

The U.S. Census Bureau estimated the Avila Beach Census Designated Place’s (CDP) 2017 population as 1,080, a
decrease from 1,166 in 2014. Table H. 2 shows an overview of key social and demographic characteristics of the
CDP taken from the U.S. Census Bureau’s American Community Survey.

San Luis Obispo County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan ey 2

Avila Beach Community Services District | February 2020



Annex H: Avila Beach Community Services District

Table H. 2 Avila Beach CDP Demographic and Social Characteristics, 2014-2017

Population

Median Age

Total Housing Units

Housing Occupancy Rate

% of Housing Units with no Vehicles Available
Median Home Value

Unemployment

Mean Travel Time to Work {(minutes)

Median Household Income

Per Capita Income

% of Individuals Below Poverty Level

# of Households

Average Household Size

% of Population Over 25 with High School Diploma
% of Population Over 25 with Bachelor's Degree or Higher
% with Disability

1,166 1,080 -7.4%
58.9 63.1 7.1%
989 1,068 8.0%

67.2% 61.8% -5.4%

12% 1.4% 0.2%

$599,900 $742,100 23.7%

41% 23% -1.8%

170 278 63.5%
$73,304  $100,076 36.5%
$43,153 $82,202  90.5%

7.4% 44% -3.0%
665 660 -0.8%
175 1.64 -6.3%

98.6% 100.0% 1.4%

53.6% 36.5% 17.1%

18.2% 11.9% -6.3%

Source: U.S, Census Bureau American Community Survey 2014-2017 3-Year Estimates, www.census.gov/
Note: Data is for the Avila Beach Census Designated Place (CDP) which may not have the same boundaries as the Avila Beach Community Service District.

The following table show how the Avila Beach CDP's labor force breaks down by occupation and industry
estimates from the U.S. Census Bureau's 2017 American Community Survey.

San Luis Obispo County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan

Annex H4

Avila Beach Community Services District | February 2020






AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager@

DATE: November 10, 2020

SUBJECT: Presentation of Fiscal Year 2019-20 Draft Financial Audit
Recommendation:

Receive draft Report and presentation by Fedak and Brown the District’s outside,
independent auditor; provide comment; and consider approval of the Report.

Discussion:

Each year, the District is required by state law to provide an Independent Auditor’s
Report of the District’s financial records. Attached for your review is the District’s draft
audit Report for Fiscal Year 2018-19.

Mr. Andy Beck or Mr. Chris Brown will attend the November 10, 2020, Board of
Directors meeting to present the draft Audit Report and answer any Board questions. The
auditors will address the questions and if acceptable, the Board should consider adopting
Audit Report as final. Following finalization, staff will provide copies of the Report to
both the County and State Auditor Controller offices as required.



ESTABLISHED
FERI?

Avila Beach Community Services District
Avila Beach, California

Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2020




AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

List of Elected Officials and District Staff

June 30, 2020
Elected Officials
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

President Peter Kelley
Vice President Lynn flelenius
Director Ara Najarian
Director Kristin Berry
Director Howie Kennet

District Staff

General Manager Bradley Hagemann

Avila Beach Community Services District
Post Office Box 309
100 San Luis Street
Avila Beach, California 93424
(805) 595-2664 www.avilabeachcsd.org



C

ny A BEAD")’

ESTABLISHED
FER 1997

Avila Beach Community Services District

Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020



Avila Beach Community Services District
Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Table of Contents

Page No.
Table of Contents 1
Financial Section
Independent Auditor’s Report 1-2
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3-8
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position 9
Statement of Activities 10
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet — Governmental Fund 11
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Fund 1 the
Statement of Net Position 12
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in ['und Balance —
Governmental Fund 13
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance of Governmental Fund to the Statement ot Activities 14
Statement of Net Position — Enterprise Fund 15
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Pusition —

Enterprise Fund 16
Statement of Cash Flows — Enterprise Fiind 17-18
Notes to the Basic Financial Statcients 19-41

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Cicneral Fund 42
Notes to Required Supp!cmeittary Infismation — General Fund 42
Budgetary Comparison Schedule  Strecis Light Fund 43
Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Streets Light Fund 43
Schedules of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 44
Schedules of Pension Plan Contributions 45

Report on Compliance and Internal Controls
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 46-47



Financial Section






Independent Auditor’s Report
Board of Directors
Avila Beach Community Services District
Avila Beach, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund of the Avila Beach Community Services District (District) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
4 P

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted il ihe United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from maicrial sisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to finuucial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United Stales; and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements
for California Special Districts. ~ Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether ihe fizancial staitements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performiiig procedures (o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considlers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial slatefients in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Avila Beach
Community Services District, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and,

where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



Independent Auditor’s Report, continued

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 8 and the required supplementary information on pages 42
through 45, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquires,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance ol tne information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a rcport dated November 10,
2020, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over tinancial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our lesting of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance, and the results of thal testing, and 1ot to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That r¢port is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards i considering the District’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance. This report can be found on pages 46 and 47.

Fedoks & Brovor L1.P

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
November 10, 2020



Avila Beach Community Services District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of activities and financial performance of the
Avila Beach Community Services District (District) provide an introduction to the financial statements of
the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements and related notes, which
follow this section.

Financial Highlights

o The District’s net position increased 4.23% or $311,383 from $7,358,302 to $7,669,685 in 2020,
as a result of current year operations.

e In 2020, total revenues from all sources increased 3.07% or $60,610 from $1,974,940 to
$2.,035,550.

e In 2020, total expenses from operations increased 10.30% or $161,025 from $1,563,142 to
$1,724,167.

e In 2020, the District did not receive capital grants compared 10 2019, when the District received
$66,845 for the construction of its wastewater treatment plasii

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to thie District’s basic financial
statements. The District’s basic financial statements coniprise of three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notet to the basic financial statements. This
report also contains required supplementary information i addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activitics

The government-wide financial stateitients are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
District’s finances, in a manner sitfiiiar to a private-seclor business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and defcired inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decréuses in net positicn may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the District 1s improving o deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All thanges in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g. uncollected taxes and earned, but unused, vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are principally
supported by taxes, assessments, and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the District include general government
and street lighting. The business-type activities of the District include operations for water, sanitation
(sewer), and refuse (trash and solid waste).

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 9 and 10 of this report.



Avila Beach Community Services District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of
the funds of the District can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and enterprise funds.

Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance —
Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that ©f the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented fir governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions.

The District maintains two individual governmental funds: general and street lighting. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheel and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balange for the general fund and street lighting fund, which
are considered major funds. The District maintaisis no non-major governmental funds.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and street lighting fund. A
budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund and street lighting fund to
demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial staicments can be found on pages 11 through 14 of this report.

Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

— Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The District uses three enterprise funds to account for its water,
sanitary, and refuse activities.

Enterprise funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The enterprise fund financial statements provide separate information for all three
enterprise funds.

The basic enterprise fund financial statements can be found on pages 15 through 18 of this report.



Avila Beach Community Services District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on
pages 19 through 41 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information, which can be found on pages 42 through 45 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceed liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources by $7,669,685 at the close of the most recent fiscal year, with an increase of
$311,383 compared with the prior year.

A portion of the District’s net position (44.67%) reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g. land,
water/wastewater infrastructure, and equipment). The District uscs thesc eapital assets to provide services

to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

Statement of Net Position

Condensed Statements o1 et Pusition

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total District
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Assets:
Current assets $ 502,777 630731 3,933,373 3,397,561 4,436,150 4,028,291
Capital assets, net 350042 i, 33747 3,390,659 3,466,693 3,426,401 3,502,430
Total assets 238,519 : 666407 7,324,032 6,864,254 7,862,551 7,530,721
Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred pension outflows e 27497 - - 24,772 27,497
Total deferred outflows of resoviics 24,772 27497 - - 24772 27,497
Liabilities:
Current liabilities vi17 13,064 69,347 51,000 78,464 64,064
Non-current liabilities 131246 126,061 - - 131,246 126,061
Total liabilities 140,363 139,125 69,347 51,000 209,710 190,125
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred pension inflows 7,928 9,791 - - 7,928 9,791
Total deferred inflows of resources 7,928 9,791 - - 7,928 9,791
Net position:
Net invesiment in capital assets 35,742 35,737 3,390,659 3,466,693 3,426401 3,502,430
Unrestricted 379,258 509,311 3,864,026 3,346,561 4,243 284 3,855,872
Total net position $ 415,000 545,048 7,254,685 6,813,254 7,669,685 7,358,302

The balance of unrestricted net position totaling $4,243,284 may be used to meet the government’s

ongoing obligations.



Avila Beach Community Services District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Government-wide Financial Analysis, continued

Statement of Net Position, continued

Governmental activities — Governmental activities decreased the District’s net position by $130,048
from the prior year. The decrease in net position was due primarily to an increase of $376,221 from
current year operations; which was offset by a decrease of $506,269 due to a transfer-out to support the
operations of business-type activities.

Business-type activities — Business-type activities increased the District’s net position by $441,431 from
the prior year. The increase in net position was due primarily to an decrease of $64,838 from current year
operations; which was offset by an increase of $506,269 due to a transfer-in from governmental activities.

Statement of Activities

Condensed Statements of Activities

Governmental Activities Business-tvjic Activities Total District
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 6,359 5,047 1,214,624 | 142,899 1,220,983 1,247,946
General revenues:
Property taxes 751,304 647,893 - - 751,304 647,893
Interest earnings 63,263 79,101 - - - 63,263 79,101
Total revenues 820,926 732041 1,214,624 1,242,899 2,035,550 1,974,940
Expenses:
General government 430,162 401,775 - - 430,162 401,775
Street lighting 14 543 15164 - - 14,543 13,164
Water - - 458,370 424935 458,370 424,935
Sanitary - : 819,714 721,911 819,714 721911
Refuse -w - 1,378 1,357 1,378 1,357
Total expenses 444,705 414,939 1,279.462 1,148,203 1,724,167 1,563,142
Income before contributions
and transfers 376221 317,102 (64,838) 94,696 311,383 411,798
Capital contributions - - - 66,845 - 66,845
Transfers in/(out) _1706,269) (439,965) 506,269 439,965 - -
Changes in net position (130,048) (122,863) 441431 601,506 311,383 478,643
Net position, beginning of year 545,048 667,911 6,813,254 6,211,748 7,358,302 6,879,659
Net position, end of year $ 415,000 545,048 7,254,685 6,813,254 7,669,685 7,358,302

e The District’s net position increased 4.23% or $311,383 from $7,358,302 to $7,669,685 in 2020,
as a result of current year operations.

e In 2020, total revenues from all sources increased 3.07% or $60,610 from $1,974,940 to
$2,035,550, primarily due to an increases of $103,411 in property taxes; which was offset by
decreases of $26,963 in charges for services and $15,838 in interest earnings.

e In 2020, total expenses from operations increased 10.30% or $161,025 from $1,563,142 to
$1,724,167, primarily due to increases of $97,803 in sanitary, $33,435 in water, and $28,387 in
general government operations.

e In 2020, the District did not receive capital grants compared to 2019, when the District received
$66,845 for the construction of its wastewater treatment plant.



Avila Beach Community Services District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Government Fund Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental fund — The focus of the District’s governmental fund is to provides information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
District’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The following discussion is correlated to the Balance Sheet — Governmental Fund found on page 11.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental fund reported combined ending fund
balance of $493,660, a decrease of $124,006 in comparison with the prior year. Of the total fund balance,
97.73%, or $491,363, constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the
government’s discretion. The remaining fund balance is assigned to indicate that it is not available for
general spending because it has already been assigned for compensated absences.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the District. As of the end of the current fiscal year, the
District’s general fund reported fund balance of $494,903, a decrease of §128,866 in comparison with the
prior year. Of the general fund balance, 99.54%, or $492,606, constitutes unassigned fund balance, which
is available for spending. The remainder of fund balance is assigned to indicaie that it is not available for
general spending because it has already been assigned fo: compensated absences.

The District’s general fund decrease of $128,866 is the resuit of a $392,667 gain from the current year’s
operations; which was offset by a $521,533 transfer-out to support the operations of the District’s other
funds.

The street lighting fund balance was a deficit of $1.245. The fund balance of the District’s street lighting
fund increased $4,860 as a result of 4 510,404 loss ltom the current year’s operations; which was offset
by a $15,264 transfer in from the general furnd to suppurt its operations.

Enterprise fund — The District’s enterpiise fund provides the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial siaicinents, butin greater detail.

Net position for all entérorise fund wicreased $441,431 from the prior year. Changes in total net position
from the prior year are as follows: the water enterprise fund increased by $110,722, of which an increase
of $36,111 was a result of current year operations and $74,611 related to transfer-in from the general fund
in support of its operations; tii¢ sanitary enterprise fund increased by $313,660, of which a decrease of
$117,998 was a result of current year operations; which was offset by $431,658 related to transfer-in from
the general fund in support of its operations; and the refuse enterprise increased by $17,049 as a result of
current year operations.

Governmental Activities Budgetary Highlights

The final actual expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2020, was more than budgeted by $3,768 for the
General Fund and less than budgeted by $4,205 for the Streets Lighting Fund. Actual revenues for the
year ended June 30, 2020, were more than the anticipated budget by $81,235 for the General Fund and
less than the anticipated budget by $309 for the Streets Lighting Fund. At June 30, 2020, there were no
differences between the original and final amended budgets. (See Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the
General Fund and Streets Lighting Fund under Required Supplementary Information section on pages 42
and 43).



Avila Beach Community Services District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Capital Asset Administration

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total District
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets 3 20 20 308,508 126,691 308,528 126,711
Depreciable assets 94,968 86,822 6,669,151 6,662,178 6,764,119 6,749,000
Total capital assets 94,988 86,842 6,977,659 6,788,869 7,072,647 6,875,711
Accumulated depreciation (59,246) (51,105) (3,587,000) (3,322,176) (3,646,246) (3,373,281}
Total capital assets, net $ 35,742 . 35737 3,390,659 3,466,693 3,426,401 3,502,430

At the end of fiscal year 2020, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to $3,426,401 (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, and
machinery and equipment. The capital assets of the District are more fully analyzed in Note 5 to the basic
financial statements.

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has caused business diszuption through mandated and
voluntary closings of businesses. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is
considerable uncertainty around the duration of the clésings. However, the related financial impact on
District and the duration cannot be estimated at this time.

Management is unaware of any other conditions. which could have a significant impact on the District’s
current financial position, net position, or operating results in terrss of past, present, and future.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s present users, including funding sources,
customers, stakeholders, and other interested parties with a general overview of the District’s finances and
to demonstrate the District’s accountabilily with an overview of the District’s financial operations and
financial condition. Should the reader hiave questions regarding the information included in this report or
wish to request additional financial information, please contact the District’s General Manager, Bradley
Hagemann at Avila Beach Community Services District, Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, California

93424 or (805) 835-3163



Basic Financial Statements



Avila Beach Community Services District
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 467,567 3,842,633 4,310,200
Accrued interest receivable 11,317 - 11,317
Accounts receivable — utilities, net (note 3) - 90,740 90,740
Property taxes and assessments receivable 23,893 - 23,893
Total current assets 502,777 3,933,373 4,436,150
Non-current assets:
Capital assets — not being depreciated (note 5) 20 308,508 308,528
Capital assets — being depreciated, net (note 5) 35,722 3,082,151 3,117,873
Total non-current assets 35,742 3,390,659 3,426,401
Total assets 538519 7,324,032 7,862,551
Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred pension outflows (note 7) 24,772 - 24,772
Total deferred outflows of resources 4,772 - 24,772
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,725 64,737 69,462
Accrued wages and related payables 2,095 - 2,095
Deposits and unearned revenue - 4,610 4,610
Compensated absences (note 6) 2,297 - 2,297
Total current liabilities 9,117 69,347 78,464
Non-current liabilities:
Net pension liability ( iiote 7) 131,246 - 131,246
Total non-currenti liabilities 131,246 - 131,246
Total liabilities 140,363 69,347 209,710
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred pension nflows (note 7) 7,928 - 7,928
Total deferred inflows of resources 7,928 - 7,928
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 35,742 3,390,659 3,426,401
Unrestricted 379,258 3,864,026 4243284
Total net position $ 415,000 7,254,685 7,669,685

See accompanying notes to the basic fmancial statements



01

SIUSUID}R)S [erouRUly JiSeq ) 0} s3jou Surduedwosoe 299

$89°699°L S89'PST'L 000°S ¥ $ 1234 Jo pus ‘uonisod JaN
T0€8SEL PSTEIS9 8F0°SHS 1eah yo Juruuigaq ‘uonisod JaN
€8€°TI¢E 1857 b % (8t0°0<1) uonisod 3au ur saduey)
- 69905 (697°905) (¥ r0u) (no)/ur s19jsueL],
L9S P18 E LOSHI8 SANUIAII [BIIUIZ [B)0 |
£97°€9 - €97°¢9 s3urures 190103U)
YOE1SL - POEISL $ soxe) Apadorg
SHONUAA I [ed 2)
r81°c08) (8¢8%9) (9pE'8Ep) €86°0TT T LOTPCLT $ [e10],
(8€849) (3£819) - YOI | OV6LT1 saniApae adLy-ssaursng [ejo,
670°L1 6v0°LT - LTHR1 8LET asnyoy
(866°L11) (866°L11) - IrL 0L y1L618 Areyueg
111°¢ I11°9¢ - 187 F6¢ 0LESSY Iaje My
:sap1apoe adAy-ssoursng
(ove3er) - Ovesey) - 65€9 SOLYHY SONIAROE [B)UIULIIA0S [€)0],
(zso'c1) - (zs9'c1) 168 EPSYI Sunysry
(y69vh) - 69vTy) 89%°S 791°0¢p $ JUSTILISAOS [€I5USD)
:SIANIANIE [BJUIUILIIAOY)
®IoL SANIANIY SANIANIY $IIAIDS sasuadxy swel804J/suonoung

adAy-ssoursng

[BJUDUILIJAOL) 0] SISaey)

uonsog 39N ui sasguey) SINUIAIY WeI30iJ
pue anu3AY (asuadxy) 3oN

0207 “0€ dung papujy Iedx ay) 104
SATIALOY JO JUSWIS)E)S
JINNSI SINAIIS (JIUNWWO)) YIedq e[IAY



11

LLLTOS (19€) 8E1°€0S $
099°¢6Y (evT1) €06't6Y
€916V (€rz1) 90961

L6T'T - L6TT

LIT°6 788 SET'8

L6TT - L6TT

$60°T - $60°C

STLY 788 £v8°c $
LLLT0S (19¢) 8E€1°€0S $
- (19€) 19

€68°€T - €65 CC

LIETL - Lietn

L9S'L9Y - L9S'L9Y $

SINIANIY sunysry L2ETER)
Jejusuauy o>¢mv N E] vﬁm

®I0],

0207 ‘o€ sunp
puUNj [EIUIWUIIAOL) — JIIS due[eg

JILGSI( SIIIAIIS ANUNWWO)) YIedqg C[IAY

SIUSWIS}R)S [BIOURBUL JISB( A} 0] sjou SuiAuedwiosor sag

93ed 1xou UO panUIIUO)

90UB[eq PuUL puE SIVIIqEI] [E)O,

Jdureq puny [e)o],
pousSisseun)

pousissy

(6 910u) ddueRq puny

SanIiqel] [e10],

(9 210u) sasuasqe pajesuaduron)
sojqedAed pajeal pue safem panidoy
sasuadxa paruooe pue gqesed suNooOY

:sapIIqer]

S)asse [B10]

( a10U) spuny I2yl0 WoIJ an(g

9[qRAIDI3I SJUSWISSISSE pue saxe] Ajpodorg
9]qBAISOD1 }SIIDUI PANIIIY

(z a10u) sjusreambs yses pue yse)

18)aSSY



4!

SJuSLUAR)S [EIauRIY J1seq Ayl 03 sajou Suuedwosoe 298

000°STY $ SAMIAIIY [BIUSWITIAA0L) JO uorsod 1aN

(826°L) spouad
aIny W pasn 3q 0} $301N0$A1 Jo Loismbe Sy v J[qeodde SO0MOSAT JO SMO[JU PALISYa(]

Orz1en) Amqey uoisuad 39N
S40[[0) s uoHsed 1aU Jo Justayels oy w paptodal are ‘uis)-Juop
pu® JUSLIMD Y)oq SAMIPY [{ "SIAMIIqe] pury [ejusuiarof se papodar jou a1e ‘ASupioooe
‘pue powrad Juarmd ayy vl sjqeAed Pz anp jou e JISI Y} 0} s[qesndde sanmiqen wusy-Suoy

TLLYT spouad
QY UI Pasn 3¢ 91 $20INNSAI J0 uondumsuo ot 03 Jqeodde $2IN0S3I JO SMOINO PaLIRJA(]

hLse *a[0y A © S J0LSI(] At JO s19sse oy Suowre uonisod fendeo asoyy
SOPO[OUI UOISCd }0U JO JUSWIAIE)S ) TOAIMOY] "JO9YS 90UE[Lq PUNJ [EIUSUWILISACS SY) UI Jou
‘310J9191 ‘PUR $IIINOSIIT [EIOUBUL] JUILINO JOU I SAPANOE [EJUSWIAA0S Ur pasn sjasse [epde)

:08MB29q JUSISYIP ST uonrsod JoU JO JUAUILIL]S SY) UI SAPATOR [BIUSUNIIIA0S J0] paiodar syumowry
0996 $ pum,{ [EJUSWILIIACK) JO 93UE[eq Punj [BJ0],
UONBIIIU0IY
0207 ‘0g dung

OISO J3N JO JUIWI)E)S ) 0) pUnj [EIUIWUIIAOL) JO 1Y ddUe[R ) JO UOHBI[IIUOINY
PLYSI SNAIIS AIUNWWO)) YIedy e[IAY



£l

*SJUSLISI RS [BIOURUL] JISeQ a1 0} soj0u Suiueduioose 99§

a8ed jxou uo panunuo)

095°c6Y (evT1) €06 61 $ Je24 Jo pu? ‘adue[eq puny
999°L19 (€01°9) 69L°€79 oA Jo Suruui8aq ‘adueeq punyg
(900'vT1) 098% (998'821) Jsuefeq puny ur agueyd JaN
(692°905) 9T (€€S°TTS) (¥ s10u) (no)ur sxspsuen SupeiadQ
:(sasn)sd2unos Supueuy 13410
£€97°78¢ Foror) L99°T6€ S41IPUAdX S L3A0 SINUIAM JO (AU IP)SSIIXY
£99°gcY S6T11 89€°LTH sarmypuadxa oy,
91’8 - 91 Kepno fenden
S6T11 S6T 11 - Suydy jeong
TT6ly - TTT6Ir JUSWUIDAOS [RISUSD)
ssaamypuadxyg
976078 168 SE0°078 SONUJAM [E}OL
65€9 168 891 ¢ $90IAI98 J0J sa8Iey)
£97°¢9 - 9'€9 s3ururea jsa1oyu]
POEISL - POEISL $ soxe) Apadorg
1SONUIAIY
SAADIY Supysry [LIETTENY
[EIUSWULIIACD) NEENITY
oL

puny [BJUSUINIIAQL) —

0707 ‘0€ dung papuy Ieax vy 10
Jduefeg puny ui safuey) pue ‘saImIpuadx] ‘SINUIAN JO JUIWANE)S
JILYSI( SIINAIS AYUNWWO)) Yaedq e[IAY



(80°0€1)
(Ly0'9)

9pI°g
(11°3)

(900t21)

$

$

¥1

SJUCLLEDYRIS [BIOLEW] J1Seq S 0 $9j0U SuUedwiodse 298

SAMIANOY [ejuRUIIAACK) Jo uomisod jou W saduey))

poLsd jiarmo 9y Jo suonediqo uorsuad ur adueys JaN
“SMOJ[0J SB Punyj [RuaniLiaA0d I sasuadxs se papiodal Jou a1 OI0JaIdY) ‘pUE S90IN0SAI
[ELOURULJ JUSIMO JO 3Sh 21)) 2Ibai 10T Op SAWIAIOE JO Judtaye}s ay ur payodal sasuadxa swog

Kepno Tepden
asuadxs uoneroaida(y
1SMO[[0] se asuadxd
UoIe991dop SB S2AI| [NJOsn PYeUnss ) I9A0 PIJEOO[E SI S)ASSE ISOY) JO 1509 Y} ‘SAAIOR
JO JUSWIA)ES U} UL “I0AMOY] “samyipuadxa se Agpino [ended spodal punj [ejusiuIascg
:3SNEBO3G JUIALJIP AJR SANANIE JO JUAUAILIS Y} Ul SAPALOR [BJUSUNLISA0T J0] papiodal sjunouwry

pun,] [EJUSUILIAACL) — d0uE[eq punj w dFueyd JoN

UONRIIIU0INY

0707 ‘0 sunp papuy Ieax ay) dog
SINIAOY JO JUIWIIE)S 9Y) 0} puUn [EJUIWUIIACL)

Jo doue[eq puny Ul saguey) pue ‘saImIpudIdxy ‘SINUIAIY JO JUIWIIE)S YY) JO UOTRI[IOU0INY

PLYSI( SINAIIS HHIUNWUO)) YIvdY B[IAY



ST

SJUSUISYE)S [BIOULUL] dISeq o) 0) sejou Sukuedimoose 99g

S89VST'L £€1°68 W9 Tr 'y 16LTLT  $ uonisod jou [ejo,
970'%98°¢ €€1°68 TE0VTo°T 198%S1°T (8 a10u) parorysay
659°06€°C - 609°L18T 0S0°ELS s}osse [ejded Ul JUSUNSIAUL JON
:uonisod jaN
LYE69 - £89°cy #99°6T sanIIqel| [B10L
L¥E69 - €89°cY ¥99°CT SOIN[IqEY] JUILIMI [2)0]
019y - - 019% SMUSASI PaUIRAU[)
LELYO - £89°cy 501 sasuadxe pentooe pue 9[qeAed SjUNOIOY
: SOIIqET] JuaLIn)
TE0YTEL €e1°68 (A 1472 SLSTONGS sjasse [ejo ],
659°06€°€ - 609°L18°C NSOELS §)9§SE JUILIND-UOU [E)O],
161°280°C - 101°60S°C 0SU'ELS (s =10u) 19u ‘parerodrdop Suraq — syasse [ende)
805°80¢ - 205°80€ - (s a0u) payerdaidsp Swaq jou — s19sse [ende))
1§)9SSE JUALINDI-UON
ELE'CEH'E €E1°G8 SILLYY GTS08IT §J3SS€ JUILIND [E)0],
0tL'06 - LTE LY VLY (¢ 210U) 12U ‘saIMN — S[GRAISODI SJUNOIOY
€€9°TH8'E €€1°68 88E YT TIT'EETT $ (z 910u) sjuopeambs yseo pue yse)
:§19SS€ Ju.LIn))
SANIADIY asnyay Areyueg FEITIVN
adAy-ssoursng
DA
0202 ‘0¢ dunp

pun, sLIdIa)uy — woIsoq JON JO JUIWA)EB)S
JILISI(] SIAIIS AJIUNWWO)) YIedg e[IAY



91

SIUSUIS)e)S [BIOURUL] SISeq 3y 03 $3j0u FuAuedwosde 995

SROVST'L €E1°68 9Ty 116'LTLT $ Iea4 o pud ‘wonisod 3N
ySTEI8%9 #8089 186'LZ1Y 681°L19°C Ie34 yo Junuidaq ‘aonisod jaN
IE¥ 1hb 6V0°LT 099°€1€ TTLOTL uopisod jau uy saduey)
69905 - 8S9°1EY [19%L ( 20u) w sa3ysuesy SuneradQ
(8€8%9) 6¥0°LT (866°L11) 1119¢ (sso)amodus Supreaadg
(¥Z8%92) - (L1T°'1€2) (LoLse) asuadxo uoneroaida(g
986661 6V0°LT 6ITCTT 21869 AsudUL Usieroardep a10Jeq swoou Suneradp
8€9V10°T 8LET L6S°88S £99'y7¥ sasuadxa Sugerado ejof,
185°70¢€ - TT80¢ 6SLILE SOOIAISS PUE S[ELISIEIN
ISL°9S - 109°%€ 0S1°72 sosuadxd sanensupy
67911 - L91°9 8PS sourmSU]
€88°69 - TSL'89 T€r] safddng
91112l - P05'601 71911 sourudwew pue saedoy
678°SE - 01L°€E 6Lz sanqu
67891¥ 8LET 170°50€ 0T+ L1 $90IAJAS [BUOISSIJOI]
:sosuadxa Juperadp
YOvITT LTY'81 91L 1 187 v6¥ anusA a1 Superado [ejox,
LTSI LTY'81 - = sofreyo osmyouey asnysy
9IL'TOL - 9ILTIL - soSreyo s01A19s Areueg
18%'¥61 - - 18V v6r $ so[es uondumsuod Iaje
:sanuaAd sunerddQ
$ANIANDY EHUEN | Ligjueg REILIVN
ad£y-ssaursng
oL

0707 ‘0€ dung papuy Ieax ayj 10
puny 3stadidjuy — UonISoJ JIN PuUnj ul sasuey) pue ‘sosuddxy] ‘SINUIAIY JO JUIUIIIL)S
JLNSI(J SAAIIG ANUNWWO)) Yordy C[IAY



Avila Beach Community Services District
Statement of Cash Flows — Enterprise Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers for water sales and services $ 1,230,971
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services (995,121)
Net cash provided by operating activities 235,850
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Operating transfer-in 506,269
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 506,269
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (188,790)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (188,790)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 553,329
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,289,304
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year h 3,842,633
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the statement of
net position:
2020
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,842,633
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 3,842,633

Continued on riext page

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

17



Avila Beach Community Services District

Statement of Cash Flows — Enterprise Fund, continued

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Operating loss

Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Changes in asset and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in asset:
Accounts receivable — water sales and services, net
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Unearned revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

18

$

$

2020

(64,838)

264,824

17,517

19,517
(1,170)
235,850



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity

The Avila Beach Community Services District (District) serves as the local government for the Avila
Beach community. The District is similar to a city government, supplying such services as fire protection,
street lighting, potable water, wastewater treatment, and solid waste disposal. The District exists under
California State law governing special districts (Government Code, Sec 61000 et. seq.). The District was
formed in February 1997, with the combining of the Avila Beach County Water District and the Avila
Lighting District. Previously, in 1974, the Avila Beach County Water District was formed by combining
the Avila Fire Protection District and the Avila Sanitary District. The District is governed by a five-
member Board of Directors who are elected at large. The directors entrust the responsibility for the
efficient execution of District policies to their designated representative, the General Manager.

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity. The District is the
primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board that is elected
by the citizens in a general popular election. Component units are Icgally separate organizations for which
the elected officials of the primary government are financially accouniahle. The District is financially
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organizziion’s governing body and: 1) It is able to
impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a piiential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens un. the primary government. The District has no

blended or discretely-presented component units.
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus
The basic financial statements of the District are composcd ot the following:

e Government-wide financial staicments
¢ Fund financial statements
e Notes to the basic financial slatemcnis

Government-wide Financial Staiemenis

These statements are presented on an econvmic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting for both govemmental and business-type activities. Accordingly, all of the District’s assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, including capital assets, are
included in the accompanying Stateiient of Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in
net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which the
liability is incurred. The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which program expenses of a
given function are offset by program revenues. Program expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function. The types of transactions reported as program revenues for the District are
reported in three categories, as applicable: 1) charges for services, 2) operating grants and contributions,
and 3) capital grants and contributions. Charges for services include revenues from customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by the
District. Grants and contributions include revenues restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not propetly included among program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

These statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance for all major governmental funds. Accompanying these statements are schedules to
reconcile and explain the differences in fund balance as presented in these statements to the net position
presented in the Government-wide Financial Statements.

19



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, continued
Fund Financial Statements, continued

Governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and liabilities are included
on the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance presents
increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in
net current assets. Under modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting
period in which they become measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period.
Accordingly, revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual
(generally 60-days after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary sources susceptible to accrual
for the District are property tax, interest earnings, investment revenue, and operating and capital grant
revenues. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified acctaal basis of accounting when the
related fund liability is incurred. However, exceptions to this rule inciude principal and interest on debt,
which are recognized when due.

The accrual basis of accounting is followed by the proprietary enterprise iund. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expaiises are recorded when the liability is incurred
or economic asset used; such as unbilled but utilized utility services that are recorded at year end.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expcises from non-operating items. Revenues are
recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Cperating revenues and expenses, such as
water sales, wastewater service, solid waste collection. and purchase of water result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity ol the District. Exchange transactions are those in which
each party receives and gives up essentially ¢qual vilues. Management, administration, and depreciation
expenses are also considered operaling expenses. Other revenues and expenses not included in the above
categories, such as interest income and inicicst expense, are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity with 4 self-balancing set or accounts established for the purpose of carrying out specific
activities, or attaining certain objetlives in accordance with specific regulations, restrictions, or
limitations.
Funds are organized into two miajur categories: governmental and proprietary categories. An emphasis is
placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if
it is the primary operation fund of the District, or meets the following criteria:
a) Total assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, revenues,
or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or proprietary fund are at least 10
percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type;
b) Total assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or proprietary fund are at least 5
percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and proprietary funds combined; or

¢) The entity has determined that a fund is important to the financial statement user.

20



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, continued

Fund Financial Statements, continued

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Fund

General — This fund acts as the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. This fund also includes all
activity and assets of the emergency and unemployment compensation funds.

Lighting — This fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the Front Street Plaza lights and
additional 27 streetlights in various locations around the community of the District.

Enterprise Fund
Water — This fund accounts for the water transmission and distribilion operations of the District.
Sanitary — This fund accounts for the wastewater service operations oi the District.
Refuse — This fund accounts for the solid waste collectiofi and disposal operations of the District.

C. Financial Reporting

The District’s basic financial statements have been preparcd in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Ameiica (GAAP), as applied to governmental funds. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ((3ASB) s the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial repoiting principles.

The District has adopted the following GASE pronouncement in the current year:

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 95 — Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain
Authoritative Guidance. The primary objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief to
governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished
by postponing the effectivc dates ol certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first
became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and

later.
D. Financial Statement Elenients
1. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources; disclosures of
contingent assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the
date of the financial statements; and the reported changes in net position during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

2. Uncertainty

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has caused business disruption through mandated and
voluntary closings of businesses. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is
considerable uncertainty around the duration of the closings. However, the related financial impact on
District and the duration cannot be estimated at this time.

21



1
D.

Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
Financial Statement Elements, continued
3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Substantially, all of the District’s cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers
all highly-liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

4. Accounts Receivable

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. Management deems all
accounts receivable as collectible at year-end. Accordingly, an allowance for doubtful accounts has
not been recorded.

5. Investment and Investment Policy

The District has adopted an investment policy to deposit funds in Iinancial institutions. Investments
are to be made in the following areas:

e (California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
e Checking and savings accounts at local financial institutions

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year ire recognized as unrealized gains or losses and
reported for that fiscal year. Investment income comprises iilierest earnings, changes in fair value, and
any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale ¢l investments.

6. Property Taxes and Assessments

The San Luis Obispo County Assessor’s Ofiice assessce all real and personal property within the
County each year. The San Luis Obispo County I'ux Collector’s Office bills and collects the District’s
share of property taxes and/or tax ussessments. The San Luis Obispo Treasurer’s Office remits current
and delinquent property tax collections lo: the District throughout the year. Property tax in California
is levied in accordance with Article 17A of the State Constitution at one percent (1%) of countywide
assessed valuations.

Property taxes and ussessments receivible at year-end are related to property taxes and special
assessments collected by the San | uis Obispo County, which have not been credited to the District's
cash balance as of Junc 30. The property tax calendar is as follows:

Lien date March 1

Levy date July 1

Due dates November 1 and February 1
Collection dates December 10 and April 10

7. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements.

22



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
D. Financial Statement Elements, continued

8. Capital Assets

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. The District policy has set
the capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $1,000. Donated assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation and/or historical cost. Upon retirement or other
disposition of capital assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the
respective balances and any gains or losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Governmental Activities

e Buildings and improvements — 20 to 30 years
e Fumniture and equipment — 5 years

Business-Type Activities

Sewage disposal system — 75 years

Treatment and collection system — 10 to 50 years
Transmission and distribution system — 20 to 50 years
Equipment — 5 to 10 years

9. Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent the consuniption of resources applicable to future periods.
10. Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue consists of customer deposits held at year-end.

11. Compensated Absences

It is the District’s policy 16 allow ¢mployees to accumulate earned but unused vacation time. The
vesting method is used to calculate the Hability and 100% of earned vacation time is payable upon
separation. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and enterprise fund
financial statements. The entire balance of compensated absences is expected to be used within one
year and is classified as # curreit liability. The General Fund is used to liquidate the compensated
absence liabilities.

12. Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of resources applicable to future periods.

23



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Financial Statement Elements, continued
13. Net Position

The government-wide financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position categories
are as follows:

Net investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and reduced by any debt outstanding against the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted net position — consists of constraints placed on net position use through external
constraints imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments, or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Unrestricted net position — consists of net position that does not meet the definition of net
investment in capital assets or restricted components of net position.

14. Fund Balance

The financial statements for governmental funds report fund balance as nonspendable, restricted,
committed, assigned, or unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to
honor constraints on how specific amounts can be spent.

Nonspendable fund balance — amouils thai cannot be spent because they are either (a) not
spendable in form, or (b) legally or contractusliy required to be maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance - amounts with constraints placed on their use that are either (a)
externally imposed by creditors. grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments, or (b) imposed by law dirough constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balanee — amounts that can only be used for specific purposes determined by
formal action or the Diwmct s highest level of decision-making authority (the Board of
Directors) and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner. The underlying action
that imposed the Jimitation niceds to occur no later than the close of the reporting period.

Assigned fund bakinee - amounts that are constrained by the District’s intent to be used for
specific purposes. The intent can be established at either the highest level of decision-making,
or by a body or an official designated for that purpose. This is also the classification for residual
funds in the District’s special revenue funds.

Unassigned fund balance — the residual classification for the District’s general fund that
includes amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other funds, the unassigned
classification is used only if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts
restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes.

Fund Balance Policy

The Board of Directors establishes, modifies, or rescinds fund balance commitments and assignments by
passage of an ordinance or resolution. This is done through adoption of the budget and subsequent budget
amendments that occur throughout the year. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available
for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first, followed by the unrestricted, committed,
assigned, and unassigned resources as they are needed.

24



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued
D. Financial Statement Elements, continued

14. Fund Balance, continued

Fund Balance Policy, continued

The District believes that sound financial management principles require that sufficient funds be
retained by the District to provide a stable financial base at all times. To retain this stable financial
base, the District needs to maintain an unrestricted fund balance in its fands sufficient to fund cash
flows of the District and to provide financial reserves for unanticipated expenditures and/or revenue
shortfalls of an emergency nature. Committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance are considered
unrestricted.

The purpose of the District’s fund balance policy is to maintain a prudent level of financial resources
to protect against reducing service levels or raising taxes and fe¢s because of temporary revenue
shortfalls or unpredicted one-time expenditures.

15. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and dcterred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pension and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and addition to/deduction
from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been deternitiicd on the same basis as they are reported by
CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit paymenis (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance wilh the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.

GASB 68 requires that reported results must periain to liability and asset information within certain
defined timeframes. For this repoit, the following time frames are used:

e  Valuation Date: Tune 30, 20138
e Measurement Daic June 30, 2019
e Measurement eriod: July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2020, are classified as follows:

2020
Governmental activitics:
General fund $ 467,567
Total governmental activities 467,567
Business-type activities:
Water fund 2,133,112
Sanitary fund 1,624,388
Refuse fund 85,133
Total business-type activities 3,842,633
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 4,310,200

25



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2020, consist of the following:

2020
Cash on hand $ 411
Deposits with financial istitutions 1,208,109
Deposits held with the California Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) 3,101,680
Total cash and mvestments $ 4,310,200

As of June 30, 2020, the District’s authorized deposits had the following maturities:
2020

Deposits held with the California Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) 191 days

Authovrized Deposits and Investments

Under provisions of the District’s investment policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of the
California Government Code, the District may invest in ceriain types of investments as listed in Note
1(D)(5) to the financial statements.

Investment in California Local Agency Investment Furnd

The District is a voluntary participant it the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair
value of the District’s investment in this pual is reported in the accompanying financial statements at
amounts based upon the District’s pri-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amuriized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is
based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

The District’s deposit and withdrawal restrictions and limitations are as follows:

Same day transactioi: processing occurs for orders received before 10:00 a.m.

Next day transaction processing occurs for orders received after 10:00 a.m.

Maximum limit of 15 transactions (combination of deposits and withdrawals) per month.
Minimum transaction amount requirement of $5,000, in increments of $1,000.
Withdrawals of $10 million or more require 24 hours advance.

Prior to funds transfer, an authorized person must call LAIF to do a verbal transaction.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the
District’s investment policy does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to
custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental
units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law
(unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral
pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by public agencies. Of the bank balance, up
to $250,000 is federally insured. The remaining balance is to be collateralized by the bank.

26



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(2) Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued
Custodial Credit Risk, continued

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment
or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The Code and the District’s investment
policy contain legal and policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for
investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments
in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment
in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rate will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The longer the maturity an investment has the greater its fair value has sensitivity to changes
in market interest rate. The District’s investment policy follows the¢ Code as it relates to limits on
investment maturities as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rate.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fuifill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization; however, LAIF is not rated.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District’s investment policy contains no limitalions on the amounts that can be invested in any one
issuer beyond that stipulated by the €uniornia Government Code. As of June 30, 2020, there were no
investments in any one issuer (othier than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and/or external
investment pools) that represents 5% or mare ol iotal District investments.

(3) Accounts Receivable - Utilities

The accounts receivable — utilities has becit determined to be 100% collectible and an allowance for
doubtful accounts is decimed unnecessary.

(4) Internal Transfers

Inter-fund Operational Transfers

Inter-fund transfers are used to move financial resources from the General fund to the Streets Light fund,
the Water fund, and the Sanitary fund to absorb the operating deficit and to support the operations of each
respective fund.

As of June 30, 2020, inter-fund receivables/payables between the District’s funds were as follows:

Due from Due to Amount
Street Lighting General § 361

27



Avila Beach Community Services District

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

June 30, 2020

(4) Internal Transfers, continued
Inter-fund Operational Transfers, continued

For the year end June 30, 2020, inter-fund transfers consist of the following:

Transfer Transfer
from to Amount
General Water S 74,611
General Sanitary 431,658
Transfer to Business-type 506,269
General Street Lighting 15,264
Transfer from General $ 521533

(5) Capital Assets
Governmental Activities

Change in capital assets for 2020, was as follows:

Balance Addidions/ Deletions/ Balance
2019 Transfers Transfers 2020
Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights $ 20 - 20
Total non-depreciable assets 20 - 20
Depreciable assets:
Furniture and equipment 18,208 8,146 26,354
Street lights 10,868 - 10,868
Building and improvemciits 57,746 - 57,746
Total depreciable assels 86,822 8,146 94,968
Accumulated depreciation:
Furniture and equipment (13,485) (2,719) (16,204)
Street lights (4,348) (2,174) (6,522)
Building and improvements (33,272) (3,248) (36,520)
Total accumulated depreciation (51,105) (8,141) (59,246)
Total depreciable assets, net 35,717 5 35,722
Total capital assets, net $ 35,737 35,742

Major capital asset additions in the governmental activities fund include additions to furniture and

equipment for the year ended June 30, 2020.

28



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(5) Capital Assets, continued
Business-Type Activities

Change in capital assets for 2020, was as follows:

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
2019 Transfers Transfers 2020
Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 60,294 - - 60,294
Construction in progress 66,397 181,817 - 248214
Total non-depreciable assets 126,691 181,817 - 308,508
Depreciable assets:
Water transmission and distribution 1,284,511 . - 1,284,511
Wastewater collection 5,377,667 6973 - 5,384,640
Total depreciable assets 6,662,178 6,973 - 6,669,151
Accumulated depreciation:
Water transmission and distribution (671,755) (33,707) - (711,462)
Wastewater collection (2,644.421) (231,117) - (2,875,538)
Total accumulated depreciation (3,322.176) {2064.824) - (3,587,000)
Total depreciable assets, net 3,340,002 (257,851) - 3,082,151
Total capital assets, net 5 1466,695 3,390,659

Major capital asset additions in the business-type activities fund include additions for construction in

progress for the year ended June 30, ZU20.

(6) Compensated Absences

Changes in compensated ahsence as of June 30, 2020, were as follows:

Balance Balance
2019 Earned Taken 2020
$ 1,219 3,534 (2,456) 2297

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Plan Description

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public Agency Cost-
Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Pension Plan (Plan or PERF C) administered by the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). The Plan consists of a miscellaneous risk pool and a
safety risk pool, which are comprised of individual employer miscellancous and safety plans,
respectively. Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and the District’s
resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan
regarding benefit provisions, assumptions, and membership information that can be found on CalPERS
website or may be obtained from their executive office at 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

29



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans, continued
Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of
credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members with five years of total service are
eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty
disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: The Basic Death
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living
adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

On September 12, 2012, the California Governor signed the California Public Employees’ Pension
Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) into law. PEPRA took effect January 1, 2013. The new legislation closed
the District’s CalPERS 2.0% at 60 Risk Pool Retirement Plan to new employee entrants, not previously
employed by an agency under CalPERS, effective December 31, 2012. All employees hired after January
1, 2013, are eligible for the District’s CalPERS 2.0% at 62 Retiremeril Plan under PEPRA.

The District participates in the Plan’s miscellaneous risk pool. The provisions and benefits for the Plan’s
miscellaneous pool in effect as of June 30, 2020, are summarizcd as follows.

New Classic PEPRA
Prior to On or after

December 31, January 1,
Hire date 2012 2013
Benefit formula 240% @ 60 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 52 - 67
Monthly benefits. as a 7. ol eligible

compensalisil 1.1% to 2.4% 1.0% to 2.5%

Required ¢mployee contribution rates N/A 6.75%
Requirea ¢mployer coniiibution rates N/A 6.99%

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by an actuary and shall be
effective on July 1, following notice of a change in rate. Funding contribution for the Plan is determined
annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30, by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated
amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, contributions recognized as part of pension expense for the Plan was
$12,834.

30



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans, continued

Net Pension Liability

As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate
share of the net pension liability of the Plan as follows:

2020
Proportionate share of net pension liability $ 131,246

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability for the miscellaneous risk pool. As of June 30, 2020, the net pension liability of the Plan is
measured as of June 30, 2019 (the measurement date). The total pension liability for the Plan’s
miscellaneous risk pool used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2018 (the valuation date), rolled forward to June 30, 2019, using standard update
procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative (o the projected contributions of all
participating employers, actuarially determined.

The District’s changes in the proportionate share of the net pension liability {or the Plan’s miscellaneous
risk pool as of the measurement date June 30, 2019, was as follows:

Proportionate
Share

Proportion — June 30, 2018 0.00131 %
Proportion — June 30. 2019 0.00128

Decrease in pioportionaie share 0.00003 %

Deferred Pension Outflows(Inflows; of Kesources

For the year ended June 30), 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $18,371. As of the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension from the {ollowing sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Description Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to
measurement date $ 12,324 -
Differences between actual and -
expected experience 8,408 -
Change in assumptions 4,040 -
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments - (2,296)
Adjustment due to change in proportions
and difference between actual and
proportionate share of contributions - (5,632)
Total $ 24,772 (7,928)

31



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans, continued

Deferred Pension Outflows(Inflows) of Resources, continued

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District’s deferred outflows of resources related to contributions
subsequent to the measurement date totaled $12,324; and other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as
follows:

Fiscal Year Deferred Net

Ending Inflows of
June 30, Resources
2021 $ 7435
2022 (4,210)
2023 832
2024 462

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2018, actuarial valuations were detemined using the following
actuarial assumptions and methods:

Valuation dates June 30. 2018
Measurement dates June 30, 2019
Actuarial cost method Fuiry Age Normal in accordance with the

requirements of GASB Statement No. 68

Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate 7.15%

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increase Varies by entry age and service

Mortality Table* Derived using CalPERS membership data

Period upon which actuarial
Experience survey assumptions were
based 1997 — 2015

Post-retirement benefit increase Contract COLA up to 2.50% until PPPA floor on
purchasing power applies; 2.50% thereafter

* The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes 15 years of
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries 90 percent of scale MP 2016. For more details on this
table, please refer to the December 2017, experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic data
from 1997 to 2015) available online on the CalPERS website.

On December 21, 2016, the Board lowered the discount rate for the PERF C for funding purposes from
7.50% to 7.00% percent using a three-year phase-in beginning with the June 30, 2016 actuarial
valuations.

32



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans, continued

Actuarial Assumptions, continued

On December 19, 2017, the Board of Administration adopted new actuarial assumptions based on the
recommendations in the December 2017 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial
Assumptions. This study reviewed the retirement rates, termination rates, mortality rates, rates of salary
increases, and inflation assumption. These new assumptions are incorporated into the June 30, 2017
actuarial valuations.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, for the PERF C
was 7.15%. This discount rate is not adjusted for administrative expenses.

The PERF C fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return for those pension
plans’ investments were applied to all periods of projected benelii payments to determine the total
pension liability.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investnicnts was deicimined using a building-block
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major ass¢! class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, Call’f kS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
and forecasted information for all funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were
calculated over the short term (first 10 years) and the long term (11+ years) using a building-block
approach. Using the expected nominal retiums for both short term and long term, the present value of
benefits was calculated for each fumil. The cxpected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded
single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the
one calculated using both short-termi and long-terini returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal
to the single equivalent rate valculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative

€Xpenses.

The table below reflecis long-term expected real rates of return by asset class. The rates of return were
calculated using the capital imarket assumptions applied to determine the discount rate.

Target Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10 Years 11+ _
Global Equity 50.00 % 4.80 % 538 %
Global Fixed Income 28.00 1.00 2.62
Private Equity 8.00 6.30 7.23
Real Asset 13.00 3.75 4.93
Liquidity 1.00 0.00 (0.92)
Total 100.00 %

33



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(7) Defined Benefit Pension Plans, continued
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following table presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pensionn liability for the Plan,
calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one
percentage point higher than the current rate.

As of June 30, 2020, the District’s net pension lability at the current discount rate, using a discount rate
that is one-percentage point lower, and using a discount rate that is one-percentage point higher are as
follows:

Current
Discount Discount Discount
Rate - 1% Hate Rate + 1%
6.15% - 115% 8.15%
District's Net Pension Liability $ 186,882 131,246 85,324

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net pusition is available in separately issued
CalPERS financial reports. See pages 44 and 45 for the Required Supplementary Information.

(8) Unrestricted Net Position
The District’s policy reserves the unrestricted net position of ilic water and sanitary fund as follows:

» Operating fund reserve — a range between a minimum of 90 days and a maximum of 270 days of
annual operation and mainiciiance expense.

o Capital replacement fund rescive - after reserving 270 days of annual operation and maintenance
expense for the operating fund reserve, two times the average annual S-year capital outlay
expenditures for the water fund; end two times the average annual 5-year capital outlay
expenditure for the sanitary fund.

e Emergency capital fiind reserve — 10% of fixed asset value for the water fund and 5% of fixed
asset value for the sanitary lund.

e Rate stabilization fund reserve — 10% of annual rate revenues for the water fund and the sanitary
fund.

A detailed schedule of unrestricted net position at June 30, 2020, for the water fund and the sanitary fund
is as follows:

Description Water Sanitary Refuse Total
Unrestricted:

Operating fund reserve $ 318,497 441,448 - 759,945
Capital replacement fund reserve 62,722 420,058 - 482,780
Emergency capital fund reserve 57,305 140,880 - 198,185
Rate stablization fund reserve 49,448 70,172 - 119,620
Unreserved 1,666,889 551,474 85,133 2,303,496

Total unrestricted $ 2,154,861 1,624,032 85,133 3,864,026

34



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(9) Fund Balance

Fund balance is presented in the following categories: non-spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and
unassigned (See Note 1(D)(14) for a description of these categories). A detailed schedule of fund balance

and their funding composition at June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Description 2020
Assigned
Compensated absences $ 2,297
Unassigned
Operations 491,363
Total fund balance $ 493,660

(10) Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thieft uf. damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of the
Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA), ani intergovernmenial risk sharing joint powers
authority created to provide self-insurance programs for California special districts. The purpose of the
SDRMA is to arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance
coverage.

At June 30, 2020, the District participated in the liability and property programs of the SDRMA as
follows:

e General liability coverage up 0 5 million per occurrence for bodily injury, property damage,
employment benefits, emplayee/public officials errors and omission, and employment practices
liability; coverage up to $1 million per accurrence for employee/public officials dishonesty; and
coverage up to $500,000 per oecurrence for public officials personal.

e Auto liability coverage up to $5 million per occurrence for auto bodily injury and property
damage; and coi crage based on limits on file for uninsured motorist.

e Property coverage up to $1 billion per occurrence for property; coverage up to $100 million per
occurrence for boilei and machinery; and coverage up to $2 million per occurrence for pollution.
Property coverage invoiving cyber is based on limits on file.

e Workers’ compensation insurance coverage up to the statutory requirements and employer’s
liability coverage up to $5 million.

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years. There
were no reductions in insurance coverage in fiscal years 2020, 2019 and 2018. Liabilities are recorded
when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated
net of the respective insurance coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred
but not reported (IBNR). There were no IBNR claims payable as of June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018.

35



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(11) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to the
report date that have effective dates that may impact future financial presentations.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84 — Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included
to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities.

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported. it applicable: (1) pension (and other
employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) privatc-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial
funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that arc not held in a trust or equivalent
arrangement that meets specific criteria.

The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2018; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the ¢ffeciive date has been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statemerit No. 87

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87 -~ Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial staiciment users by improving accounting and financial reporting
for leases by governments. This Staicment increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liaoilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It establishes 4 single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and

consistency of information about gavernments’ leasing activities.

The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2019; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by 18 months.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89 — Accounting for Interest Cost incurred Before the End
of a Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting petiod and (2)
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.

36



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(11) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89, continued

This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in
accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements, which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the
cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a
result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical
cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund.

This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a constriction period should be recognized as
an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles.

The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporiing periods beginning after December 15,
2019; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the ¢ifective date has beecn postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements of this Staterncnt should be applied prospectively.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 9(

In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. %~ Majority Lquity Interests—an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 61. The primary objectives ol this Statement are to improve the consistency
and comparability of reporting a government’s majorily equity interest in a legally separate organization
and to improve the relevance of financial swiiement information for certain component units. It defines a
majority equity interest and specifics that # majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
should be reported as an investment if a govermneni’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition
of an investment. A majority equity intcicst that meets the definition of an investment should be measured
using the equity method. tniess it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary
activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent
fund. Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value.

For all other holdings of a niajority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a government should
report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or fund that holds the
equity interest should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the equity method. This
Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization results
in the government being financially accountable for the legally separate organization and, therefore, the
government should report that organization as a component unit.

This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity
interest account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources
at acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component
unit. Transactions presented in flows statements of the component unit in that circumstance should
include only transactions that occurred subsequent to the acquisition.

The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2018; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements should be applied retroactively, except for the
provisions related to (1) reporting a majority equity interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a
component unit if the government acquires a 100 percent equity interest. Those provisions should be
applied on a prospective basis.

37



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(11) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91

In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91 — Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of
this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those
objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit
debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting
of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated
with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures.

This Statement also addresses arrangements—often characterized as leases—that are associated with
conduit debt obligations. In those arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the
proceeds of a conduit debt obligation and used by third-party obligors in the course of their activities.
Payments from third-party obligors are intended to cover and coincide with debt service payments.
During those arrangements, issuers retain the titles to the capifal assets. Those titles may or may not pass
to the obligors at the end of the arrangements.

This Statement requires issuers to disclose general itformation about their conduit debt obligations,
organized by type of commitment, including the aggregaic atistanding principal amount of the issuers’
conduit debt obligations and a description of eagh type of cummitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities
related to supporting the debt service of conduit deb! ohligations also should disclose information about
the amount recognized and how the liabilities changed during the reporting period.

The requirements of this Statement werc ¢ffective lur reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2020; however, in light of the COVIJ-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Buard Statement No. 92

In January 2020, the GASD issued Staternent No. 92 — Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement
are to enhance compafuhility in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASE Statemeiiis.

The requirements of this Statemcut were as follows: (1) The requirements related to the effective date of
Statement 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reinsurance recoveries, and terminology used to refer to
derivative instruments are effective upon issuance; (2) The requirements related to intra-entity transfers of
assets and those related to the applicability of Statements 73 and 74 are effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2020; (3) The requirements related to application of Statement 84 to
postemployment benefit arrangements and those related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets
or liabilities are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2020; and (4) The requirements
related to the measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) associated with AROs in a government
acquisition are effective for government acquisitions occurring in reporting periods beginning after June
15, 2020; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one
year. Earlier application is encouraged and is permitted by topic.

38



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continned
June 30, 2020

(11) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 93

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 93 — Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The
objective of this Statement is to address accounting and financial reporting implications that result from
the replacement of an IBOR. This Statement achieves that objective by: (1) Providing exceptions for
certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge accounting termination provisions when an IBOR 1is
replaced as the reference rate of the hedging derivative instrument’s variable payment; (2) Clarifying the
hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedged item is amended to replace the reference rate; (3)
Clarifying that the uncertainty related to the continued availability of IBORs does not, by itself, affect the
assessment of whether the occurrence of a hedged expected transaction is probable; (4) Removing LIBOR
as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest
rate swap; (5) Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as
appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate
swap; (6) Clarifying the definition of reference rate, as it is used iz Statement 53, as amended; and (7)
Providing an exception to the lease modifications guidance in Staiement 87, as amended, for certain lease
contracts that are amended solely to replace an IBOR as the rate upon whicli variable payments depend.

The requirements of this Statement were effective as follows: (1) The removal of LIBOR as an
appropriate benchmark interest rate is effective for reporting pefiods ending after December 31, 2021; and
(2) All other requirements of this Statement are effective 101 reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2020; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandeinic, the effective dates have been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Stateiient No. 94

In March 2020, the GASB issued Statcment No. 94 — Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangemeiis. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related 10 public-private and public-public partnership arrangements
(PPPs). As used in this Statcmient, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor)
contracts with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by
conveying control of tli¢ right to operule or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital
asset (the underlying PPF asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Some
PPPs meet the definition of & service concession arrangement (SCA), which the Board defines in this
Statement as a PPP in which (1) the operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties; (2)
the transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approve which services the operator is required to
provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the services, and the prices or rates that can be
charged for the services; and (3) the transferor is entitled to significant residual interest in the service
utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the arrangement.

This Statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment
arrangements (APAs). As defined in this Statement, an APA is an arrangement in which a government
compensates an operator for services that may include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or
operating an underlying nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like
transaction.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all
reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged.

39



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(11) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96 — Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
(governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use
subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the
capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a
SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for
SBITAs are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all
reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 97

In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97 — Certain Component Lnit Criteria, and Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 41 and No. 84, and u supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The
primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances i: which a potential component unit does not
have a governing board and the primary governmient performs the duties that a governing board typically
would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated witl the reporting of certain defined contribution pension
plans, defined contribution other postemployment benctit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans
other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in
fiduciary fund financial statements: a1id (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the
accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation
plans (Section 457 plans) that mect the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through
those plans.

The requirements of this Statement that (1) exempt primary governments that perform the duties that a
governing board typically performs {rom treating the absence of a governing board the same as the
appointment of a voting riaiority of a governing board in determining whether they are financially
accountable for defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, or other employee
benefit plans and (2) limit the applicability of the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement
84 to defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts
that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement 67 or paragraph 3 of Statement 74, respectively, are
effective immediately. The requirements of this Statement that are related to the accounting and financial
reporting for Section 457 plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. For purposes
of determining whether a primary government is financially accountable for a potential component unit,
the requirements of this Statement that provide that for all other arrangements, the absence of a governing
board be treated the same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform, are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier application of those requirements is encouraged
and permitted by requirement as specified within this Statement. The Board considered the effective dates
for the requirements of this Statement in light of the COVID-19 pandemic and in concert with Statement
No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance.

40



Avila Beach Community Services District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
June 30, 2020

(12) Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation
In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties.

After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any,
will not materially affect its financial condition.

Grant Awards

Grant funds received by the District are subject to audit by grantor agencies. Such audit could lead to
requests for reimbursements to grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.
Management of the District believes that such disallowances, if any, would not be significant.

Contracts and Agreements

The District is one of the entities covered by an agreement entered in October 1992, between the Central
Coast Water Authority (CCWA) and San Luis Obispo (SLO) County o treat water delivered through the
State Water Project (SWP).

(13) Subsequent Events

Events occurring after June 30, 2020, have been evaluated for possible adjustment to the financial
statements or disclosure as of November 10, 2020, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued. The District is not aware of any subsequent events that would require recognition
or disclosure in the financial statements.

41



Required Supplementary Information






Adopted Board Actual Vairance
Original Approved Revised Budgetary Positive
Budget Changes Budget Basis (Negative)
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 660,000 - 660,000 751,304 91,304
Interest earnings 75,000 - 75,000 63,263 (11,737)
Charges for services 3,800 - 3,800 5,468 1,668
Total revenues 738,300 - 738,800 820,035 81,235
Expenditures:
General government 423,600 - 423,600 419,222 4378
Capital outlay - - - 8,146 (8,146)
Total expenditures 423,600 - 423,600 427,368 (3,768)
Excess(deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 315,200 - 315,200 392,667 77467
Other financing sources(uses):
Operating transfers in{out) (191,000) - (191,000) (521,533) (330,533)
Net change in fund balance 124200 & - 124200 (128,866) (253,066)
Fund balance, be ginning of year 623,769 623,769 623,769
Fund balance, end of year by 747,969 747,969 494 903

Avila Beach Community Services District
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Notes to Required Supplementary Information — General Fund

(1) Budgets and Budgetary Data

The District follows specific procedures in establishung the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements. Each year the District’s General Manager prepares and submits an operating budget to the
Board of Directors for the General Fund né fater than June of each year. The basis used to prepare the
budget does not differ substantially frami ihe moditied accrual basis of accounting. The adopted budget
becomes operative on July 1. The Board of Directors must approve all supplemental appropriations to the
budget and transfers betwicn majoi dccouils

The District presents a comparison of the annual budget to actual results for the General Fund at the
functional expenditure-type major object level for financial reporting purposes. The budgeted expenditure
amounts represent the adopted budgct.

42



Avila Beach Community Services District
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Streets Light Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Adopted Board Actual Vairance
Original Approved Revised Budgetary Positive
Budget Changes Budget Basis (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 1,200 - 1,200 891 (309)
Total revenues 1,200 - 1,200 891 309
Expenditures:
Street lighting 15,500 - 15,500 11,295 4,205
Total expenditures 15,500 - 15,500 11,295 4205
Excess(deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (14,300) - (14,300) (10,404) 3,896
Other financing sources(uses):
Operating transfers m(out) 16,000 - 16,000 15,264 (736)
Net change in fund balance 1,700 - 1,700 4,860 3,160
Fund balance, beginning of year (6,103) (6,103) (6,103)
Fund balance, end of year $ (4,403) 11.403) (1,243)

Notes to Required Supplementary Information - Streets Light Fund
(1) Budgets and Budgetary Data

The District follows specific procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements. Each year the District’s General Manager prepares and submits an operating budget to the
Board of Directors for the Streets Light Fund no later ihan Juiie of each year. The basis used to prepare
the budget does not differ substantially ltom the miodified accrual basis of accounting. The adopted
budget becomes operative on July 1. The Boaid of Directors must approve all supplemental
appropriations to the budget and transfers hétween major accounts.

The District presents a comparison of the annual budget to actual results for the Streets Light Fund at the
functional expenditure-type inajoi ahiect level for financial reporting purposes. The budgeted expenditure
amounts represent the adopted budge!

43



Avila Beach Community Services District
Schedules of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
Last Ten Years*

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Measurement Dates
Description 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014

District's proportion of the net pension liability 0.00128% 0.00131% 0.00138% 0.00146% 0.00171% 0.00207%
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 131,246 126,061 136,401 126,121 117077 125453
District's covered-employee payroll $ 42387 39321 42,741 62,301 60,480 58,718
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability(asset)

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 309.64% 320.59% 319.13% 202.44% 193.58% 213.65%
Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the plan's

total pension liability 75.26% 75.26% 73.31% 74.06% 78.40% 79.82%

Notes to the Schedules of the District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

Change in Benefit Terms — Public agencies can make changes to th¢ir plan provisions, and such changes
occur on an ongoing basis. A summary of the plan provisions that were used for a specific plan can be
found in the plan’s annual valuation report.

Change of Assumptions and Methods — In December 2017, the CalPERS Board adopted new mortality
assumptions for plans participating in the PERF. The new mioitality table was developed from the
December 2017 experience study and includes 15 years of projected ongoing mortality improvement
using 90% of scale MP 2016 published by the Saciety of Actuaries. The inflation assumption is reduced
from 2.75% to 2.50%.

The assumptions for individual salary increases and oyerall payroll growth are reduced from 3.00% to
2.75%. These changes will be implemented in two steps commencing in the June 30, 2017 funding
valuation. However, for financial repbiting purposes. these assumption changes are fully reflected in the
results for fiscal year 2018.

In fiscal year 2017, the financial reporiing discount rate for the PERF C was lowered from 7.65% to
7.15%. In December 2016, thc CalPERS Board approved lowering the funding discount rate used in the
PERF C from 7.50% ta 7.00%, which is 1o be phased in over a three-year period (7.50% t07.375%,
7.375% to 7.25%, and 7 25% to 7.00%4) beginning with the June 30, 2016, valuation reports. The funding
discount rate includes a 15 hasis-point reduction for administrative expenses, and the remaining decrease
is consistent with the change 11 the financial reporting discount rate.

In fiscal year 2015, the financial reporting discount rate was increased from 7.50% to 7.65% resulting
from eliminating the 15 basis-point reduction for administrative expenses. The funding discount rate
remained at 7.50% during this period, and remained adjusted for administrative expenses.

* The District has presented information for those years for which information is available until a full 10-
year trend is compiled.

44



As of June 30, 2020
Last Ten Years*

Avila Beach Community Services District
Schedules of Pension Plan Contributions

Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Description 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015
Actuarially determined contribution $ 12,324 12,834 14,788 13,713 9,566 9,394
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determmed
contribution (12,324) (12,834) (14,788) (13,713) (9,566) (9,894)
Contribution deficiency(excess) $ - - - - - -
District's covered payroll $ 40,000 42,387 39,321 42,741 62,301 60,480
30.81% 30.28% 37.61% 32.08% 15.35% 16.36%

Contribution's as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

Notes to the Schedules of Pension Plan Contributions
* The District has presented information for those years for which information is available until a full 10-

year trend is compiled.

45



Report on Internal Controls and Compliance






Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
Board of Directors
Avila Beach Community Services District
Avila Beach, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Avila Beach
Community Services District (District) as of and for the year ended inie 30, 2020, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprises the Distriet's basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated November 10, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statemenls, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine tne audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing vur opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of tlie District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exisls when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course ot performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements On a timelv basis. A iaterial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there 15 a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statgincnts wili net be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is & deficiency. or & combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal contyoi was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

46



Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, continued

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance,
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fedake ¢34awﬂ LLP

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
November 10, 2020

47






AVILA BEACH
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424
MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manage@
DATE: November 10, 2020

SUBJECT: Certify Mitigated Negative Declaration for Wastewater System
Improvements Project, Resolution No. 2020-08

Recommendation:

Adopt Resolution No. 2020-08 Certifying the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Project.

Discussion:

In order to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the District
retained Oliveria Environmental Consulting to prepare an Initial Study and Mitigated
Negative Declaration (MND) for the District’s two wastewater system improvement
projects (Force Main Realignment and WWTP Redundancy Project). The Draft MND
was filed with the State Clearinghouse on October 2, 2020, for transmittal to any
interested agencies and posted on the District’s website. A copy of the MND was also
made available at the District office. On October 2, 2020, District staff published a
Notice of Intent in the local newspaper to conduct a hearing to adopt the Project MND
and provided a copy of the Notice to any interested parties.

The public comment period for the MND ended on November 2, 2020. The District
received no comments or questions on the MND. Staff now recommends that the Board
adopt Resolution No. 2020-08, certifying the MND.



RESOLUTION No. 2020 - 08

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
AVILA BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
ADOPTING AN ENVIRONMENTAL MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION
AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO FILE A NOTICE OF
DETERMINATION FOR THE BELOW DESCRIBED PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Avila Beach Community Services District (herein “District”) intends to
implement two wastewater system projects including realignment of an existing sewer force main
and improvement to the treatment processes at the District Wastewater Treatment Plant in Avila
Beach, CA. (herein referred to as “the Project”; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (herein “CEQA”), an
Initial Study was prepared for the Project which is on file with the District office. The study
proposed that a Mitigated Negative Declaration be approved given that it was determined that no
potentially significant environmental impacts will occur from the Project; and

WHEREAS, Public Notice of the proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration was given as
required by Section 21092 of the Public Resources Code; and

WHEREAS, on November 10, 2020,the District, pursuant to the Brown Act and CEQA, held
a Public Hearing on the proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration, reviewed written comments, and
accepted public testimony regarding the proposed Negative Declaration; and

WHEREAS, based on the information contained in the Mitigated Negative Declaration
prepared for the Project, the staff report, and testimony received, the District, using its independent
and objective judgment, finds that the project will not have potentially significant effects on the
environment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the
Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community Services District as follows:

1. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein.

2. In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act, the Mitigated Negative
Declaration for the Project is hereby approved.

3. The General Manager is authorized to file a Notice of Determination in compliance
with Section 21152 of the Public Resource Code.



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Avila Beach Community
Services District this 10th day of November, 2020 on the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on November 10, 2020.

Pete Kelley, President
ATTEST:

Brad Hagemann
Secretary to the Board

APPROVED AS TO FORM.:

Michael Seitz
District Legal Counsel



Notice of Determination Appendix D
To: From:
[0 Office of Planning and Research Public Agency: Avila Beach CSD

Address: 100 San Luis Street
Avila Beach, CA 93424

Contact: Brad Hagemann, General Manager
Phone: 805-595-2664

U.S. Mail: Street Address:
P.O. Box 3044 1400 Tenth St., Rm 113
Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 Sacramento, CA 95814

[=] County Clerk

County of: San Luis Obispo Lead Agency (if different from above):
Address: 1055 Monterey Street Same
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 Address:
Contact: B
Phone:

SUBJECT: Filing of Notice of Determination in compliance with Section 21108 or 21152 of the Public
Resources Code.

State Clearinghouse Number (if submitted to State Clearinghouse): 2020100026
Project Title: Force Main Realignment Gravity Main Replacement and WWTP Redundancy Projiect

Project Applicant: Avila Beach Community Services District

Project Location (include county): Avila Beach Dr./San Miguel St., Avial Beach, San Luis Obispo County

Project Description:

Realignment of sewage force main, replacement of a gravity sewer line and improvements to the
community wastewater treatment plant. Force main realignment will re-route from First St. lift station,
through the Parking Lot and continue to a manhole in Avila Beach Dr. The gravity main project will
replace the gravity main at the Avila Beach Dr./San Miguel St. intersection, extending to the existing
WWTP where a packaged Membrane Bioreactor will be added along with internal improvements.

This is to advise that the Avila Beach Community Services District has approved the above
(=] Lead Agency or [] Responsible Agency)
described project on 11/10/2020 and has made the following determinations regarding the above
(date)

described project.

1. The project [[M will [] will not] have a significant effect on the environment.

2. [] An Environmental Impact Report was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.
[W A Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.

3. Mitigation measures [[@ were [] were not] made a condition of the approval of the project.

4, A mitigation reporting or monitoring plan [[B] was [ ] was not] adopted for this project.

5. A statement of Overriding Considerations [[] was [8@] was not] adopted for this project.

6. Findings [[@) were [ ] were not] made pursuant to the provisions of CEQA.

This is to certify that the final EIR with comments and responses and record of project approval, or the
negative Declaration, is available to the General Public at:
100 San Luis St., Avila Beach, CA. www.avilabeachcsd.org/project-notices-employment-opportunities

Signature (Public Agency): Title: General Manager

Date: Date Received for filing at OPR:

Authority cited: Sections 21083, Public Resources Code.
Reference Section 21000-21174, Public Resources Code. Revised 2011



AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manager/-’*‘%szf‘vﬁ',
DATE: November 10, 2020 B

SUBJECT: Award Contract for Final Design and Bid Services for Wastewater
Treatment Plant Redundancy Project

Recommendation:
Review the engineering design support proposals and select an engineering firm to move
forward with final project design, bidding and awarding a construction contract

Discussion:

At the October 13, 2020, Board meeting the Board reviewed the membrane bioreactor
manufactures proposals and staff’s scoring evaluations and selected Cloacina LLC to
construct the membrane bioreactor unit (MBR). As noted in the October Staff Report the
next major step is to award a contract for value engineering/integration (now that an MBR
manufacturer has been selected), complete the final design and prepare the bid documents
for construction of the MBR foundation, electrical upgrades and piping of the MBR unit
and the wet well upgrade work.

Staff had received a proposal for final engineering design, engineering services during
construction and construction management from MKN Engineering in mid-July. At the
October Board meeting, the Board directed staff to obtain at least one other proposal for
engineering services from a qualified engineering firm that has experience with the
integration and installation of an MBR unit. Cloacina representatives indicated that they
have worked with Wallace Group Engineering on a number of MBR installation projects.
Most recently, Wallace Group was part of the Cloacina design-build team that is installing
a similarly sized MBR wastewater treatment plant at the San Diego Zoo Safari Park.



Staff reached out to Wallace Group Engineering and they indicated they were interested in
submitting a proposal for engineering services. The MKN Engineering proposal and the
Wallace Group Engineering proposal are attached to this staff report. A
summary/comparison of the major components and associated costs is provided below.

Wallace Group | MKN
Final Design & Bid Docs $124,000 ' $199,003
Bid Phase Services $6,600 $80,910
(Assumes 40 hours) (Assumes 321 hours)
Construction Management $83,380 $175,000
(2 time for 3 months) ¥ time for 6 months

The engineering proposals are formatted slightly different with regard to the task details,
but both provide deliverables and engineering support that provide bid documents that will
lead to a construction contract and completion of the project. The cost difference appears
to be based on the anticipated level of effort each firm believes they will need to complete
the tasks. Both engineering proposals are based on a time and materials basis with a “not
to exceed” amount unless formally approved by the District.

Both MKN and Wallace Group have worked with Cloacina on MBR installation projects
and both firms are well qualified to provide the engineering support. Wallace Group may
have more extensive and more recent MBR installation experience which resulted in
Wallace Group’s anticipating that they can complete the engineering work in a more cost-
effective manner.

Staff recommends the Board only award a contract at this time for Final Design & Bid
Documents, and Bid Phase Services. A contract for Construction Management Services
can be awarded at the time the District awards the construction contract.



P.O. Box 1604

Arroyo Grande, CA 93421
805.904.6530
805.904.6532

July 15, 2020

Brad Hagemann, PE
General Manager
Avila Beach Community Services District

{Submitted Electronically)

RE: Proposal to Provide Final Engineering Design, Engineering Services During Construction, and
Construction Management for the ABCSD WWTP Improvements

Dear Brad,

Michael K. Nunley & Associates, Inc., (MKN) is pleased to submit this proposal to the Avila Beach
Community Services District (ABCSD, District) to provide engineering design and construction phase
services for the District’s Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Improvements Project. We have
prepared this proposal based on experience during the preliminary design and conversation with District

staff.

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

ABCSD owns and operates the Avila Beach WWTP which treats wastewater from the District’s service area as
well as Port San Luis Harbor District (PSLHD). The WWTP is permitted for a maximum monthly average dry
weather flow of 0.20 million gallons per day (MGD). To review the impact of increasing flows and loading to
the WWTP, MKN prepared the Avila Beach Community Services District WWTP Alternatives Study (2019). The
WWTP Alternatives Study identified several improvements included modifications to the influent lift station
and installation of a packaged membrane bioreactor (MBR) system. The packaged MBR system is intended to
operate in parallel with the existing WWTP primary and secondary treatment processes, reducing the loading

on the existing WWTP.

Earlier this year MKN prepared the preliminary design, including 30% plans, for the WWTP improvements
Project and developed a Technical Memorandum which evaluated the feasibility of adding flow equalization
storage. MKN also prepared the Request for Proposals for the MBR Treatment System to assist in selection
and procurement of the MBR Treatment Plant equipment. Once the equipment manufacturer is selected,
detailed design will move forward, incorporating specifics from the selected MBR Treatment System

equipment.

This proposal summarizes engineering services for development of the final design and construction
documents for public bidding, bid phase services, and construction phase engineering and management

services.

ARROYC GRANDE | BAKERSFIELD | FRESNG | IRVINE = SANTA CLARITA | VENTURA MKMNASSOCIATES.US




Brad Hagemann, PE
Page 2

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED ENGINEERING SERVICES

MKN will provide design services for the Project including the development of construction plans,
technical specifications, and cost opinions for the following project components:

¢ Influent lift station modifications

e 50,000 gpd packaged membrane bioreactor (MBR) system for parallel operation with the
existing fixed film reactor (FFR)
Electrical system improvements including new electrical service to the WWTP
Retaining wall and site improvements to increase usable area adjacent to Avila Beach Drive
Instrumentation and control systems to support the new facilities
Piping connections between the new MBR system into the existing plant facilities
Equalization Tank and associated feed pump and aeration system (assumed at this time to be
developed as a bid alternate)

MKN’s team includes the following engineering subconsultants:
e Yeh & Associates, Inc. — Geotechnical Engineering
e IRJ Engineers, Inc. — Electrical Engineering
e Smith Structural Group — Structural Engineering
e MSO Technologies — Instrumentation and Controls Engineering

MKN will also provide bid phase support, engineering services during construction and construction
management services.

SCOPE OF WORK

MKN proposes to perform the following scope of work for this project:

TASK GROUP 100 PROJECT MANAGEMENT, MEETINGS, AND QA/QC

MKN will organize and attend bi-weekly progress and coordination meetings during the design phase of
the project to discuss progress and coordinate with District staff on information needs, design decisions,
and elements of the project performed by others, such as permitting, utility coordination and financing,
as needed. It is assumed these meetings will be used to review the draft plans and specifications and/or
District comments. For budgeting purposes, MKN has assumed design phase will last 7 months, for a
total of 14 progress meetings. A project schedule will be maintained in Microsoft Project throughout the
design. Progress reports will be provided via email with each project invoice.

MKN will perform quality control reviews on all deliverables prior to submitting to the District. A Senior
Engineer or Principal Engineer who is not involved in the day-to-day effort will perform an independent

review of the project.

Task GROUP 200 ADDENDUM TO GEOTECHNICAL REPORT

The Project Geotechnical Report was developed during the preliminary design phase. After geotechnical
investigations were completed and the draft Geotechnical Report prepared, the District engaged MKN
to develop a feasibility study to add equalization storage to the WWTP. The feasibility study reviewed
two main alternatives for adding equalization storage, and resulted in recommendation of a stand-alone
equalization tank, should the District pursue the improvement. To inform the design, MKN’s

ARROY( GRANDE = BAKERSFIELD | FRESNO | IRVINE | SANTA CLARITA | VENTURA MKNAS




Brad Hagemann, PE
Page 3

subconsultant, Yeh & Associates will develop an addendum to the Project Geotechnical Report to
summarize recommendations for subsurface preparation and foundation support for the equalization

tank.
TASK GROUP 300 PERMITTING ASSISTANCE AND TECHNICAL SUPPORT

Task 301 MBR Treatment System Submittal Review

It is assumed the agreement with the selected MBR Treatment System provider will require an
equipment submittal prior to bidding the construction contract. MKN will review this submittal for
conformance with the project requirements and provide comments. This proposal assumes one
resubmittal. Once the submittal is returned with no further comments, MKN will utilize the submittal as

the basis of design for the project.
Task 302 Permit Assistance

MKN will prepare and submit the applications and supporting documents for permits required for the
construction of this project, except those normally obtained by the Contractor. The permits anticipated
for this project include those required by the Air Pollution Control District for installation and operation
of the new standby generator and an encroachment permit with the County of San Luis Obispo. MKN
will complete and submit the preliminary encroachment permit application with a request for a draft
encroachment permit with the goal of incorporating County requirements into the construction
documents. The Contractor will be responsible for filing the final encroachment permit application.

MKN will prepare the Authority to Construct/Permit to Operate (ATC/PTO) application for the new
generator and submit it to the San Luis Obispo County Air Pollution Control District (APCD) for review.
We assume the District will pay the application fees for the County encroachment permit and the APCD

permit.
Task 303 Technical Support for CEQA

The District has retained a separate consultant to prepare necessary environmental documentation in
compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). It is assumed that a Mitigated
Negative Declaration {(MND) will be developed for the Project. MKN will provide as-needed technical
support to the CEQA consultant for development of the environmental review and preparation of the
CEQA documentation. As-needed tasks may include providing technical information required to develop
the analysis, assisting the District in review of information and draft documents prepared by the CEQA
consultant, and providing engineering support for responses to comments on the Public Draft CEQA
documents. MKN recommends a budget of 30 hours for this task.

Task GROUP 400 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

MKN will prepare construction plans and specifications and provide two (2) progress submittals (Draft
Final and Final). The design will be based on the Preliminary Design Report and the Equalization Study
Technical Memorandum. MKN will prepare front end contract documents using Engineering Joint
Contract Documents Committee (EJCDC) and technical specifications in CS| format. Plans will be
prepared in AutoCAD. An updated opinion of probable construction cost will be submitted with each
deliverable. The District will review the contents of each submittal and provide comments for
incorporation into the subsequent submittal. An opinion of probable construction costs will be prepared

to accompany each submittal.

ARROYO GRANDE | BAKERSFIELD | FRESNO | IRVINE | SANTACLARITA = VENTURA




Brad Hagemann, PE
Page 4

Task 401 Draft Construction Documents

Submittal will include the following items {electronic copy in PDF format):
e Draft half-size (11” x 17”) drawings
e Draft technical specifications (Divisions 02 to 43)
e Draft Front-end documents (Division 00)

e Draft opinion of probable construction costs

Task 402 Final Construction Documents
Submittal will include the following items (electronic copies in PDF, MS Word, and AutoCAD formats)
e Final half-size (11" x 17”) drawings
e Final full-size (22" x 34") drawings
e Completed front-end documents (Division 00 provided by District)
¢ Final technical specifications (Divisions 02 to 43)

o Final opinion of probable construction cost

Anticipated Sheet List (37 Sheets):
e Cover Sheet, Index, General Notes, and Survey (3 Sheets)
e Civil (14 Sheets)
e Structural (6 sheets)
e Electrical (9 Sheets)

e Instrumentation and Controls (5 sheets)

TASK GROUP 500 ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING BID PHASE AND CONSTRUCTION

The following engineering services during bid and construction phases will be provided. Assumptions are
included as the basis for the budget.

Task 501 Bid Phase Services

During bidding of the project MKN will provide the following services:
e Prepare and conduct a pre-bid meeting and job walk
e Assist the City in compiling a list of bidders

e Respond to requests for information (RFls) during the bidding period and prepare addenda for
issuance to bidders by the District. Our budget assumes up to five (5) questions by prospective
bidders and development of up to one addendum.

e Review submitted bids

ARROYO GRANDE | BAKERSFIELD | FRESNO | IRVINE | SANTACLARITA | VENTURA




Brad Hagemann, PE
Page 5

e Prepare a recommendation for the award of the construction contract

Task 502 Preconstruction Meeting

MKN design team will attend the pre-construction meeting with the Construction Manager, District and
the Contractor to review the project status, discuss schedule and project requirements, and establish
lines of communication. It is assumed the Construction Manager will conduct the meeting.

Task 503 RFIs and Change Orders

MKN shall review, coordinate with District staff, and respond to contractor’s Request for Information
(RFls). When appropriate, suggestions and alternatives will be provided to the Contractor and/or District
staff. Up to twelve (12) RFIs are assumed for budgeting purposes.

As directed by District staff or the Construction Manager, MKN shall analyze and make recommendation

to District staff regarding contract change orders and plan revisions requested during construction.
Change orders will be evaluated from an engineering perspective. Budget has been included for up to

three (3) change orders.
Task 504 Submittal Review

MKN will receive and review technical submittals for general conformance to the Contract Documents.
Our recommended budget assumes an average of 3 hours review per submittal for up to thirty (30)

submittals.
Task 505 Engineer's Observation of Work in Progress

MKN will perform technical field observation at the District’s request to review work progress for
general conformance with the plans and specifications and to assess construction issues or conflicts as
they arise. For budgeting purposes, we have assumed MKN staff will provide up to 40 hours of
observation. MKN will provide a written summary of the field visits and construction progress and will
contact the District immediately if nonconformance issues are identified.

Task 506 Startup Observation

MKN will be present onsite during startup of the new lift station pumps, the MBR treatment system, and
the equalization tank and appurtenances to assist in evaluation of the startup program’s conformance
with the contract requirements. For budgeting purposes, we have assumed MKN staff will be onsite up to

two (2) 8-hour days during startup.

Task 507 Final Walkthrough and Punchiist

A representative from MKN’s design team will attend a final walkthrough with the Construction Manager,
District staff and Contractor to develop a punchlist for final completion of the project.

Task 508 Record Drawings

MKN will prepare construction record drawings (AutoCAD) based on information {redline markups)
supplied by the Contractor.

Overall level of effort for engineering services during construction can vary greatly. If additional effort
beyond our assumed budget is necessary, MKN will alert the District promptly with a recommendation on
how to proceed.

ARROYO GRANDE | BAKERSFIELD | FRESNO | IRVINE | SANTA CLARITA | VENTURA




Brad Hagemann, PE
Page 6

TASK GROUP 600 CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

Construction is not anticipated to begin until summer 2021. A general scope of work and preliminary
estimate of effort is provided for budgetary purposes. The estimate assumes half-time inspection and a
nine-month construction duration. A detailed scope along with a more precise estimated level of effort
can be provided with completion of the draft construction documents.

MKN will provide an as-needed Construction Manager (CM) to provide the required level of construction
management and quality assurance for the project. The CM's primary duties will be to manage
construction and inspect and verify that all work in place meets the requirements of the contract plans
and specifications and to coordinate and manage document control.

Task 601 Preconstruction Meeting

The MKN team will organize and conduct a preconstruction meeting with District staff, the contractor,
subcontractors and any other key project stakeholders. Roles and responsibilities will be discussed.
Lines of communication and decision-making procedures will be explained and clarified. Emergency
contact information for all parties will be collected. MKN will generate an agenda prior to the meeting
for review and acceptance by District General Manager prior to the meeting. MKN will generate
meeting minutes and distribute them to all interested parties.

Task 602 Daily Inspection Diaries

The project inspector will maintain daily written records of work, including notation of such items as
weather, personnel and equipment on-site, sub-contractors on site, discussions held with contractor
and others, project issues that arise, material and equipment received for on-site storage, etc.

Task 603 Photo Record Maintenance

MKN will regularly photograph construction activity in digital format, and the record photographs will be
included in the inspector’s daily diaries and delivered in electronic format to the District.

Task 604 Record Drawing Maintenance

MKN will regularly review the contractor’s record set of drawings for completeness and accuracy and
will also keep a separate As-Built set of drawings throughout the project.

Task 605 Special Inspections

MKN will coordinate with the Contractor and the District’s General Manager to complete special
inspections required for the work. It is assumed that special inspections will be required for soils and
subgrade, rebar, concrete, and possibly anchors.

Task 606 Document Control

MKN will coordinate processing of all project documents including contractor RFls and Submittals. MKN
will ensure that contractor generated documents are routed to the appropriate parties for review and
response. MKN will track and review document responses from the District and Design Engineer. MKN
will forward all document responses to the Contractor. Throughout the process MKN will ensure that
document correspondence is handled in a timely and efficient manner.

Task 607 Schedule Review

MKN will review the contractor’s baseline schedule submittal and all monthly schedule updates to
ensure compliance with the contract requirements.

ARRDYO GRANDE | BAKERSFIELD | FRESNO | [RVINE | SANTA CLARITA | VENTURA MKNASSOCIATES.US




Brad Hagemann, PE
Page 7

Task 608 Pay Request Processing

MKN will review the Contractor’s monthly pay request for completeness and accuracy. MKN will make
recommendations and forward the pay request to the District for processing in accordance with the

District’s pay procedures.
Task 609 Change Order Review

MKN will assist the District in reviewing and processing any Contractor change order requests. MKN will
make recommendations to the District as to the validity of any Change order requests. MKN will keep
track of any time and material pricing for extra work as needed.

Task 610 Progress Meetings

MKN will hold weekly or as needed on site progress meeting to review the progress of the work.
Progress meetings will review, safety, submittal and RFl status, progress of the work, quality issues and
any other pending issues. MKN will prepare meeting minutes and distribute them to all interested

parties.

Task 611 Verification of Material and Equipment

As material arrives on site, MKN will verify that the delivered items conform to the project specifications
and approved submittals prior to approving them for use on the project.

Task 612 Quality Assurance

MKN will inspect all work in progress to assure that it meets the requirements and quality of work
outlined in the contract documents. Any deficient work will be rejected.

Task 613 Acceptance/Performance Testing

The project Construction Manager will coordinate acceptance and performance testing of each system
or piece of equipment in conformance with the requirements of the written specifications, industry

standards and controlling codes.

Task 614 Project Closeout

MKN will be proactive during the close out of the contract to assure that all work is completed to the
satisfaction of the District, and will assure that all required documents, manuals, and warranties are
properly submitted prior to final project closeout.

Task 615 Punchlist Inspection

The project inspector and Construction Manager will administer the specifications’ final acceptance
requirements and develop a deficiency list (punch-list) for the work performed, notify the contractor,
and re-inspect the completed work. MKN will also conduct a final inspection in the presence of the

District and the contractor.
Task 620 0O&M Manual and Warranty Coordination

MKN will coordinate with contractor to ensure that all required equipment 0&M manuals are
submitted; and will review vendor operation and maintenance manuals for conformance with the
specifications. MKN will also assure that the contractor submits all warranty information and assist the
District during this period if corrective work is need by the contractor.

ARROYO GRANDE | BAKERSFIELD | FRESNO | IRVINE | SANTACLARITA = VENTURA




Brad Hagemann, PE
Page 8

Task 621 Startup and Operator Training

MKN will review the project specifications to ascertain startup and training requirements for each
system and piece of equipment to ensure that these requirements are satisfied.

Task 622 Start-Up and Commissioning

MKN will coordinate with the contractor and the District for the commissioning of all new equipment
and facilities. MKN will assist with troubleshooting and addressing any corrective action that may be

required.

Task 623 Closeout

Upon satisfactory completion of all contract work, MKN will perform a final inspection, compile final
invoices, assemble and submit contract closeout packages, prepare project closeout files and reports
and recommend final acceptance of the project.

Task 624 Final Report
MKN will prepare a final construction report for the project. The report will contain at a minimum the
following:
e Final costs of the project (items, change orders and settled claims)
e Asummary of key dates (advertisement, bid opening, award, pre-construction meeting, first
working day, completion date)
e Asummary of working days, non-working days, change order days, weather days, and other
days
e Discussion of significant issues or problems encountered or addressed during construction

e A copy of the approved final acceptance form

ASSUMPTIONS
e MKN shall be entitled to rely reasonably upon the accuracy of data and information provided by
or through the District and will use good professional judgment in reviewing and evaluating such
information. If MKN identifies any error or inaccuracy in data or information provided by or
through the District, or determines that additional data or information is needed to perform the
services, MKN shall promptly notify the District.

e MKN will provide data requests to the District as needs arise.

e The District will be responsible for completing permitting applications and for performing
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) analysis.

e The District will coordinate with PG&E for a secondary electrical service to the site. MKN will be
responsible for onsite electrical design between the new PG&E service meter and MBR system
and low-voltage connections to the existing electrical systems. MKN will either develop the
construction plans for the PG&E-designed conduit between the WWTP and the PG&E facilities
across Avila Beach Drive, or provide review of construction documents prepared by others.

e The District and PSLHD will provide written comments on deliverables and will agree upon
revisions before forwarding to MKN.

ARROYO GRANDE | BAKERSFIELD | FRESNO | [RVINE = SANTACLARITA @ VENTURA




Brad Hagemann, PE
Page 9

SERVICES NOT INCLUDED
e Sub-surface utility detection or potholing services
o Boundary research, compilation, surveys or filing maps or records
e Flow monitoring
e Bid distribution

e Construction staking

e Services beyond those specifically listed in the Scope of Work above

PROPOSED SCHEDULE

The anticipated design schedule is summarized below. It assumes notice to proceed occurs within days
of executing the final agreement with the selected MBR Treatment System Manufacturer. District
review of the draft construction documents is assumed to take two weeks.

Time from Notice to

Task Proceed
Task Group 200 Geotechnical Report Addendum 6 weeks

Task Group 500 Contract Document Development
MBR System Submittals (by others, assumed) 12 weeks
Draft Construction Documents 24 weeks
District Review Meeting 26 weeks
30 weeks

Final Construction Documents

PROPOSED PROJECT BUDGET

The following table summarizes the budget for each task identified above. The budget presented for
Task Group 600 (Construction Management Services) is preliminary based on half-time construction
management services and is presented for budgeting purposes at this time.

ARROYO GRANDE | BAKERSFIELD | FRESNO | {RVINE | SANTACLARITA | VENTURA




Brad Hagemann, PE

Page 10
Task Group Proposed Budget
100 — Project Management $10,193
200 — Geotechnical Report Addendum $3,352
300 — Permitting and Technical Support $22,603
400 - Construction Documents $162,855
Design Phase Subtotal $199,003
500 — Engineering Services during Bid and Construction Phase $80,910 |
Engineering Services Subtotal $279,913
600 — Construction Management (preliminary, assumes % time) $175,000
Total Budget (Engineering + Construction Management) 5454,913

-

MKN proposes to complete this work on a time and materials basis with a budget not to exceed
$279,913 for engineering services through construction per our standard 2020 rate sheet (attached),
subconsultant’s proposals, and the attached budget spreadsheet, which details the proposed budget for
engineering services. Hourly rates may be revised annually. We recommend a preliminary Construction
Management budget of $175,000. This budget should be reviewed and updated with decisions
regarding the scope of services once the project design is closer to completion.

Thank you for providing MKN with the opportunity to provide professional services for your project. If
you have any questions regarding this proposal, please contact me by email or at (805} 235-5766. We
hope this proposal meets your expectations and look forward to continuing to work with you on this

important project.

Sincerely,

e’

Eileen Shields, PE
Principal

Attachments:
Budget
2020 Fee Schedule

ARROYG GRANDE | BAKERSFIELD | FRESNO | IRVINE | SANTACLARITA | VENTURA




T 98eq

SS8'791 ¢ | SS4'78 $ | ¥06'vZ $ | 0ST'L $ [ 002’9y § [868'T $ | €09z $ | 00108 S| 0rs | Zz | 56 [ 58 (06T s0r[z9 [ 8 | ieacuans
9GE'6T  $ 9% TG - s S - §|v95 & | zes'sts | 9gr | 9 |oz |oz |os |8z |zt uoluidQ 350) pue ‘suoiiesyidads ‘suejd [euld Zov yselL
66v'ebT $ | T6T'Z8S |v06've $ | 0ST'L S |00z'9r $ | 8681 S |6£0'C $ | 80€T9S | vev |91 [ Sc | S9 |ovt| o8 |os | 8 uoiuidg 350J pue ‘suoneayads ‘suejd Helq Tov Asel
ale O e O > ANO
€097t 5 |652'c slooge $| - S|ooee $| - S |es9 $|wwests| sor [z (o |9 (oo vr |9z 0 |eaoigns
Loy $ 6TTS s = S - s| - s|ett | ssees oe |z 0z | 8 V03 40} Loddns [ed1uya3§ papasu-sy E0E NSEL
STy  $ (7453 s = 6l e S - S|t | oeT'vs 0 9 ]ot|9o |z AIUEISISSY WD TOE ASeL
€zvt S| c10¢s |ooge S| - s |aoge $| - S|ty S| 9szss 8 vz | 8 |9t M3IA3Y {RRIWIGNS WISAS YEW TOE HSEL
40dd U 4 u v v H4d ‘UU U
ISE'E § < Sl =" " = S sy sy SiEEmssalaawea g [0 7o |z iz el 0 je10igns
TSE'E $ = RSl = 1S - s |swt'c s st S| 0658 2 z |z Hoday |e21uyr23099 03 LINPUSPPY TOZ ASeL
4 Jav 30d3Y v O 00 Mo
€6101 5 | L6Z $] - $f - $| - $| - slez s[{9686 S| 26 |o |0 |o |0 |9 |ww]|2 {e3oaqng
2use  $ 0TS Fos =B RS - S |vor S| 89v'Es 8T gr | ¢ JD/VD 0T Asel
1299 § €6TS SRS =D e - s |geT S| 8TY'eS e 9 |8z (aseyd udisap) sdunaay 109losd Apjaamig TOT dsel
/YU ONY \/ v Ddd 00T 4no
59 |8zt |8€T |STT 08T | 16T | 902 g AInG
2 - = - [ - » |l O|lw P> |@| 9| v
2 8 S 23 g ) S & 4 |B|3|8|8|3|5|2
: o s \Uq.. m._ @ w 10- ] -~ -4 ] @ o I3 ™
& = 20 @ - = & 3 |15|d|8|3|v|83
: g ] S g El Z 2 g z |2|%|12|2|3|%|e
] e 9 g @ b = = I 31| 5 | ml|ld|lm|=
= 3 =3 [ -} 2 ] o P IR || |53
] o b o - = € S| @ P la
) = € n 5 5 |2 |lg|®@|a |V |9
0 o ] — -3 7] o [ 2 S Lo S o
@ ., =N m o _ 5 |8 |3 | m|® |8
B o | 8 = 2 (E|F|F|8|2|®
= S S N 2 |a|lg | |—|Z
8 5 8 S = | 813 2
o = m 2 m” =
= 5
O 07 pue pig 3 D SO 3% 3 d3Uld pue ugisaqg e 0] [esodoid
ol0Jd O oAOJO o (] SO J 0 Pog b Y,

0T0z/ST/L



¢ 98y

b b b 956 0 Q0 09 D > 86 v 3 0 - 0 L) B 7 S 9 did v.1lU
01608 S | £S0'VE £9L°s $ | 908°€ $ | 000'TT $ | BLO'ZT $ | 90v'T § [ £58'9F | ZE | Z |vZ |ZT [S¥T |6 [bv [ O |ei03qns
€519 § 6415 TS =iy ELCIS - S |61 S| vL6'sS 472 8T |9 |2t |9 |2 sduimeiq pi0day 80S ysel
TssT S| s = a9 - S |oot'T § - Sl s | ompis o1 9 | v si|yaungd pue y3nosyyjem jeul L0S Nsel
ss's  $ €518 Tty St E i) - s |est s | zorss 143 9t |91 | ¢ uoneAIasqQ dnues 90s ysel
9y9'zz ¢ | 859915 - S |oot't $ |oo0E'€ S |8L0CT S |08T $ | 886'SS ov oz |zt | 8 §53480.14 Ul 4O JO UOnEAIBSQ S,J33uIBu3 505 AYsel
9vz'tz $| 908« |esv't $|oot't § |ossE $ < S |cfovr S| apv'eis 06 s | o | ST MBIASY |EIWIGNS £OS YSeL
8507t $ | 8zI'es |os9 S| - ¢ |oozz ¢ - $|89c $| 0£6'8S 09 g 9z |91 | 2t S13p10 28uey) pue S|4y £0S Asel
€SI’y S| Cwr'eS | 00TT S |TT0T S SIS - S |0E S| TTOTS a2 v l2|T Sunaay uoINIISU0IALd ZOS Ysel
av8'9 S| wp8'1Ss Joss s tv6Ss  $|loss  $| - ¢S |ost ¢ | zoo'ss 9€ Z 9 lot|8 |+ 5321135 95eyd pig TOS Asel
VHd ) O g Uld 410 d 2 elple
S9 |8ZT [8ET |STT |08T | 16T | 902 J1eY :
- z 2 | 28 | B 5 S g AHEHERBEEE
: z 9 g5 o o @ g g |2|2|3(8|2|2|%
& & A & = = g |Z|5(2|8|S[(=|8
> 4 2 & 5 4 2 2 = a2 |F|2|o
= E B ¢ o 2 = = T SIS | ml8|m|=
o 3 =93 ] 3 2 2 e 8| |B|wl|3|a
-3 Ir3 2, ~ =] @ fa m
] £ ® = < | @ |g (@ | q | Qg
] (<] = —_ - “ 3 o = 5 3 o
73 LR o s} o - » | 3 o a m| @ g
2 ) 2 bl 2 g7’
hd = 3 () o “. ® = i ]
_ ) 5 2 @ | g -
B g g 8 £ |8\ 2
Ka) = = @ 2|8 =
[} [
ks 3

ozoz/st/L



MKN & Associates, Inc.

mkn
Arroyo Grande, CA 93421

WATER WASIEWATER RLus(C 805 904 6530

FEE SCHEDULE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

ENGINEERS AND TECHNICAL SUPPORT STAFF

Project Director/ Operations Manager $206/HR
Principal Engineer $191/HR
Senior Project Engineer S180/HR
Project Engineer/ Senior Scientist $159/HR
Water Resources Planner $145/HR
GIS Specialist $139/HR
Assistant Engineer I $136/HR
Assistant Engineer | $115/HR
GIS Technician $115/HR
Supervising Drafter $138/HR
Drafting/Design Technician Il $128/HR
Drafting/Design Technician | $105/HR
Administrative Assistant $65/HR

Engineering Intern $60/HR

Routine office expenses such as computer usage, software licenses and fees, telephone
charges, office equipment and supplies, incidental postage, copying, and faxes are
included as a 3% fee on labor cost.

DIRECT PROJECT EXPENSES

QOutside Reproduction Cost + 10%
Subcontracted or Subconsultant Services Cost + 10%
Travel & Subsistence (other than mileage) Cost

Auto Mileage Current IRS Rate - $.58/mi.



October 14, 2020

Brad Hagemann

Avila CSD

100 San Luis Street

Avila Beach, California 93424

Subject: Site Prep and Utility Connections
Dear Mr. Hagemann:

Wallace Group appreciates the opportunity to provide you with our proposal for engineering
services for the above referenced project. Based on our discussion, the following Scope of
Services has been prepared for your consideration:

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

The Avila Beach Community Services District (District) owns and operates the Avila Beach
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) which treats wastewater from the District’s service area
as well as Port San Luis Harbor District (PSL). The District intends to augment capacity and
add redundancy through the installation of a new packaged membrane bioreactor (MBR) built
by Cloacina to address additional sources from the new Harbor Terrace Development, allow
for deferred maintenance during low flow periods, and increase reliability. A detailed
description of the MBR improvements is provided in the preliminary engineering report (PER)
entitled Avila Beach Community Services District Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements
Preliminary Engineering Report by MKN Associates dated June 17th, 2020. Deviations from the
MKN process design are at the discretion of the District and after discussions with operations
staff and Cloacina engineers, Wallace Group’s understanding of the project design is
described below.

Understanding of lift station improvements:

1. Replacement of the two (2) existing chopper-style submersible pumps and variable
frequency drives (VFDs) with two (2) new chopper-style submersible pumps with increased
capacity to accommodate the build-out of Port San Luis (PSL), controlled with two (2) new
VFDs.

a. These pumps are to provide flow to the existing primary clarifier.

b. It is our understanding that PSL has not yet finalized specifications for their lift
station pumps and replacement of the District lift station pumps might be avoided with
proper sizing of the PSL pumps and coordination between PSL and District staff. Wallace
Group will assist with this coordination effort.

2. Replacement of protective coating inside existing wet well to prevent corrosion and
withstand the suspected hydrostatic pressure from the surrounding seasonally elevated
groundwater table.

3. Realignment of the PSL lift station #3 forcemain such that it discharges into the manhole

immediately upstream from the existing influent lift station wet well. This force main

extension will be sized based on input from PSL.

Installation of bypass capability for the influent lift station.

Bypass of the existing influent lift station during construction of lift station improvements,

including specification for minimum flow during construction to minimize process upset of

the existing treatment facilities. The detailed design and implementation of the temporary
bypass system will be the responsibility of the Contractor.

v

i

WALLACE GROUPs

CIVIL AND
TRANSPORTATION
ENGINEERING

CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

MECHANICAL
ENGINEERING

PLANNING

PUBLIC WORKS
ADMINISTRATION

SURVEYING /
GI5 SOLUTIONS

WATER RESOURCES

WALLACE GROUP

A California Corporation

612 CLARION CT
SAN LUIS OBISPO
CALIFORNIA 93401

T 805 544-4011
F 805 544-4294

www.wallacegroup.us



PP20-7080

Avila CSD

October 14, 2020

Page2 of 7 —
.

Understanding of wastewater treatment plant Improvements: WALLACE GROUPs

1. Installation of side-stream Cloacina MBR treatment system (designed by others), including
Cloacina-provided pumps, valves and appurtenances, associated wet and dry utilities, and
other incidental site features (eg. driveway approach, retaining wall).

a. It is our understanding that Cloacina will be retained to upfit and commission the
packaged treatment system as part of its scope of supply, starting from utility stub-ups
and stub-outs designed by Wallace Group and provided by the Contractor.

b. Cloacina will design and provide the skid mounted MBR system, skid mounted influent
pumps, and provision for future skid mounted UV disinfection system for recycled water
purposes.

¢. Cloacina will provide SCADA communication integration with District existing SCADA
system.

2. Coordination of supporting disciplines including structural (eg. foundation and retaining
wall design), electrical, and geotechnical engineering.

Understanding of electrical system improvements:

1. Upgrade of existing electrical service and generator as required to meet the new demand.
2. The design will need to ensure new facilities can be installed such that existing treatment
equipment can stay operational until the new equipment is ready for cutover.

Wallace Group will serve as the prime consultant and proposes to use the following
subconsultants for additional design services:

¢ Taylor and Syfan or John Bradley, SE - structural engineering

e Otto Electrical, Inc. - electrical engineering

SCOPE OF SERVICES
Task 1: Project Management

Wallace Group will conduct oversight and management of the project, including subconsultant
updates and conference calls with District Staff and Board, scheduling, staffing resources, and
our in-house QA/QC review process. Two (2) site visits to meet with ABSCD, PSL, and
subconsultants are included.

Task 2: Pre-selected Vendor Design Coordination

Wallace Group will coordinate with the District and Cloacina to identify and design required
utility connections to the new treatment facility. The design of the treatment process and
equipment will be performed by Cloacina and is not included in our Scope of Work. Wallace
Group will review drawing and equipment submittals provided by Cloacina to confirm the size
and location of each required utility connection.

Task 3: Civil Engineering Design

Wallace Group will provide site work design including grading, drainage, support slabs,
underground utilities, and final surfaces as follows:

Task 3.1 Site Layout Plan
Wallace Group will use the preferred Site Plan from the PER as the basis to prepare a Site
Layout Plan for the construction plans. The Site Layout Plan will identify building dimensions,




PP20-7080

Avila CSD
October 14, 2020
Page 3 of 7

i

location, and size and include site exterior improvements including retaining wall, concrete
pads, and fencing. WALLACE GROUPs

Task 3.2 Site Drainage and Surface Improvements Plan

A Site Drainage and Surface Improvements Plan will be developed from the existing ground
topographical survey. The Site Drainage and Surface Improvements Plan will include
construction documents for the redirection of existing site drains to a new detention basin as
well as restoration of a former access road from Avila Beach Road and general surface
improvements (i.e. asphalt concrete and crushed gravel surfaces) identified in the PER. We
are assuming that the District will maintain its existing storm water outfall and retain
responsibility for any required permitting and compliance associated with the outfall.

Task 3.3 Site Demolition Plan

Wallace Group will use the preferred Site Plan from the PER as the basis to prepare a Site
Demolition Plan for the construction plans. The Site Demolition Plan will identify
infrastructure to be modified, removed, or abandoned in place.

Task 3.4: Lift Station Improvements
Wallace Group will prepare construction documents for the lift station improvements
identified by the District and operator. The improvements to the lift station will include:
e Coatings for piping, valving, and wet well.
e Redirecting Port San Luis force main from the existing lift station to the manhole
immediately upstream of the lift station.
Technical specifications for coatings, modified piping, and pumps.
Control panel replacement if required.

Task 3.5: Treatment Plant Improvements

Wallace Group will prepare construction documents for the installation of the pre-selected

package MBR treatment system. The design will be based on the final process configuration

provided by the District and Cloacina. The design of the system will include:

e Concrete equipment pad for the pre-selected package MBR treatment system and (1)
ancillary influent pumping station skid.

e Hydraulic sizing of connecting piping.

» Influent piping and associated appurtenances from the existing recirculation sump to a
packaged influent pump skid provided by Cloacina.

¢ Influent piping from the proposed influent pump skid to the MBR treatment system.

e MBR overflow drain conveyance piping back to the influent lift station.

e Conveyance piping for treated MBR effluent to existing chlorine contact chamber.

e Conveyance piping for waste activated sludge (WAS) produced by the MBR to a sludge
holding tank.

¢ Cloacina-provided sludge holding tank skid for MBR WAS, if required.

o Aeration piping from the pre-selected package MBR treatment system to the sludge

holding tank, if required.

Electrical and communications conduit routing and coordination.

Horizontal and vertical locations for utility stub-ups and stub-outs.

Siting accommodations for future recycled water pumping station and offsite conveyance
point.

Task 3.6: Technical Specifications

e Technical specifications in CSI format.

« Develop technical specifications for conveyance piping, air piping, pumps, valves, and
other associated appurtenances.

e Coordinate electrical engineering and structural engineering specifications.




PP20-7080

Avila CSD

October 14, 2020

Page 4 of 7 -—
-

Task 4: Electrical Engineering Design WALERCE GROLIES

Wallace Group will retain Otto Electrical, Inc for the electrical design of the wastewater
treatment facility. The electrical design services to be performed by Otto are as follows:

e Site visits to investigate existing conditions and electrical infrastructure.

e Coordination with the District, design team, and Cloacina to define electrical, control,
and generator system requirements.

Proposed single line diagrams.

Site electrical modifications showing new and existing system requiring modifications.
Connection details for new treatment equipment.

Increase pump motor for existing lift station, if required.

Generator and auto transfer switch sizing, connection details, and layout.
Modifications to controls and monitoring equipment for new process, instrumentation, and
controls requirements.

Cutover and temporary power hotes and details.

PG&E service upgrades including new electric service switchboard.

Division 26 specifications (electrical).

Task 5: Structural Engineering Design

Wallace Group will retain Taylor & Syfan for the structural design of the wastewater
treatment facility improvements. The structural design services to be performed by Taylor &
Syfan include:

Site visit to assess current conditions and coordinate with design team.
Multiple coordination meetings via video or teleconference as needed.
Design of concrete equipment pad for MBR system and associated tankage.
Design of retaining wall for MBR system equipment pad.

Design of precast concrete lid for primary lift station, if required.

Plans details, calculations, and specifications.

¢ & & o o @

Task 6: Engineering Services During Construction

Wallace Group will provide the following bid services and engineering support during
construction:

e Arrange for and attend construction kickoff meeting at the WWTP site, prepare meeting
agenda and minutes.

Respond to Contractor Requests for Interpretation (RFI).

Structural observations.

Site visits to develop final punchlists, if necessary.

As-built drawings.

Task 7: Bid Phase Services
Wallace Group will provide the following bid phase services on a time and materials basis:

e Assist with coordination of and attend pre-bid conferences at the WWTP site, prepare
meeting agendas and minutes, etc.
e Respond to Bidder Requests for Interpretation (RFI).



PP20-7080

Avila CSD
October 14, 2020
Page 5 of 7

——
e Prepare addenda and disseminate to prospective bidders. -
e Review and analyze bids, recommend award to the District. WALLACE GROUPs

It is our understanding that the District will take the lead in this phase of the project and
Wallace Group will assist as needed. We are assuming that Wallace Group’s contribution for
this task will be approximately 40 hours, staffed by a Senior Engineer level position. For
budgetary purposes, we will use 40 hours billed at $165 per hour for that position, for a
budgetary estimate of $6,600.

Task 8: Construction Management Services (Optional - T&M Estimate $83,380)

Wallace Group will provide pre-construction, during construction, and post-construction
services for the project. A part time Construction Manager/Inspector will monitor
construction activities and consultant staff will perform the follow tasks:

e Review Contractor's RFl's, change orders, claims, and other information on behalf of the
District and recommend denial or payment of requests.

Recommend rejection of work that is not in accordance with the contract documents.
Prepare Assistant Resident Engineer Reports/Diaries (when on-site) which contain
sufficient information for documentation purposes, including location, operations
(contract item or change order), labor, equipment, material, hours, field conditions,
discussions with Contractor, down-time, inefficiencies, and other similar items.

e A geotechnical firm retained by District staff will provide special inspections testing for
the project.

e Wallace Group staff will coordinate with the geotechnical firm’s testing staff for materials
testing and document the process. Review and approve material or product cut sheets for
compliance with project specifications.

e At completion of the work, attend a final project walk through with the District,
Contractor and Cloacina to determine that "punch list” items of work have been
completed.

e Final Inspection prior to project close-out.

It is our understanding that after the Cloacina equipment is manufactured and all components
with lead time are procured, the physical construction schedule will require approximately 3
months. We are therefore assuming that a part time Resident Engineer will be required with
20 hours per week of staffing over a 3 month duration. Due to the indeterminate nature of
construction at this time the budget is estimated on these assumptions and the services will
be provided on a time and material basis as approved by the District.

DELIVERABLES
o Stamped and signed PDF of plans and specifications (bid documents)
ASSUMPTIONS AND EXCLUSION

+ Wallace Group excludes all process engineering design for the MBR system and its
integration with the existing WWTP and assumes it to be the responsibility of Cloacina LLC
and the District.

Excludes all application and permit fees.
Excludes permit coordination through SLO County Planning and Building, and Regional
Water Quality Control Board, Central Coast Division.



PP20-7080

Avila CSD
October 14, 2020
Page 6 of 7

=
e Excludes geotechnical engineering. -
e Excludes loan/grant administration. WALLACE GROUPs

Excludes preparation of front-end bid documentation, however, we will provide
measurement and payment sections for inclusion in the District’s documents.

Excludes cost of bid advertisement.

Excludes site topographical survey - we are assuming a suitable topographic and boundary
survey will be provided for our use in AutoCAD format.

e Assumes PG&E handout package for new service upgrades is sufficient for bidding and
construction.

« Any information during investigation that cannot be obtain through existing drawings,
visual inspection, or is unsafe to visually obtain the information may have additional
assumptions and field verification requirements for contractor at time of construction.

e Assumes new MBR remote monitoring is limited to bringing network cable to existing
treatment plant’s network. Design excludes design or specification of SCADA integration
requirements.

Assumes permanent generator will be diesel and include a sub-base tank.

e Assumes standard weather/sound enclosure and sub-base tank for generator is sufficient
for location and fuel needs. Excludes design of custom enclosure, indoor
ventilation/exhaust systems, separate fuel tank and day tank, or additional exhaust
treatment beyond what is standard EPA requirements for backup generators.

o Assumes drawings and specifications will be delivered as a single construction package.
Phased drawings or standalone construction and specifications may result in additional
fees.

TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CLIENT

Final process design configuration.

Boundary and topographic survey in Autocad (ACAD) .dwg format.

As-built drawings of existing wastewater treatment plant.

Front end specifications.

Soils engineering report suitable for the preparation of construction documents and
bidding.

PROJECT FEES

Wallace Group will perform the services denoted in Tasks 1 through 8 of the proposed Scope
of Services in accordance with the attached Standard Billing Rates (Exhibit A). These services
will be invoiced monthly on an accrued cost basis, and our total fees, including reimbursables
or exclusive of reimbursables will not exceed our estimated fee without receiving written
authorization from the Client.

Tasks 1 through 6 - Not to exceed $124,900
Project Management
Pre-selected Vendor Design Coordination
Civil Engineering Design
Electrical Engineering Design
Structural Engineering Design
Engineering Services During Construction

Task 7 - Optional T&M, estimated $6,600
Bid Phase Services



PP20-7080

Avila CSD

October 14, 2020

Page 7 of 7 ——
e =

Task 8 - Optional T&M, estimated $83,380 -

Construction Management WALLACE GROUPs

At your request, additional services to the Scope of Services will be performed by Wallace
Group following the signature of our Contract Amendment or the initiation of a new contract.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

In order to convey a clear understanding of the matters related to our mutual responsibilities
regarding this proposal, the attached Standard Terms and Conditions (Exhibit B) are
considered a part of our proposal agreement. If this proposal meets with your approval,
please sign where indicated and return to our office, which will serve as our notice-to-
proceed.

We want to thank you for this opportunity to present our proposal for professional services. If
you would like to discuss this proposal in greater detail, please feel free to contact me
Project Manager, Bryan Childress.

Sincerely,

WALLACE GROUP, a California Corporation TERMS AND CONDITIONS ACCEPTED:

7

Robert S. Miller, PE C57474
Principal Engineer Signature
612 Clarion Court
San Luis Obispo Printed Name
California 923401
T 805 544-4011 Title
F 805 544-4294
www.wallacegroup.us Date

Attachments

GM: PP20-7080, 2019, std
Exhibit A

Exhibit B

THIS PROPOSAL IS VALID FOR 60 DAYS FROM THE DATE OF THIS DOCUMENT.



Exhibit A
Standard Billing Rates

Engineering, Design & Support Services:

Assistant Designer/Technician ........cccvveevereiiiiiinineiniienes $ 90
Designer/Technician | - IV ....cccooviiiniiiiinniiiiieiaa, $ 95-$125
Senior Designer 1 -l ....ocveieveieiniieiieieicc e $138 - $148
GIS Technical Specialist......cocvviiiriiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiinenaas $135

Senior GIS Technical Specialist .......coveeeiiiaiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii, $145
Associate Engineer |- 1l ......cocovviviiieniiiiiiiininiiiniiniiaan, $115-5%135
ENGINEEr | - IV eeeiiie it e $145 - $160
Senior Engineer 1« lll ....c.vvieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeens $170 - $180
0] 1=t (] SO PP $185
Principal Engineer/Consulting Engineer .............ccoeeiiiiinnnnn, $215
Ao 1o | O PP $230

Construction Management / Field Inspection Services:
Construction Office Tech I-lll ..oviiiiiiiiiiiiiie e $ 95-5115
Construction Inspector [ - ll.......ccvieiniiiiiiiiiiiiiniinene, $120- 5135 ..ol $155 - 160
Senior CONStruction INSPECIOT .. ..vieieiiieiiieviereeeevenrieaeneans $145 e $165
Assistant Resident Engineer | - H..ooveiiivieiiiniieniiiiiiiinnnn, $140 - $145
Resident Engineer I - lll ......oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiciienens, $150 - $160
Senior Resident ENGINEET ......cocvvvieereiiiiiiniieiniiniiiiiniiinaas $170
(31T 1) OO $180
Support Services:

OffiCe ASSISEANT ... eiieiiiie ittt raireerrenernraaceensiasssninsennss $ 85
Project Assistant 1 - lll.......cccoieiiiiiiiiniiiviiiiiiiiiiieiniaens S 90 - $100

Additional Professional Services:
Fees for expert witness preparation, testimony, court appearances, or depositions will be billed at
the rate of $300 an hour. As authorized in advance by the Client, overtime on a project will be
billed at 1.5 times the employee’s typical hourly rate.

Direct Expenses:
Direct expenses will be invoiced to the client and a handling charge of 15% may be added. Sample
direct expenses include, but are not limited to the following:

e travel expenses e sub-consultant services e agency fees
o delivery/copy services ¢ mileage (per IRS rates) e other direct expenses

Invoicing and Interest Charges:
Invoices are submitted monthly on an accrued cost basis in accordance with this Fee Schedule. A
finance charge of 1.5% per month may be assessed on all balances that are thirty days past due.

Right to Revisions:
Wallace Group reserves the right to revise this Schedule of Fees on an annual basis, personnel
classifications may be added as necessary.

WALLACE GROUP 1
2019 Standard Billing Rates Amended 2019-07-31






AVILA BEACH

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 309, Avila Beach, CA. 93424

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors _
FROM: Brad Hagemann, General Manage%l-?
DATE: November 10, 2020 o
SUBJECT: Contract for New General Counsel

Recommendation:

Information Item
Discussion:

In early October, staff prepared and circulated a Request for Qualifications for General
Counsel services for the District. The RFQ was posted on the California Special Districts
Associated (CSDA) website, the District website and was sent to several law firms that
are currently providing legal services to local CSDs and Special Districts. The deadline
for responding to the RFQ was Monday November 1, 2020. The District received
proposals from 10 firms. In accordance with the Board’s direction at the October 13,
Board meeting, staff organized and provided the proposals to the Personnel Committee
for initial review and a possible recommendation.

The Personnel Committee has started their review and will provide a status report to the
full Board at the Board meeting. All of the Proposals will be available to the Board
members and the public at the District office and at the November Board meeting.



